
P.T.O.

www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, Leek, Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ.  Tel:  0345 605 3010

            Simon W. Baker    B.Ed MBA MISPAL
        Chief Executive

AGENDA
for a

MEETING OF THE CABINET
Tuesday, 12 February 2019 at 2.00 pm in

 The Council Chamber, Moorlands House, Stockwell 
Street, Leek

Contact Officer: Linden Vernon Email: linden.vernon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
or Tel: 01538 395613

Membership
Councillors:-

S. Ralphs MBE
A. Forrester
M. Bowen

T. Hall
E. Wain
D. Ogden
S. Scalise

Leader of the Council (Chair)
Environment (Deputy Leader)
Communities, Leisure, Sport, Parks, 
Countryside and Housing
Customer Services
Planning, Development and Property
Cabinet Support Member
Cabinet Support Member

Reports enclosed unless noted otherwise.

1. Apologies 

2. Minutes of the previous meeting (previously circulated) (Pages 5 - 8)

3. Urgent items of Business, if any (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman) 

4. Declarations of Interest, if any 
1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
2. Other Interests

5. Matters referred by an Overview and Scrutiny Panel, if any 

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A  (Continued)

6. Items requested by Cabinet and/or Non-Cabinet Members in accordance with 
Cabinet Procedure Rules 8.5(b) and (e), if any 

7. Reports of Monitoring Officer and/or Chief Finance Officer, if any 

8. Leader 

8 .1 Forward Plan (Pages 9 - 18)
8 .2 Third Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance Review 2018/19 

(Pages 19 - 64)
8 .3 2019/20 Budget & Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 (Pages 

65 - 182)
8 .4 Town Centre Regeneration and Investment Programme (Pages 183 - 190)
8 .5 Creative People and Places Bid (Pages 191 - 232)

9. Environment 

9 .1 Staffordshire Moorlands DC support for Keep Britain Tidy’s Spring Clean 
Campaign (Pages 233 - 236)

10. Planning, Development and Property 

10 .1 Investment and Acquisition Strategy (Pages 237 - 240)
11. Exclusion of the Press and Public 

The Chair to Move:-

“That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the 
business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely 
that confidential information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would 
be disclosed to the public in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt 
information as defined in Section 100 I (1) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act would be disclosed to the public by virtue of the Paragraphs indicated.”

12. Leader 

12 .1 Cornhill Development Options (Pages 241 - 252)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
)

13. Communities, Leisure, Sport, Parks, Countryside and Housing 

13 .1 Review of Public Realm CCTV Surveillance System (Pages 253 - 264)
(Paragraph 3, 7 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs 
of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information) 
Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection 
with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. )



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET DECISIONS

TUESDAY, 4 DECEMBER 2018
PRESENT: Councillor S E Ralphs MBE (Chair) 

Councillors A Forrester, T Hall, D Ogden, S Scalise and E Wain

APOLOGIES: Councillor M Bowen

23 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (PREVIOUSLY CIRCULATED)

The minutes of the meeting held on 9 October 2018 were approved.

24 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST, IF ANY

There were no declarations made.

25 JOINT CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES

DECISION:

That the Minutes of the Local Joint Employees Consultative Committee held on 20 
November 2018 be received and the recommendations contained therein adopted.

26 FORWARD PLAN

DECISION:

That the Forward Plan for the period November 2018 to January 2019 be approved 
for publication.

27 SECOND QUARTER PERFORMANCE, FINANCE & PROCUREMENT 
REVIEW 2018/19

The purpose of the report was to inform members of the Council’s overall 
performance and financial position for the period ended 30th September 2018 
(“Second Quarter 2018/19”) The report was considered by the Resources Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel on 28 November 2018.  The position was summarised as 
follows:

Subject Headline Reference
Finance The Finance headlines for the Second Quarter were:

Performance against Budget

 The General Fund budget for 2018/19 was forecast to be 
£66,790 underspent at the Quarter Two stage.

Efficiency Programme

 To date, £299,630 had been achieved against the 2018/19 

Appendix 
A

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Cabinet - 4 December 2018

Subject Headline Reference
efficiency target of £830,000.  At this stage the target was 
expected to be met with the impacts of any delays in any of 
the programmed projects offset by other efficiency savings 
e.g. staff vacancies

Capital Programme

 The revised Capital Programme budget for 2018/19 was 
£5.8 million including the carry forward of capital 
underspends from 2017/18.  The projected outturn for the 
year was £4.8million – with £1.1million of Asset 
Management Projects expected to be reprofiled into future 
years .

Treasury Management

 Cash investments held at 30 September 2018 totalled £7.6 
million. The Ascent loan and debenture currently stood at 
£14 million.

 Council borrowing at 30 September 2018 totalled £12 million 
(relates to the Ascent loan)

 The Council’s net interest receipts budget target was 
projected to be on target

Revenue Collection

 56.7% of Council Tax was collected by 30 September 2018, 
compared to 56.7% for the same period last year.

 56.8% of Business Rates was collected by 30 June 2018 
compared with 57.0% for the same period last year.

 At the end of Quarter Two the value of sundry debt that was 
over 60 days old was £99,980 which compares with 
£103,240 at 30th September 2017

Procuremen
t

The Procurement headlines for the Second Quarter were:

 14 procurement activities were completed 
 The Procurement forward plan included 63 procurement 

activities for 2018/19 (either SMDC only or joint)
 At the 30th September 2018, 56% of procurement activity 

undertaken was on the forward plan and the Council paid 
96% of its invoices within 30 days during the year

Appendix 
B 

Performanc
e

The Performance headlines for the Second Quarter were:
 75% of the key performance indicators were on track
 Of the 25 Priority Actions within the Corporate Plan, two were 

still to commence, one was rated amber awaiting a decision, 
the remainder being classified as ‘Green’; and

 The Council received 57 complaints, 102 comments and 40 

Appendix 
C

Page 4



Cabinet - 4 December 2018

Subject Headline Reference
compliments in the Second Quarter. Repeat complaints and 
response times both on track 

Options considered:

Detailed Analysis was contained within the main body of the Report.

DECISION:

That the Second Quarter 2018/19 financial, procurement and performance position 
detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of the covering report be 
noted.

28 UPDATED MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2019/20 TO 2022/23

The Council’s updated Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) presented the Council’s 
priorities in the context of the likely resources available and provided a financial 
context to future decision-making. The report was considered by the Resources 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel on 28 November 2018.

Options considered:

There are no options to consider at this stage. Options would be need to be 
developed in order to close the financial deficits highlighted in this updated plan.

DECISION:

That the updated Medium Term Financial Plan be approved and be recommended to 
Council for endorsement.

29 GROWTH STRATEGY - CONSULTATION RESPONSES

The purpose of the report was to update the Cabinet on the response to consultation 
regarding the Draft Growth Strategy for Staffordshire Moorlands, developed jointly in 
partnership between SMDC and SCC.  The report was considered by the Service 
Delivery Overview and Scrutiny Panel on 21 November 2018.

Options considered:

Option 1: Do not agree approval for adoption. Under this option, the Council would 
not adopt the Growth Strategy as a material planning document. This would mean 
that there was no agreed delivery strategy to support key developments identified in 
the Local Plan. Not having a delivery mechanism in the form of the Growth Strategy 
in place would result in fewer opportunities to attract inward investment in the district 
and could risk the Council losing out on wider community benefits. Not 
recommended

Option 2: Agree adoption of the Growth Strategy. Having an implementation plan in 
place would help demonstrate the Council’s commitment to delivering the Local 
Plan. This would support appropriate development to come forward in identified 
locations and maximise community benefits from such development. It would also 
provide context to prospective investors and funders and attract inward investment in Page 5



Cabinet - 4 December 2018

the District. It would also help the public and private sector partners in preparing and 
assessing business cases for funding bids and investment propositions. 
Recommended

DECISION:

1. That the response to the draft growth strategy consultation be noted. 

2. That the Growth Strategy for Staffordshire Moorlands as the Council’s policy 
for regeneration be adopted. 

30 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED - That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government 
Act, 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting in view of the 
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the 
proceedings whereby it is likely that confidential information as 
defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the 
public in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt 
information as defined in Section 100 I (1) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A 
of the Act would be disclosed to the public by virtue of the 
Paragraphs indicated.

31 LEEK RAIL PROJECT UPDATE

The Cabinet approved a report that provided an update on the progress on the 
reinstatement of the heritage rail link from Leekbrook to Leek (Cornhill).

32 ALLIANCE ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES (AES) - PHASE 3 - TRANSFER 
OF SERVICES - STREET CLEANSING & GROUNDS MAINTENANCE

The Cabinet approved a report that considered the service specification for the 
services to be transferred to Alliance Environmental Service (AES) in the third 
phase, ensuring that future service delivery met the requirements of the Council.

33 LEISURE CENTRES - CONTRACT ARRANGEMENTS

The Cabinet approved a report which agreed a way forward for the establishment of 
the future arrangements for the management of the Council’s leisure centres post 
March 2019.    

The meeting closed at 2.56 pm

_________________________________Chairman 

Page 6



1

CABINET FORWARD PLAN 

February – April 2019
The Forward Plan is a list of decisions the Council’s Cabinet intends to take 
shortly. Some of these decisions are known as ‘Key Decisions.’  The Plan is 
updated and published 28 days before each meeting of the Cabinet and is 
available, together with all public reports referred to, from our website 
www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk and offices, Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, 
Leek, Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ.  Should you have any questions 
regarding these documents please contact the Council’s Member Services Team 
via our website or by telephoning 01538 395613.

A key decision is one defined as:

"One likely to result in expenditure or savings which are significant having regard 
to the Council's budget for the service or function to which the decision relates."

OR

"To be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an 
area comprising two or more District Wards."

Documents relating to matters listed, and which are open to the public, will be 
available five working days before the date of the meeting by visiting the 
Council’s website www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk or by telephoning 01538 395551. 
They are also available from our offices – Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, 
Leek Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ. Other documents relevant to decisions 
to be taken may be submitted to the decision maker.

Meetings of the Cabinet are held in public.  However, occasionally, some 
meetings, or part of meetings, may need to be held in private due to the content 
of the reports to be discussed (e.g. commercially sensitive or personal 
information).  This document indicates which reports and dates of meetings 
where this will apply and the reason for this. 

Five days before a private meeting takes place the Council will publish a further 
notice of its intention to hold a meeting in private.  This will again state why this is 
necessary and give the details of any representations received about why the 
meeting should be open to the public.  This will also include a statement of the 
Council’s response to any such representations.

Page 7

Agenda Item 8.1

http://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/
http://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/


2

I N D E X

Matter to be decided Date of decision 
to be made

Page 
No.

ENVIRONMENT
Staffordshire Moorlands DC support for Keep Britain Tidy’s Spring 
Clean Campaign 12 February 2019 3

LEADER

Third Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance Review 12 February 2019 4

2019/20 Budget & Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 12 February 2019 5

Town Centre Regeneration and Investment Programme 12 February 2019 6

Cornhill Development Options 12 February 2019 7

Creative People and Places 12 February 2019 8
COMMUNITIES, LEISURE, SPORT, PARKS, COUNTRYSIDE AND 
HOUSING
Review of Public Realm CCTV Surveillance System 12 February 2019 9

PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT AND PROPERTY

Investment and Acquisition Strategy 12 February 2019 10

Page 8



3

Environment

Matter for decision Staffordshire Moorlands DC support for Keep 
Britain Tidy’s Spring Clean Campaign

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes

Decision maker Cabinet

Expected date of decision 12 February 2019

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Forrester

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Service Delivery

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration

Report of the Executive Director 
(Transformation)

Public/Private report Public

Page 9



4

Leader

Matter for decision Third Quarter Financial, Procurement and 
Performance Review

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes

Decision maker Cabinet

Expected date of decision 12 February 2019

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Ralphs

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Resources

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration

Report of the Executive Director 
(Transformation)

Public/Private report Public

Page 10



5

Leader

Matter for decision 2019/20 Budget & Medium Term Financial Plan 
2019/20 to 2022/23

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes

Decision maker Cabinet

Expected date of decision 12 February 2019

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Ralphs

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Resources

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration

Report of the Executive Director 
(Transformation)

Public/Private report Public

Page 11



6

Leader

Matter for decision Town Centre Regeneration and Investment 
Programme

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes

Decision maker Cabinet

Expected date of decision 12 February 2019

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Ralphs

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Service Delivery

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration

Report of the Executive Director (Place)

Public/Private report Public

Page 12



7

Leader

Matter for decision Cornhill Development Options

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes

Decision maker Cabinet

Expected date of decision 12 February 2019

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Ralphs

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Service Delivery

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration

Report of the Executive Director (Place)

Public/Private report Private - Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person

Page 13



8

Leader

Matter for decision Creative People and Places

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes

Decision maker Cabinet

Expected date of decision 12 February 2019

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Ralphs

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Community

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration

Report of the Executive Director (People)

Public/Private report Public

Page 14



9

Communities, Leisure, Sport, Parks, Countryside and Housing

Matter for decision Review of Public Realm CCTV Surveillance 
System

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes

Decision maker Cabinet

Expected date of decision 12 February 2019

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Bowen

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Community

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration

Report of the Executive Director (People)

Public/Private report

Private - Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person & 
Information relating to any action taken or to be 
taken in connection with the prevention, 
investigation or prosecution of crime.

Page 15



10

Planning, Development and Property

Matter for decision Investment and Acquisition Strategy 

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes

Decision maker Cabinet

Expected date of decision 12 February 2019

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Wain

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Service Delivery

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration

Report of the Executive Director (Place)

Public/Private report Public

Page 16



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report to Cabinet

12th February 2018

Appendices Attached
 Appendix A (2018/19 – Third Quarter Financial Report)
 Appendix B (2018/19 – Third Quarter Procurement Report) 
 Appendix C (2018/19 – Third Quarter Performance Report)

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Council’s overall 
performance and financial position for the period ended 31st December 2018 
(“Third Quarter 2018/19”); and

2. Recommendations

2.1 It is recommended that the Cabinet: 

 Note the Third Quarter 2018/19 financial, procurement and performance 
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of this 
covering report.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 This report summarises the Council’s financial, procurement and performance 
position after considering service activity up to the end of the Third Quarter 
(i.e. 31st December 2018). 

3.2 Detailed analysis is provided in Appendix A (Finance), Appendix B 
(Procurement) and Appendix C (Performance). 

3.3 The position can be summarised as follows:

TITLE: Third Quarter Financial, Procurement and 
Performance Review 2018/19

PORTFOLIO HOLDER Cllr Sybil Ralphs – Council Leader

CONTACT OFFICERS: Claire Hazeldene – Finance & Procurement
Vanessa Higgins - Performance 

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Page 17

Agenda Item 8.2



Subject Headline Reference
Finance The Finance headlines for the third quarter are:

Performance against Budget
 The General Fund budget for 2018/19 is forecast to be £148,430 

underspent at the quarter three stage
Efficiency Programme
 To date, £372,050 has been achieved against the 2018/19 efficiency 

target of £830,000. Any shortfall may be offset by use of the 
authority’s earmarked efficiency programme reserve or using in year 
corporate savings

Capital Programme
 The revised Capital Programme budget for 2018/19 is £6.1 million 

including the carry forward of capital underspends from 2017/18.  
The projected outturn for the year is £3.6 million – with £2.5million of 
projects expected to be re-profiled into future years.

Treasury Management
 Cash investments held at 31st December 2018 totalled £6.8 million. 

The Ascent loan and debenture currently stands at £14 million.
 Council borrowing at 31st December 2018 totalled £7 million (relates 

to the Ascent loan)
 The Council’s net interest receipts budget target is projected to be 

£50,500 above target
Revenue Collection
 84.3% of Council Tax was collected by 31st December 2018, 

compared to 84.5% for the same period last year.
 80.9% of Business Rates was collected by 31st December 2018 

compared with 81.7% for the same period last year.
 At the end of quarter three the value of sundry debt that was over 60 

days old was £133,450, compared to £105,030 at 30th Dec 2017- 
the current year figure includes two invoices for a single customer 
totalling £57,000 which were paid within 10 days of the quarter end.

Appendix A

Procurement The procurement headlines for the third quarter are:
 16 procurement activities were completed 
 The procurement forward plan includes 54 procurement activities for 

2018/19 (either SMDC only or joint)
 At 31st December 2018, 62% of procurement activity undertaken was 

on the forward plan and the Council paid 91% of its invoices within 30 
days during the year

Appendix B 

Performance The performance headlines for the third quarter are:
 Performance in respect of 81% of the key performance indicators is 

on track
 Of the 25 Priority Actions within the Corporate Plan, one is complete, 

two are still to commence, four are rated amber awaiting a decision, 
the remainder being classified as ‘Green’

 The Council received 70 complaints, 124 comments and 56 
compliments in the third quarter. Repeat complaints and response 
times both on track 

Appendix C

4.      How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the 
effective management of performance and financial resources, which is the 
subject of this report.

Page 18



5.      Options and Analysis

5.1 Detailed Analysis is contained within the main body of the Report.

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2 Workforce
None

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
The report has been prepared in accordance with the Council’s 
Diversity and Equality Policy

6.4 Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout 
the report.

6.5 Legal
None

6.6 Sustainability
None

6.7 Internal and External Consultation
None

6.8 Risk  Assessment
There are a number of risks to the financial position presented, 
which are identified and explained in the financial report attached 
at Appendix A.

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

Various background working papers Moorlands House Claire Hazeldene
01538 395400 Ext. 4191
Vanessa Higgins 
01538 395400 Ext. 4195

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 

APPENDIX A

2018/19

Third Quarter
 Financial 

Review

 

Page 21



1. Background and Introduction

1.1. In accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and 
recommended good practice, a quarterly financial report is presented to 
members. This is the third report for 2018/19.

1.2. The report summarises overall financial performance for 2018/19 with 
particular emphasis on the key sources of financial risk to the Council. 
Specific considerations are as follows:

 General Fund Revenue Account (Section 2) – considers budgetary 
performance on the General Account by looking at variations in income 
and expenditure and the funding received by the Council. 

 Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme (Section 3) – considers 
progress in achieving the efficiency and rationalisation savings forecast for 
2018/19. 

 Alliance Environmental Services (Section 4) – highlights the 
performance of the Council’s Joint Venture Company providing Waste and 
Fleet services.

 Capital Programme (Section 5) – provides an update to Members on 
progress against the Council’s capital plan 

 Treasury Management (Section 6) – sets out the key statistics in terms 
of investments and borrowings;

 Revenue Collection (Section 7) – considers progress-to-date in 
collecting the Council Tax, Business Rates and Sundry Debts.

Page 22



2. General Fund Revenue Account

2.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the General 
Fund Revenue Account against budget by setting out variations in income 
and expenditure and funding received by the Council.

Service 2018/19 
Budget

Expected 
Outturn 
2018/19

Variance

 £ £ £
Alliance  Management Team 63,160 55,880 (7,280)
Audit 9,940 8,940 (1,000)
ICT 670,360 622,620 (47,740)
Human Resources 49,230 54,970 5,740
Member Services 308,800 298,060 (10,740)
Property Services 954,210 1,132,520 178,310
Benefits (274,580) (284,940) (10,360)
Planning Applications (459,310) (459,310) -
Building Control 16,210 4,960 (11,250)
Customer Services 106,300 93,300 (13,000)
Legal Services 64,520 2,420 (62,100)
Electoral Services 84,470 57,290 (27,180)
Licensing and Land Charges (221,710) (210,460) 11,250
Regeneration 195,300 296,190 100,890
Communities and Cultural 167,380 159,380 (8,000)
Housing Strategy 43,110 (36,400) (79,510)
Transformation 6,760 5,000 (1,760)
Community Safety and Enforcement 175,050 175,550 500
Finance, Income and Procurement (100,670) (43,720) 56,950
Corporate Finance* 5,850,220 5,683,220 (167,000)
Waste Collection 1,642,620 1,755,350 112,730
Street Scene 371,680 394,420 22,740
Leisure Services 667,730 675,270 7,540
Horticulture 573,470 555,580 (17,890)
Visitor Services (595,840) (569,800) 26,040
Environmental Health (9,080) (21,320) (12,240)
    
Net Total of Services 10,359,330 10,404,970 45,640
    
Net Interest (347,520) (398,020) (50,500)

10,011,810 10,006,950 (4,860)
   

Funding   : external (9,210,760) (9,305,660) (94,900)
                 : reserves - contribution/(use) (801,050) (849,720) (48,670)

   
Projected (Surplus)/Deficit - (148,430) (148,430)
    

* Staff budgets are currently budgeted within Corporate Finance. 

2.2. A revenue budget of £10,011,810 was set for 2018/19.  The table above 
shows how this budget has been allocated to services.

Page 23



2.3. The Q3 projected outturn on the General Fund Revenue Account for the year 
is £9,863,380. This represents a projected surplus for the year of £148,430.

2.4. There are three areas of significant underspend projected on the General 
Fund Revenue Account:

 Legal (£62,100 underspend) - arises from the awarding of costs to the 
council for an historic planning appeal.

 Housing Strategy (£79,510 underspend) -  The housing needs function of 
this service area can benefit from third party funding of varying but 
sometimes substantial amounts to be targeted at homelessness initiatives 
in the district.  The unpredictable nature of these grants and the extended 
timeframe of the various initiatives often require the use of earmarked 
reserves to match funding to costs.  At this stage therefore some £29,680 
of the projected underspend has been earmarked to move into reserves.

 Corporate Finance (£167,000 underspend) - Corporate Finance records 
the authority’s performance against its efficiency savings target and the 
consolidation of savings against corporate budgets such as for employee 
costs.  Section 3 below is forecasting a £305,950 shortfall against the in-
year efficiency target.  However this is forecast to be offset by savings 
accruing against corporate staff, inflation contingency budgets and 
contract hire, resulting in a net £167,000 underspend.

2.5. There are five areas of significant overspend projected on the General Fund 
Revenue Account:

 Property (£178,310 overspend) - The temporary arrangements put in 
place while the Alliance’s property management contract is being 
procured have been extended.  This is to allow detailed negotiations to 
take place that ensure the long term viability and economy of the contract.  
As a result the in-year maintenance budget is forecast to be exceeded.

 Regeneration (£100,890 overspend) - The service is facing significant in 
year cost pressures around both the creation of the Local Plan and 
various initiatives to support the development of the District.  To some 
degree these pressures were anticipated by the creation in prior years of 
earmarked reserves.  At this stage £100,000 of these reserves are to be 
drawn down to meet the overspend

 Finance, Income and Procurement (£56,950 overspend) - As reported at 
Section 7.2, the authority continues to achieve good collection rates for its 
council tax and business rates. To date this is being achieved without 
generating the levels of summons income that have been seen in 
previous years.  It is anticipated that summons income in the year will fall 
some £60,000 below the budget.

 Waste Collection (£112,730 overspend) - Whilst trade waste activities are 
generating a £35,000 surplus this is offset by operating overspends of 
£45,000 on general refuse and £97,000 on recycling. The overspend on 

Page 24



recycling reflects pressures on volumes and the values received for 
recycled waste. 

   
2.6. The £50,500 underspend on net interest costs is detailed in section 6.

2.7. The level of funding anticipated for the year is £143,570 above that budgeted 
due to the following:

External Funding: (£94,900)
 Business Rates Retention (£94,900) - Following a technical consultation 

by MHCLG the methodology for calculating compensation due to local 
authorities for Small Business Rates Relief threshold changes has been 
refined. This will generate a windfall for the Council of £27,530 relating to 
2017/18 and also increases the compensation due for the current year.

 Fluctuations in business rates retention continue to be monitored in 
relation to the provision for appeals and rateable value reductions 
including applications for backdated charitable relief to NHS Trusts.

Use of Earmarked Reserves: (£48,670)
 

 Electoral Services £26,680 contribution - this is a budgeted annual 
contribution in to a reserve earmarked to spread the cost of the District’s 
elections over the term of a council.

 Housing Strategy £29,680 contribution - Third party funds received in-
year are being set aside to support homelessness initiatives that will run 
into future years.

 Regeneration Services £100,000 use - The £40,000 Local Development 
Framework Reserve is to be applied to support in-year overspend on the 
Local Plan. Other activities of the Service are to be funded by a draw 
down of £60,000 of New Burdens Grants received in prior years and 
earmarked to support regeneration projects in the District.

 Horticulture £5,030 use - Works on recreation grounds and open spaces 
are part funded each year by drawing down on Section 106 monies 
previously received from developers as part of their planning obligations.  

Page 25



3. Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme

3.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s 
Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2018/19.

3.2. The Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan (approved in February 2018) 
included the four-year (2017/18 – 2020/21) Efficiency and Rationalisation 
Strategy targeting savings of £3.14 million.  This was required to balance the 
forecast budget deficit position of £2.7m and also the carry forward of 
unachieved efficiencies from 2016/17 of £0.4m.

3.3. The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy is premised on the need to both 
reduce expenditure and increase income. The need to grow income is now 
more of a priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing. 
The strategy has been developed with the underlying principles of protecting 
frontline service delivery. It is also intended that the strategy is a tool to 
enable the Council to ensure that its service spending is determined by the 
established priorities set out in the Corporate Plan.

3.4. The Strategy has five main areas of focus:-

 Major Procurements - There is the opportunity to focus attention on a 
number of large service functions which are currently provided by an 
external contractor / supplier. A number of significant contracts are coming 
to an end. This will also allow a fundamental review of these services with 
proper consideration of the current financial constraints.  The contract 
commitments have sometimes restricted the opportunity to align services 
across the alliance with High Peak.  The individual projects will focus on 
Waste Collection & Environment Services, Leisure Management and 
Facilities Management

 Asset Management Plan – continuation of the existing priority of 
rationalising the Council’s asset base with a focus around priorities in order 
to allow for the necessary capital investment

 Growth – development of a clear focus upon housing and economic 
growth based upon the established Local Plan. 

 Income Generation – focus on increasing the yield from existing sources 
on income and a drive towards identifying new sources of income

 Rationalisation – a commitment to reducing expenditure on non-priority 
areas of spend e.g. management arrangements, channel shift, non-
statutory services 

3.5. The 2018/19 budget provides for the achievement of £830,000 of such 
savings in year – with a significant focus on growth, income generation and 
major procurements, particularly the waste collection joint arrangement 
involving Alliance Environmental Services (AES).

3.6. At the end of Quarter Three, £280,050 has been taken against the overall 
Efficiency Programme. A further £92,000 of income related savings were also 
delivered at budget-setting time, including income arising out of revised New 
Homes Bonus funding forecasts. 

Page 26



3.7. This leaves £457,950 of savings to be achieved over the remaining quarter of 
the year. Therefore, it is likely that there will be a potential shortfall against 
the in-year target, mainly down to some slippage in the profile of savings 
assumed in the Efficiency Programme.

3.8. A review of historically underspent budgets has been taking place over the 
last 6 months to identify areas of excess budget provision. This exercise has 
yielded £68,000 in savings to date and will continue during Fourth Quarter in 
an effort to reduce any shortfall.

3.9. The efficiency shortfall is being partially offset by one-off vacancy savings in 
the establishment as well as other corporate in year savings. Whilst this plugs 
the in-year savings gap; it does not necessarily provide for on-going budget 
savings. Consequently, any shortfall in efficiency savings at year-end will 
need to be rolled forward into 2019/20 or re-profiled into later years. An 
exercise to re-profile the current Efficiency & Rationalisation Plan is being 
undertaken as part of the 2019/20 budget setting process.

3.10. The Council carries a reserve of £493,000 earmarked to support the 
Efficiency Strategy, which can be drawn on to offset one-off costs of 
delivering the efficiency programme, such as redundancy costs. This reserve 
may be drawn on at year-end to meet some of these costs.

Page 27



4. Alliance Environmental Services

4.1. Alliance Environmental Services Ltd (AES) was created with a vision to 
deliver waste, street cleansing and grounds maintenance services in the 
Staffordshire Moorlands and High Peak areas. The company has three 
shareholders: Staffordshire Moorlands District Council, High Peak Borough 
Council and ANSA, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cheshire East 
Council. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the 
company and contribution to the Council’s Efficiency and Rationalisation 
Programme in 2018/19.

4.2. Phase 1 of the transfer of services commenced on 7th August 2017 to deliver 
High Peak Borough Council Waste services. Phase 2 began on 1st July 2018 
to deliver waste services to Staffordshire Moorlands District Council and fleet 
management services to the Alliance as a whole.

4.3. The AES forecast management accounts for 2018/19 include a budgeted 
profit of £111,830 including phase 1 and 2 services delivered to both 
Councils. AES has provided management accounts as at the end of 
November 2018 to forecast the outturn for 2018/19 and is predicting a profit 
of £187,010 against the budget of £111,830. The anticipated surplus of 
£75,180 is related to a reduction in staffing costs compared to the budget, 
and some savings on transport repairs and maintenance; which are in part 
offset by reductions in risk items payable by the Council.

2018-19 Budget Q3 Forecast Variance
£ £ £

Turnover (6,805,840) (6,652,800) 153,040
Cost of sales 6,099,890 5,853,380 (246,510)
Gross profit (705,950) (799,420) (93,470)

Administrative Expenses 594,120 612,410 18,290

Forecast (Profit)/ Loss (111,830) (187,010) (75,180)

4.4. The 2018/19 efficiency targets relating to AES services are £242,850: 
£169,370 allocated to AES and £73,480 to Alliance Councils retained 
budgets. The efficiency savings achieved by AES are payable to the Councils 
at the end of the year and will be apportioned between High Peak Borough 
Council and Staffordshire Moorlands District Council as appropriate to the 
areas where it has been achieved.

4.5. At quarter 3 AES are reporting that company is forecast to achieve its 
budgeted profit to improve the company’s reserves position in line with its 
original business case. Any surplus profits of will be allocated to the efficiency 
target. The company is confident at this stage that the budgeted efficiency 
savings will be met.  

Page 28



4.6. The Councils’ efficiency target of £73,480 for 2018/19 has been achieved 
(£26,830 relating to SMDC)

Impact on the Council’s budgets

4.7. The table below summarises the impact of the company’s operation on the 
Council’s budget:

2018-19 General Fund
£

Budget 2,365,900

Annual management fee 2,365,900
Crystallised risk items 251,810
Contract hire savings (147,470)
Allocation of Joint Operation Profit (88,230)
Total Cost 2,382,010

Net Variance 16,110

4.8. Within the AES Business Plan a number of items are recognised initially as 
‘risk items’ which may or may not crystallise into actual costs/ payments or 
may be absorbed into the existing management fee paid on account. At 
quarter 3, the risk payments applicable by the Council are forecast at 
£251,810 relating to vehicle costs and temporary staffing costs.

4.9. Under accounting standards, AES’s financial performance is incorporated in 
to the Councils’ single entity statements as a ‘Joint Operation’ as opposed to 
separate group accounts being reported.  The profit is therefore apportioned 
between the two Councils and the respective services in line with the input of 
original budgeted resources from each department.

4.10. The total of the annual management fee payable and the crystallised risk 
items is largely offset savings on the Council’s contract hire budgets as a 
result of the purchase of vehicles earlier in the year from SFS (the Council’s 
former provider of contract hire vehicles), pending vehicle procurement; and 
by the allocation of AES’s profit outturn under Joint Operation accounting.

4.11. AES is undergoing the process of confirming admitted body status in the 
Staffordshire Pension Fund (SPF). This involves ‘pooling’ the staff transferred 
to AES, with the remaining Council employees in the Staffordshire Moorlands 
portion of the SPF. This effectively removes pension risk from the company, 
whilst at the same time offering greater budget certainty and putting the 
Council in the same risk position that it would have been if services had 
continued to be delivered in-house.

Page 29



5. Capital Programme 

5.1. This section of the report provides an update on the Council’s Capital 
Programme.

5.2. The table below shows a high level (service) summary of the General Fund 
Capital Programme position at 31st December 2018. Further detail – on a 
scheme by scheme basis – is contained in Annex A:

Service
 

2018/19  
Approved 

Budget 
Q3 

Changes
2018/19 
Revised  
Budget

Expected 
Outturn 
2018/19

Expected 
Variance 
2018/19

£ £ £ £ £
Housing Standards 1,241,650 237,410 1,479,060 1,161,650 (317,410)
Property Services 1,853,440 50,000 1,903,440 483,750 (1,419,690)
ICT 19,390               -   19,390              -   (19,390)
Fleet Management 2,084,890               -   2,084,890 1,346,300 (738,590)
Regeneration 105,520 (50,000) 55,520 30,000 (25,520)
Horticulture 550,000 20,000 570,000 570,000              -   

5,854,890 257,410 6,112,300 3,591,700 (2,520,600)
     

External  Contributions 1,238,390      287,410 1,525,800 1,211,000 (314,800)
Capital Receipts       18,000               -   18,000              -   (18,000)
Capital Reserves 419,940               -   419,940 392,570 (27,370)
General Fund Reserves 953,740               -   953,740 953,730            (10) 
Planning obligations 114,000               -   114,000 135,690 21,690
Borrowing 3,110,820 (30,000) 3,080,820 898,710 (2,182,110)

5,854,890 257,410 6,112,300 3,591,700 (2,520,600)

5.3. The 2018/19 General Fund Capital Budget, as updated and approved by the 
Cabinet on 4th December 2018 was set at £5,854,890. During the third 
quarter budget increases of £257,410 have been included; resulting in a 
revised 2018-19 budget of £6,112,300

5.4. The changes made to the programme in quarter three are listed below: 

 Brough Park New Skate Park Increased budget £20,000 – Following a 
successful bid to Sport England, funding has been secured towards the 
cost of the skate park including provision of floodlights; subject to planning 
permissions the lights are expected to be installed March 2019.

 Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs) – Increased budget £237,410 the level 
of funds awarded by Central Government to support the grants 
programme was higher than anticipated (however, this funding is not 
expected to be utilised in the current year – see below).

 
 Butter Market refurbishment & enhancement - a budget transfer  of 

£50,000 has been made between Regeneration and Property Services to 
amalgamate the capital funds available for works at the Butter Market. 

Page 30



5.5. There are three significant capital programme variances to report at this 
stage: 

 Housing (£317,410 underspend) - Disabled Facilities Grant (DFGs); this is 
the first year of new home improvement agency arrangements, because of 
current demand and changes to the delivery of DFGs during this 
transitional year, it is unlikely that the existing funds will be required to 
deliver the mandatory grants programme.  

 Property (£1,419,690 underspend) A number of projects have been re-
profiled into future years following the on-going review and prioritisation of 
works contained within the Asset Management Plan

 Other – Fleet Management  (£738,590 underspend); following transfer of 
the waste collection service to Alliance Environmental Services (AES), 
new fleet management arrangements have been agreed. Existing contract 
hire agreements have been terminated and vehicles have been directly 
purchased. The underspend reflects the revised timing of acquisitions of 
further fleet vehicles which will now take place in 2019/20 

5.6 Consequently, capital funding which will be applied to the 2018/19 capital 
programme is lower than forecast, reflecting the revised timing of capital 
spend. 

Page 31



6. Treasury Management

6.1. This section of the report sets out the key treasury management statistics in 
relation to the Council’s investments and borrowings. This report comprises a 
high level treasury management summary.  The Audit and Accounts 
Committee receives detailed operational updates on treasury management.

Investments

6.2. Cash Investments held on the 31st December 2018 totalled £6.8 million. 
Interest earned on these investments by the end of quarter 3 totalled £40,430 
and the average level of funds available for investment was £8.5million.

6.3. The Council has budgeted to receive £73,590 in investment income in 
2018/19. A shortfall of £10,000 is anticipated against this budget due to 
increased internal borrowing which reduces the level of funds available for 
investment.

    Ascent Joint Venture

6.4. Ascent (the joint venture company set up to deliver affordable housing across 
the District) had drawn the full £5 million debenture facility by the end of 
2014/15. Interest is charged at 2%, therefore the budgeted interest income for 
the year is £100,000; this is on target.

6.5. The balance on the £20 million loan facility to Ascent remains at £14 million. 
There have been no further drawdowns of the loan since the 2015/16 year. 
Interest charged is based on the 5 year PWLB rate on the date of the 
drawdown plus a 1.25% risk premium. The refinanced tranche 1 of £7 million 
matured in October 2018 and was rolled again for a short period pending the 
outcome of the Ascent LLP business plan review at a rate of 3.05% 
(previously 2.61%). A small shortfall of £6,500 is currently forecast against 
the income budget of £446,690.

    Borrowing

6.6. Total debt outstanding as at 31st December 2018 totalled £7 million; this 
funds the Ascent Loan. No new borrowing has taken place, however £5 
million loans matured in October and November 2018, which have not yet 
been refinanced.

6.7. The Council has budgeted to incur £272,760 in interest charges in 2018/19. 
This was based on externally funding the full existing Ascent loan balance of 
£1 4million and a £2.2 million general fund borrowing requirement in the 
current year capital programme. £7m of the Ascent loan is internally funded at 
the end of quarter 3. Therefore, a saving of £67,000 is forecast against the 
budget relating to internal funding and some reprofiling of the capital 
programme

Page 32



6.8. The treasury team continues to monitor opportunities for new borrowing 
during the year considering the actual borrowing requirement and the cost of 
carry of any borrowings taken.

Page 33



7. Revenue Collection

7.1. This section of the report details progress to date in collecting the Council 
Tax, Business Rates and Sundry Debt.

7.2. The Q3 collection rate outturn for the year 2018/19 was as follows:

 Council Tax – 84.3% of Council Tax was collected by 31st December 
2018, compared to 84.5% for the same period last year.

 Business Rates – 80.9% of Business Rates was collected by 31st 
December 2018, compared with 81.7% for the same period last year.

7.3. At the end of Quarter Three the value of sundry debt that was over 60 days 
old was £133,452 which compares with £105,034 at 31st December 2017.  
The current year figure included two invoices for a single customer totalling 
£57,000 which were paid within 10 days of the quarter end date.

Page 34



ANNEX A

Capital Programme Update 31st December 2018

Capital Schemes
2018/19  

Approved 
Budget 

Q3 
Changes 

2018/19 
Revised  
Budget

Expected 
Outturn 
2018/19

Expected 
Variance 
2018/19

 £ £ £ £ £

Housing Standards      

Private Sector Grants 1,211,650
   

237,410 1,449,060 1,161,650    (287,410) 
Landlord Accreditation Scheme      30,000              -   30,000              -   (30,000)

Total Environmental Health 1,241,650
     

237,410 1,479,060 1,161,650 (317,410)
Property Services     

Asset Management Plan 1,853,440
     

50,000 1,903,440 483,750 (1,419,690)

 Total Property 1,853,440
      

50,000 1,903,440 483,750 (1,419,690)
ICT 19,390  19,390              -   (19,390)

 Total ICT 19,390              -   19,390 - (19,390)
Other Schemes      
Vehicle & Plant Purchase 2,084,890              -   2,084,890 1,346,300 (738,590)

Total Other Schemes
 

2,084,890              -   
 

2,084,890 
  

1,346,300 (738,590)
Regeneration      
Moorlands Partnership Grants 55,520              -   55,520 30,000 (25,520)
Butter Market 50,000   (50,000)             -                -                 -   

Total Regeneration 105,520
    

(50,000) 55,520 30,000 (25,520)
Horticulture      

Play - Projects 550,000
     

20,000 570,000 570,000               -   

Total Horticulture 550,000
      

20,000 570,000 570,000               -   
      

Total Programme 5,854,890
     

257,410 6,112,300 3,591,700
 

(2,520,600) 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B

2018/19

Third Quarter
 Procurement 

Review

Page 37



1. Introduction

1.1 A key element of the financial savings included in the Council’s Efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy is being met from procurement activity which was 
agreed by Councillors in April 2017. 

1.2 The current Procurement Strategy was developed to ensure that its 
objectives link closely with the Council’s overall strategic vision and aims and 
objectives.  The key actions in in the strategy include:

 Delivery of cashable efficiency savings to support the Efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy by tendering, retendering and renegotiating of 
contracts.

 Development and embedding a professional procurement unit of 
excellence to deliver on going efficiency savings for the Councils

 Revising Procurement Procedure Rules to support transparency, 
timeliness of contract award and greater control – these have now been 
updated

 Expanding the usage of electronic procurement systems for works as 
appropriate

 Increasing the levels of spend covered by the contract
 Implementation of e-tendering
 Supporting the local economy by increasing the number of procurement 

opportunities advertised and adoption of a local business concordat

1.4 The Procurement Strategy is now due for updating and is scheduled for 
presentation during 2018/19. 

Page 38



2. Third Quarter Completed Procurements

2.1 The activity supported by the procurement function during the third quarter 
October - December 2018 is summarised below:

Third Quarter  High Value 
(> £181,000)

Low Value    
(< £181,000) Total

SMDC Only 0 13 13
JOINT (SM/HP) 1 2 3
TOTAL 1 15 16

2.2 Annex A provides details of the 16 procurements exercises reviewed and 
completed during Quarter 3.

2.4 No cashable savings have been made as a result of specific procurement 
activity during Quarter 3, this will continue to be monitored throughout the 
year and any savings identified will be offset against the efficiency 
programme.

2.5 However, a review of historical overall expenditure against budget is 
currently underway to identify where budgets can be reduced due to 
ongoing/one-off procurement activity.  To date, £68,000 has been realised 
against the Efficiency Plan.

Page 39



3. 2018/19 Procurement Forward Plan

3.1 The table below details the number of exercises which fall into either low or 
high value (profiled over full contract term) scheduled for completion or 
starting in 2018/19.

2018/19
Activity

High Value 
(> £181,000k)

 Low Value
 (< £181,000k) Total

SMDC 3 20 23
JOINT (SM/HP) 4 27 31
TOTAL 7 47 54

In addition to the above, there are 110 listed entries brought forward from 
previous years (for review and completion for both HPBC and SMDC 
combined). 

3.2 Some of the more significant ‘high level’ procurement activity that is 
scheduled for delivery in 2018/19 includes:-

 Skatepark Projects Leek and Cheadle
 Leisure Centre Management 
 CCTV Maintenance and Monitoring Arrangements
 Leek Markets Logistic Support (Market stalls)
 Insurance

Page 40



4. Procurement Performance

4.1 This section reports on the Council performance in terms of procurement 
activity and the payment of suppliers.

4.2 Performance for the third quarter is highlighted below:

Performance Indicator Target
Performance at 
31st December 

2018
% of Alliance Procurement 
Activity on Forward Plan 72% 62.18%

Annual contract spend as % 
of gross expenditure budget 84% 92.28%

% of invoices paid within 30 
days 96% 91%

Procurement Activity on Forward Plan

4.3 A small proportion of the completed exercises in quarter 3 were reactive 
which equated to 21% of the overall activity.  Regular service review meetings 
are continuing to ensure planned activity is captured and monitored on the 
plan.

% Invoices paid within 30 days

4.4 Payments over 30 days equated to 12% of the total payments made in 
December of which 63% of payments to suppliers were actually made in 
under 10 days.  34% of the late payments were due to delays for goods 
receipting (GRNs) in the service areas. Services have been reminded about 
the necessity for prompt GRNs to initiate the payment and if in dispute to 
clearly communicate this to the creditors team. The remainder were due to 
non compliant invoices without Purchase orders.  

Page 41



ANNEX A
Third Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – SMDC

Contract Description Recurring 
/ One Off

Service Award Term 
(yrs)

 Total 
Contract 

Value 
[£] 

Wetley Moor Turf 
Stripping and 
Heather Cutting

Turf stripping and 
heather cutting as 
part of ecological 
management on 
sensitive sites of high 
nature conservation 
value- Wetley Moor 
common 

Recurring Ops Services 
(Grounds)

Terra Firma 
Environmental 

1       
20,302 

SMDC Local Plan 
Support
Landscape, 
heritage and green 
space 
Examination 
Support 

Local Plan 
examination. 
Consultants required 
to defend their 
conclusions which are 
a key part of the Local 
Plan evidence base. 

One Off Regeneration Wardell 
Armstrong 
LLP

1       
10,341 

Housing and 
Employment Needs 

Consultancy to 
support SMDC Local 
Plan from existing 
study undertaken on 
future Housing and 
employment needs in 
SMDC

One Off Regeneration Nathaniel 
Lichfield and 
Partners

1         
9,400 

SM Creative 
Industry Roadshow

3 yr annual 
programme for 
Creative Industry 
Roadshow for sole 
traders and micro 
businesses in SM 
area

Recurring Regeneration Marc Briand 3         
4,800 

SMDC Local Plan 
Support 
Green Belt Review 
Examination 
Support

Consultants required 
to defend their 
conclusions which are 
a key part of the Local 
Plan evidence base. 

One Off Regeneration Woods PLC 1         
3,568 

Railway track land 
valuation 

Valuation of track land 
in SMDC

One Off Regeneration Ardent 1         
3,100 

Repair Tarmac 
Paths at Cecilly 
Brook Local Nature 
Reserve Cheadle

Repairs to Tarmac 
Path at Cecilly Brook 
Local Nature Reserve 
Cheadle

One Off Ops Services 
(Grounds)

Wrights 
Landscapes

1         
2,500 

Page 42



Contract Description Recurring 
/ One Off

Service Award Term 
(yrs)

 Total 
Contract 

Value 
[£] 

Consultancy 
Support in relation 
to SMDC Local Plan

Preparing for Hearing 
Sessions of 
Examination in Public 
for SMDC Local Plan. 
A Habitats 
Regulations 
Assessment Report 
for the Local Plan

One Off Regeneration Clearview 
Consulting 

1            
470 

Ground vegetation 
management work 
Marshes Hill 
Common 

Conservation  
management of 
heather, ground 
vegetation and gorse 
at Marshes Hill 
Common 

Recurring Ops Services 
(Grounds)

Not Awarded
Not required

n/a  n/a 

SMDC Local Plan 
Support 
Retail need - local 
plan 
Examination 
Support

Re: Local Plan 
examination. 

One Off Regeneration Below RFQ  
Thresholds - 
Web Form 
Terminated 

n/a n/a

Bulky Refuse and 
Recycling Collection 
Service NOVATED

To provide a bulky 
waste and recycling 
collection service. 
(Extension applied)

Recurring Ops Services 
(Waste)

Novation to 
Alliance 
Environmental 
Services

n/a  n/a 

Dry Recyclables 
NOVATED

Transport from Depot 
and disposal of dry 
recyclables 
(Extension applied)

Recurring Ops Services 
(Waste)

Novation to 
Alliance 
Environmental 
Services

n/a  n/a 

Processing of 
Organic Waste 
NOVATED

Transport from Depot 
and treatment of 
compostable waste

Recurring Ops Services 
(Waste)

Novation to 
Alliance 
Environmental 
Services

n/a  n/a 

Page 43



Third Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – JOINT

Contract Description Recurring 
or One 

Off 

Service 
Area

Procedure Award Term 
(yrs)

 Total 
Contract 
Value (£)

Delivery and 
Collection of 
Polling station 
and Election 
Equipment

Delivery and 
collection of polling 
booths, ballot boxes 
and count 
equipment to/from 
specific locations 
across the Alliance

Recurring Legal & 
Election 
Services

Tender Fieldings Light 
Haulage 

1  2+2 £ 50,000

£25,000 
per 

Authority 

Commercial 
Competence 
Framework

To produce a 
commercial 
competence 
framework following 
on from the work 
commenced by 
CAJA

One off OD & 
Transfor
mation

Single 
Source

Camburg 
Collective

1 £ 15,000

£7,500 per 
Authority 

Street Sweepers 
Purchase

Outright purchase of 
street sweepers

One off Operatio
nal 
Services 
- Fleet

Framework Hako 
Aebie Schmidt

1  £603, 272
 

£301,636 
per 

Authority

Page 44



Staffs Moorlands Performance & Customer Feedback Report: April to Dec 2018/19 (Q3)

P
age 45



Staffordshire Moorlands Q3 Summary 

The following report provides Councillors with an overview of performance at Staffs Moorlands for the period April to December 2018 in 
relation to the Council’s corporate plan priorities and the associated performance targets and projects. The report also provides an overview of 
the results from the Council’s customer feedback system in terms of how we handle and learn from complaints and the level of comments and 
compliments.      

Performance Overview 

There are 113 ‘monthly’, ‘quarterly’, and ‘annual only’ reported performance measures at Staffs Moorlands - four more than last year. The 
chart below shows the results for quarter three against 36 indicators and shows a 6% improvement on Q2. The actions being taken to address 
the ‘off track’ measures are detailed at the end of this report.

The report also provides an update on the progress of key projects that contribute to the priority actions outlined in the revised 2018-2019 
Corporate Plan. The table below right explains the colour coding used to describe the current status of these projects / actions. 

45% 38%

17%

Better Weaker No Change
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

 Customer Feedback Overview 

At the close of Quarter Three, 70 Stage 1 complaints had been received, which is a significant reduction on last year. Repeat complaints stand 
at only 1% and performance in handing complaints in 10 days is ahead of the increased target.    

Off Track

In danger of going off Track

On Track

Not yet started / Decision 
awaited

Complete / Closed

81%

19%

On Target Off Track
0

20

40

60

80

100

P
age 46



On Track Off Track
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

SM Aim 1: December Results 2018/19

Better Weaker No Change
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

SM Aim 1: December Trends 2018/19 

Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live and work 

The high proportion of ‘off track’ measures under Aim One relate to three PIs: Benefits claims and change of circumstance processing, and 
households in temporary accommodation – albeit by only one case. Processing times are improving but with the introduction of Universal 
Credit there has been a reduction in the number of new claims which is affecting our ability to significantly reduce the average annual 
processing times. 

The homelessness PI has now been reviewed to ensure it is meaningful and now measures the percentage of cases resolved without 
progressing to a full homeless case. This measure has now replaced the previous measure of the percentage of cases prevented under the 
homelessness reduction act.   

Celebrating Success: 

At the close of December 2018 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:

 Level of external funding awarded for sport and physical activity
 Homeless cases resolved

P
age 47



Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action Status Commentary – December
Help to ensure, through the scrutiny work programme, that 
partner service provision, particularly health provision for 
the elderly, is effective

The Health O&S Panel met on the 12th September 2018 at which 
a representative from the Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation 
Trust was in attendance to explain to the Panel the recent 
changes to diabetic eye screening. 
Members also received a presentation from the North 
Staffordshire Combined Healthcare NHS Trust regarding support 
for children with eating disorders.
The panel discussed the current situation with Leek Moorlands 
Hospital and decided that a working group should be established 
to look into dementia care.
At the request of members, two additional items were added to 
the work programme: to invite Changes (a mental health charity) 
to a meeting and the Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation 
Trust in relation to social care. 
The next meeting will be held on 13th February.

Undertake detailed process benchmarking with high 
performing / low cost councils with a view to identifying 
value for money improvements for Housing Benefit 
processing

New benchmarking packs issued 20th July identifying low 
cost/high performing authorities for investigation by Manager.

Ensure the Council is compliant with the requirements of the 
new Homelessness Reduction Act 

Activities are on track as identified in the Action Plan. The 
temporary accommodation initiative for Staffordshire 
Moorlands has been approved by members and work will now 
progress with this. 

Implement the Council’s new sport and physical activity 
strategy and carry out research into nil cost facility provision 
being achieved by other councils; in order to achieve 
improved health and value for money outcomes    

Staffordshire Moorlands: A progress report on the delivery of 
the Council’s Strategy for Physical Activity and Sport was 
presented to members of the Council’s Service Delivery O&S 
committee on the 26th September. Members noted and 
approved the progress being made with the delivery of the 
strategy. An assessment and report on the operation and future 
provision of the Council’s leisure facilities was completed by 
specialist consultants FMG in and this has been presented to 

P
age 48



Priority Action Status Commentary – December
AMT. Part of this report included benchmarking and analysis of 
performance of public leisure facilities with other comparable 
local authorities. This work and information will inform the 
Council’s decisions on future leisure provision. The contract 
extension report for Staffordshire Moorlands was presented to 
Cabinet in December, the next steps will be to finalise the legal 
documentation supporting the contract extension.

Complete the review of the CCTV system and implement the 
agreed recommendations

A report was considered at the Community Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel in January and the approach by Cabinet at its February 
meeting. New arrangements for monitoring will commence from 
May 2019.

Develop a strategy for further development of affordable 
and specialist housing

Continuing to review options for the future of Ascent.

Work with Staffordshire County Council and other partners 
to ensure an effective partnership with central government

Links to strategic partnerships project above.P
age 49



On Track Off Track
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

 SM Aim 2 : December Results 
2018/19

Better Weaker No Change
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

SM Aim 2 : December Trends 
2018/19

Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money

Aim two is performing strongly with the vast majority of measures on track and over half performing better than last year. The only ‘off track’ 
measures relates to invoice processing and procurement activity on the forward plan.           

Celebrating Success:    

At the close of December 2018 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:

 FOI requests
 Channel shift and social media followers
 Repeat complaints and complaint handling
 IT systems and network availability
 Sickness absence levels
 Internal audit recommendations implemented

Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

P
age 50



Priority Action Status Commentary – December
Deliver the Channel Shift Programme The digital portal is on track. CGI are now working on the digital strategy which will 

be presented to the Board. This will inform the Channel Shift programme for 2019 
onwards.
E billing: a requirement specification has been sent to IEG4 for comment.

The phase 2 Full Business Case has been taken to channel shift board, funding/ 
budgeting requirements for the Collective system are required from finance before 
progressing. PID has been provisionally approved, awaiting confirmation to move 
forward.

A full Channel Shift Programme review is to take place in line with the Digital 
Strategy. A workshop is to be arranged at the beginning of January. Northgate are 
going to identify the requirements going forward.

Provide advice and support for residents 
affected by the rollout of Universal Credit 
across Staffordshire Moorlands  in 2018 in 
order to help ensure a smooth transition 
to the new system

We are continuing to review and upskill staff to deal with complex cases as they 
arise and are meeting with CAB to agree the referral process and improve 
partnership working. We are also visiting other organisations to look at best 
practice and move forwards positively.

Continue to embed good information 
management practices through the 
ASSURED framework

The Assured framework is regularly publicised via ‘Keeping You Informed’ and staff 
are encouraged to report data breaches. The GDPR action plan is on track, progress 
is monitored through the Information Governance Group. 
A number of training sessions have taken place to help key staff comply with GDPR, 
with further sessions planned for staff requiring in depth training and online 
training for all other staff. 
Information Asset Registers are progressing across service areas and Protective 
Marking briefing sessions are taking place with teams as required. 
Our approach to Data Protection Impact Assessments has been reviewed following 
training and will be integrated into procurement and project management 
processes.  

Develop and implement a plan to identify 
new and innovative ways of generating 
income

All income generation challenge meetings have been completed and a target has 
been included as part of the new efficiency and rationalisation strategy 2017/18 – 
20/21. 
Commercial properties - Industrial Units refurbishment work completed and last 
units due to be re-let. Agent engaged for lease renewals and rent reviews, 3 lettings 

P
age 51



Priority Action Status Commentary – December
have now been completed. Commercial leases are being reviewed.
Fees and charges - Next review for 2019/20 budget setting/MTFP. Cash-up against 
efficiency target to be undertaken during 2018/19.
Advertising/Sponsorship - Community Partners Ltd have confirmed that the start 
date for the project consultancy piece is Tuesday 20th November.
Affordable Housing - Continuing to review options for the future of Ascent.
Empty Homes - The working group meeting took place on 11th October and agreed 
an approach for working with EPIC housing association to utilise Affordable Homes 
Programme funding to target empty properties in Staffordshire Moorlands. 
Coinciding with national empty homes week, press releases promoted the scheme 
and letters will initially target empty property owners in Biddulph East, Cheadle 
North East, Leek North and Leek East.

Refresh and implement the Asset 
Management Plan, including a review of 
public estate, and ensure adequate 
facilities management arrangements are 
in place

Facilities Management: An agreement to extend has been made with DCC until 
31/03/2019.
Corporate and other relevant policies have been fed through to CIPFA for the Asset 
Management Plan. Team members have met with CIPFA regarding the compliance 
audit and we await the report.

P
age 52



On Track Off Track
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

SM Aim 3: December Results 2018/19 

Better Weaker No Change
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

SM Aim 3 : December Trends 2018/19 

Aim 3: Help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns and 
villages  

The Council has all of its Planning targets on track as at the close of Quarter Three, including 100% of ‘major’ applications determined on time.          

Celebrating Success:    

At the close of December 2018 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:

 Major, Minor and other planning applications processed on time
 Major and minor developments allowed on appeal

P
age 53



Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action Status Commentary – December
Undertake detailed process benchmarking 
with high performing / low cost councils 
with a view to identifying value for money 
improvements for Planning application 
processing

New benchmarking packs issued 20th July for investigation by Manager who is 
discussing the matter with the authorities that come out as low cost and high 
performance. 

Implement the town deal in Biddulph in 
partnership with Biddulph Town Council

The draft stage 1 report (assembly of baseline information) has been completed 
and reviewed; a revised version was issued in November. The project started later 
than anticipated due to a lack of tender returns via the HCA framework. Work 
tendered for open procurement resulted in numerous bidders and a revised project 
timescale has been agreed.

Support the development of Cornhill and 
improved rail links

Discussions commenced regarding a potential joint venture between SMDC and the 
landowner and developer of an adjacent site to deliver both Cornhill West (outline 
pp) and Cornhill East (SMDC ownership). A meeting has been scheduled with 
Homes England to explore additional support. The whole site Masterplan is now 
complete. A bid has been submitted to LGF and the outcome is expected early in 
2019.

Develop and implement plans to extend 
the public market operations 

In light of the additional works which have been requested and delays caused by 
the roof light supplier, the revised work programme for the Butter Market is now 
expected to be completed in February 2019.

The wider market improvement strategy is progressing well and Councillors 
continue to be updated on a monthly basis.

Develop a master plan for the Leek Mill 
Quarter

The Leek Mill Quarter masterplan is not being commissioned at present as the sale 
of the Social Services building and the new ownership of London Mill means that 
the private sector will lead on this.

 Support the development of the former 
Churnet Works site in Leek

New industrial units on Sainsbury's site (Churnet works): LEP funding is agreed 
towards the purchase cost. The external valuation report is now complete and will 
be considered internally before a report is prepared. 

 Submit the Draft Local Plan to the 
Planning Inspector by the end of June 
2018

The hearing sessions are now complete. The adoption of the Local Plan in line with 
the timetable depends on the Inspector's capacity to draw his conclusions on time 
and whether he believes that further hearing sessions are required. The post 
hearing advice is due within the next month and could constitute a slippage of 
around a month. Timescales are also dependant on whether approval is required by 

P
age 54



Priority Action Status Commentary – December
Council Assembly to consult on the main modifications to the plan.

P
age 55



On Track Off Track
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%
SM Aim 4: December Results 2018/19

Better Weaker No Change
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

SM Aim 4 : December Trends 2018/19

Aim 4: Protect and Improve the Environment

  

Performance is strong under aim four with the only off track areas being the estimated waste recycling and residual waste tonnages, which 
were adversely affected by the dry summer.                   

          

Celebrating Success:    

At the close of December 2018 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:

 Missed bins
 Fly-tipping incidents
 ASB enforcements
 Paper consumption

Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

P
age 56



Priority Action Status Commentary – December
 Successfully deliver Phases 2 and 3 of the 
transfer of services to Alliance 
Environmental Services Ltd, our new joint 
venture company, to deliver waste, 
streets and ground maintenance services 
on behalf of the Council in order to 
achieve improved performance and value 
for money outcomes.

Awaiting confirmation of phase 3 go live date in order for the consultation process 
to commence.

Collective business case is also awaiting financial evaluation to be fed into the mid- 
term financial plan.

Establish a developer open space 
contributions plan

 

An Open Space Audit and Playing Pitch Strategy has been completed and forms part 
of a wider Developer Contributions SPD (Supplementary Planning Document). The 
intention is to contract this work out to a consultant and the draft specification is 
now being developed. The tender will be advertised in January 2019 with a view to 
an appointment being made in February. Following consultation, the SPD should be 
adopted by the end of 2019. 

Make Improvements to the Tean Road 
Recreation ground in Cheadle

Design stages with the preferred skate park contractor have commenced.  A 
consultation event with local young people took place in November with the 
contractor present. Quotations for the tennis court, mega fencing and toddlers play 
provision have been received and have been authorised by CTC. A programme for 
installations has been agreed.

Identify and implement an approach to 
reduce the cost of country parks

There remains a significant volume of work to be completed in relation to the 
estate/property matters and related legal documentation. Progress has been slow 
with SOTCC in recent months; we require their support to transfer the freehold and 
related tenancies and cannot fully complete the project without this aspect being 
completed.

Develop a plan to improve Brough Park 
with Heritage Lottery Fund support

The construction of the skate park is on schedule and anticipated completion is the 
end of December (weather dependent).ROSPA inspection was scheduled for 7th 
December. Planning permission will be required for the floodlighting and the 
contractors are handling the application.

Reduce the Council’s energy consumption 
and associated costs (through the Asset 
Management Plan)

Corporate and other relevant policies have been fed through to CIPFA for the Asset 
Management Plan. Team members have met with CIPFA regarding the compliance 
audit and we await the report.

P
age 57



P
age 58



P
age 59



Areas for Improvement: December 2018 

Measure of Success (PI) Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2018/19

Result 
Dec 2018  

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve)

 Housing Benefits 
Processing: Time taken to 

process new claims 

18 days 22.9 days

Housing Benefits Processing: 
Time taken to process 

changes of circumstance

7 days 10.7 days

There is a slight improvement this month but the 
number of Housing Benefit New Claims is 
reducing due to the introduction of Universal 
Credit, this makes it difficult to make significant 
differences to the average time to process the 
claims.

There is a slight improvement this month and we 
anticipate some very quick changes to be 
processed in the next few weeks which should 
reduce the average figure further.

Number of households in 
temporary accommodation

Aim 1: Increased supply of 
good quality affordable 

homes

Head of Customer 
Services

     10 11 The temperature/time of year have increased the 
pressure on temporary and/or emergency 
accommodation

% of invoices paid in line 
with terms of contract

Aim 2: Effective use of 
financial and other 

resources to ensure value 
for money

Finance and 
Procurement 

Manager

96% 91% Payments over 30 days equated to 12% of the 
total payments made in December of which 63% 
of payments to suppliers were actually made in 
less than 10 days.  34% of the late payments were 
due to delays for goods receipting (GRNs) in a 
number of service areas, Services will be 
reminded about the necessity for prompt GRNs to 
initiate the payment and if in dispute to clearly 
communicate this to the creditors’ team. The 
remainder were due to non compliant invoices 
without Purchase orders.  Considering the team is 
currently working on a reduced capacity, 9% (3 
invoices) were due to a creditors team delay, we 
are continuing the momentum to improve the PI 
for the year end.

P
age 60



Measure of Success (PI) Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2018/19

Result 
Dec 2018  

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve)

% of household waste sent 
for reuse, recycling and 

composting

59% 54.71% Results are estimated as data not received in time 
for submission from SCC or contractors

KG's of residual waste per 
household.

Aim 4: 
Effective recycling and 

waste management

Head of Operational 
Services

375kg 331kg Results are estimated as data not received in time 
for submission from SCC or contractors

Alliance Measures

% of Procurement activity 
on forward plan (Joint 

Alliance measure)

Aim 2: Effective use of 
financial and other 

resources to ensure value 
for money

Finance and 
Procurement 

Manager

72% 62.18%
A number of reactive lower value single source 

commissions were made earlier in the year, some 
of which were in relation to the SMDC local plan. 
Quarter three service reviews were deferred to 

January and are now taking place. Out of 32 
exercises completed this quarter, 21% were 
reactive due to urgent requests. 78 % were 

planned activity. If we deducted the reactive 
cases, the year to date result would be 68%- 

much closer to target.

For a full list of all performance measures and the Q3 results please visit the Performance Management page on the Intranet or click on this link. 
http://hpbc.alliance-online.org/transformation/performance-management  

P
age 61

http://hpbc.alliance-online.org/transformation/performance-management


T
his page is intentionally left blank



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report to Cabinet

12th February 2019

Appendix Attached
 Appendix A (Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23)
 Appendix B (Capital Strategy 2019/20)
 Appendix C (Fees & Charges 2018/19)
 Appendix D (Procurement Forward Plan 2018/19)

1. Reason for the Report

1.1      The purpose of the report is to present the proposed Budget for 2019/20, 
updated Medium-Term Financial Plan 2019/20 – 2022/23, Capital Strategy 
2019/20, proposed Fees and Charges for 2019/20 and Procurement Forward 
Plan 2019/20.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That members support the following recommendations to Council:

 Approves the General Fund Budget for 2019/20 as detailed in Appendix A 
(section 8)

 Approves the revised Medium-Term Financial Plan (2019/20 to 2022/23) 
as detailed in Appendix A, including the revised Capital Programme 
(attached at Annex A)

 Approves the Capital Strategy 2019/20 as set out in Appendix B

 Approves the proposed Fees and Charges for 2019/20 as detailed in 
Appendix C

TITLE: 2019/20 Budget & Medium Term Financial 
Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23

PORTFOLIO HOLDER Cllr Sybil Ralphs – Leader

CONTACT OFFICERS: Claire Hazeldene – Finance & Procurement 
Manager

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Page 63

Agenda Item 8.3

file:///C:/Users/chazeldene/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Documents%20and%20Settings/cstone/Local%20Settings/astokes/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/9RF23P99/SMDC%20-%20Budget%202012-13%20&%20MTFP%20App%20A%20(15-02-12).doc


 Approves the proposed Procurement Forward Plan for 2019/20, providing 
the authority to procure based on procurement activity detailed in 
Appendix D

 Approves a Band D Council Tax of £150.54 for 2019/20 (an increase of 
2.9% from 2018/19)

 Approves a Band D Council Tax of £51.93 for Leek and £10.44 for 
Biddulph for 2019/20 (an increase of 2.9% from 2018/19) in respect of 
Special District Expenses

 Notes the Chief Finance Officer's view that the level of reserves are 
adequate for the Council based on this budget and the circumstances in 
place at the time of preparing it (Appendix A section 7)

3. Executive Summary

3.1 This report makes recommendations to Council for the budget and the level of 
Council Tax for 2019/20. The report also provides an update on the Council’s 
medium-term financial position through to 2022/23.  Additionally, it establishes 
an overarching Capital Strategy, sets out the fees and charges proposed for 
2019/20 and details the Procurement Forward Plan 2019/20.

3.2      The budget setting and medium term financial planning process provides the 
Council with the opportunity to plan its delivery of public services in 
accordance with local priorities and against the backdrop of unprecedented 
public sector financial constraint. 

3.3      The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) has been updated in accordance 
with the budget setting process. The MTFP presents the Council’s finances 
over a four-year period, namely 2019/20 to 2022/23 and provides:- 

 Details of local spending influences in the context of the Corporate Plan 
 A focus on the transformation programme and the consequential financial 

implications, including the capital programme and efficiency & 
rationalisation plan 

 Updated inflation and interest assumptions using the latest forecasts and 
the impact of any budgetary demand

 An update on any national issues that will impact on the Council’s financial 
position

3.4     The 2018/19 – 2021/22 MTFP was approved by the Council in February 2018, 
and showed a balanced position. However the balanced position was 
dependent on the continued delivery of a £3.14 million four-year Efficiency & 
Rationalisation Programme (having achieved the 2017/18 savings target of 
£661,000). The balanced position also relied upon the overall use of £0.3 
million in reserves to meet shortfalls in the early years of the plan whilst the 
efficiency programme is being implemented.   

Page 64



3.5      The quarter three outturn position for 2018/19 is forecasting a £148,430 
underspend, but anticipates a shortfall against the £830,000 efficiency target 
for 2018/19.  

3.6 Having completed the annual budget exercise, a balanced budget for 2019/20 
has been achieved, with the inclusion of a reprofiled efficiency and 
rationalisation target of £935,000 (£500,000 new target and £435,000 rolled 
forward from 2018/19) and a small contribution of £3,140 into contingency 
reserves.

3.7      The final General Fund budget proposal for 2019/20 provides for a net budget 
of £10,177,270 and a Council Tax increase of 2.9%.  Consequently, the Band 
D Council Tax increases to £150.54, with the Special District Expenses 
increasing to £51.93 (Leek) and £10.44 (Biddulph) respectively   

3.8 A new financial year (2022/23) has now been added to the MTFP and the 
overall financial assumptions have been updated for the four years.  This has 
resulted in a small surplus position of £29,370 by the end of 2022/23. An 
overall contribution of £325,810 into reserves is reflected during the 4 year life 
of the Plan.

3.9     The changed position is primarily due to:

 Additional forecast Business Rates income - from forecast business 
rates retention plus an additional £200,000 assumed in 2019/20 as a 
result of being in the 75% business rates pilot. However, there is 
uncertainty surrounding the future Business Rates system and volatility in 
forecasting retention amounts due to the amount of variables involved 
and risk surrounding appeals.   

 Additional Council Tax income – reflecting an assumption that 2.9% 
increases will be applied throughout the MTFP.

These are partially offset by:-

 Additional borrowing costs– reflecting the consequential revenue costs 
of the fleet procurement requirements within the MTFP, which will result 
in longer-term revenue savings to be realised against the efficiency 
programme 

3.10 The capital programme has been updated and allows for additional investment 
in priority areas i.e. asset management plan and fleet management.  The 
Medium Term Financial Plan includes an updated capital programme of 
£18,501,460 over the period 2018/19 – 2022/23.
.  

3.11 Achieving a balanced budget over the medium-term relies upon delivery of the 
Council's approved Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy.  The strategy was 
presented and approved as part of the MTFP update in February 2017 which 
focused on both reducing expenditure and increasing income.  The main areas 
of focus being:

Page 65



 Major Procurements – focus on Waste Collection & Environment 
Services, Leisure Management and Facilities Management

 Asset Management Plan – continuation of the existing priority of 
rationalising the Council’s asset base with a focus around priorities in 
order to allow for the necessary capital investment

 Growth – development of a clear focus upon housing and economic 
growth based upon the established Local Plan. 

 Income Generation – focus on increasing the yield from existing 
sources of income and a drive towards identifying new sources of income

 Rationalisation – a commitment to reducing expenditure on non-priority 
areas of spend e.g. management arrangements, channel shift, non-
statutory services 

3.12 Current progression against the efficiency programme has been positive, with 
the 2017/18 achieved, however, it is likely that thee will be a shortfall against 
the 2018/19 savings target due to slippage in the programme.  Consequently, 
the Efficiency Programme has been reviewed and re-profiled based on the 
estimated timing / value of savings anticipated for the various schemes.   

3.13 The ability to progress and achieve the overall efficiency programme target is 
underpinned by the following:

 The realisation of savings from the implementation of an alternative 
delivery model for Waste, Streets and Parks via the transfer of services to 
trading company Alliance Environment Services

 A review of current leisure centre provision in order to reduce the 
Council’s subsidy

 The approval and delivery of the Local Plan in order to achieve income 
generation from sustained housing and economic growth 

 Reviewing fees and charges and identifying new sources of income 
generation 

 Retained business rates through economic growth and the saving of the 
levy payable to central government as a consequence of the Council's 
membership of the Staffordshire Business Rates Pool (as per the current 
business rates system) 

4.      How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the 
effective management of financial resources, which is the subject of this 
report.

5.      Options and Analysis

5.1 The report is a statement of fact. As such there are no options to consider.

Page 66



6.  Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None.

6.2 Workforce
None.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality and 
Diversity policies.

An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) has been undertaken on the 
Corporate Plan, which feeds into budget plans.

6.4 Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the 
report.

6.5 Legal
None.

16.6 Sustainability
None.

6.7 External Consultation
The Council’s budget plans are the subject of an annual public consultation 
exercise. Full details are contained within the plan

6.8  Risk A Risk Assessment
A full risk analysis has been undertaken which is contained within the plan

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

Various background working papers Moorlands House Claire Hazeldene
Finance & Procurement Manager
01538 395400 Ext. 4191

Keith Pointon
Principal Finance Officer (Financial 
Planning)
01538 395400 Ext. 4193

6.4

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

                              

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN             
2019/20 to 2022/23

February 2019

Page 69



INDEX

1 Introduction

2 Strategic Priorities

3 Current Spending Levels

4 Transformation Programme
4.1   Introduction  

   4.2        Capital Strategy (to be presented Feb 2019)
4.3   Capital Programme
4.4   Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy
4.5   Member Priority Projects
4.6   Alliance Environment Services (AES)

5 Financial Forecasts
5.1 Interest Rates
5.2 Inflationary Projections
5.3 Budgetary Demand
5.4 Budget Growth
5.5 Pensions

6 Funding & Income Generation
6.1 Council Tax 
6.2 Business Rates Retention 
6.3 Collection Fund
6.4 Income from Government Grants
6.5 Fees & Charges

7 Risks, Contingencies & Use of Reserves 

8 Budget 2019/20

9 General Fund Revenue Financial Position 

10 Consultation

Annex A Proposed Capital Programme  
Annex B Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy
Annex C Fees and Charges – Income Categories
Annex D MTFP Principal Risks
Annex E Proposed Revenue Budget  

Page 70



1. Introduction

1.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is a key element of the Council’s 
budget and policy framework. It aims to ensure resources are directed 
effectively and efficiently towards delivery of the Corporate Plan. It describes 
the financial direction of the Council for planning purposes and outlines the 
financial pressures the Council is likely to experience over the next 4 years. 

1.2. The medium term financial planning process establishes how available 
resources will be allocated to services in line with Council priorities which have 
been determined following consultation with residents, councillors and other 
stakeholders. The process facilitates the Council in planning the prudent 
management of its finances, in building resilience and in providing for the needs 
of residents over the long term.  

1.3. The MTFP is updated regularly to fit in with the budget cycle. This review of the 
MTFP builds on the existing strategy and updates assumptions to reflect known 
changes to income, costs and funding. The plan incorporates revenue and 
capital financial projections over the four years 2019/20 to 2022/23. It also 
includes an assessment of key risks and a presentation of longer term financial 
issues which have the potential to impact on the Council.  

1.4. The Council will demonstrate economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the 
application of its resources. Value for Money (VFM) is maximised when there is 
an optimum balance between economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
 Economy: the price the Council pays for providing its services 
 Efficiency: how much the Council gets out of what’s put in (productivity) 
 Effectiveness: value of the impact achieved (quantitative or qualitative) 

2. Strategic Priorities

2.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan is driven by local priorities. The Council’s 
spending strategy is set out in the Corporate Plan formally adopted by 
members of the Council.

2.2. Following the elections in May 2015, there was a fundamental review of the 
Corporate Plan focussing on the period 2015-2019 (up to the end of the current 
political administration).

2.3. The Council’s 4-year Corporate Plan (2015-2019) articulates the aims, objectives 
and priority actions, which the Council is working to achieve over this period. Its 
delivery is measured through the Performance Framework, which has at its centre 
the three pillars of value for money - efficiency, economy and effectiveness.  It in 
effect determines the Council’s commitments in the delivery of services and 
community leadership to the citizens of Staffordshire Moorlands.

2.4. The Council’s Corporate Plan was developed after taking into account the 
views and aspirations of Staffordshire Moorlands citizens and having come to a 
clear understanding of empirical evidence. The plan has taken due recognition 
of the national and regional policy framework.  It has taken on board learning 

Page 71



from the progress made by the Council and has benefitted from input from 
Members at a priority setting event which was held in September 2015.

2.5. The opportunity was taken, at the mid-point of the current administration, to 
reflect on the progress made during the first two years of the Plan and to 
reiterate the Council’s commitment to the remaining objectives as well as 
adding any new areas of priority that have emerged since the Plan was first 
developed.

2.6. The Council in now in the last year of the current Corporate Plan, with 
Staffordshire Moorlands District Elections taking place in May 2019.

2.7. The Council’s vision is expressed as:   

“Achieving Excellence in the delivery of high quality services that meet the 
needs and aspirations of our communities” 

This vision is articulated further by four aims:-: 
 Help create a safer and healthier environment for our communiites to live 

and work
 Meet our financial challenges and provide value for money
 Help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of 

towns and villages
 Protect and improve the environment 

2.8. These aims are supported by a number of objectives which also provide the 
framework for the delivery of service plans. The Council’s objectives are 
summarised below: 

Aim Objectives

1 Help create a safer and 
healthier environment for 
our communities to live 
and work

 Increased supply of good quality affordable homes
 Develop a positive relationship with communities
 Effective relationship with strategic partners
 Effective support of community safety arrangements 

including CCTV
 Provision of sports facilities and leisure opportunities 

focused upon improving health

2 Meet our financial 
challenges and provide 
value for money

 Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure 
value for money

 Ensure services are easily available to all our residents 
in the appropriate channels and provided “right first 
time”

 A high performing and well motivated workforce
 More effective use of Council assets

3 Help create a strong 
economy by supporting 
further regeneration of 
towns and villages 

 Encourage business start-ups and enterprises
 Flourishing town centres that support the local economy
 Encourage and develop tourism
 High quality development and building control with an 

“open for business” approach

Page 72



Aim Objectives

4 Protect and improve the 
environment 

 Effective recycling and waste management
 Promote environmentally sustainable policies and 

practices
 Provision of high quality public amenities, clean streets 

and environmental health
 Provision of quality parks and open spaces
 Car parking arrangements that meet the needs of 

residents, businesses and visitors

2.9. The Council is committed to playing the lead role in championing the local area. 
In so doing the Council recognises its community leadership role.  Fulfilling this 
role effectively means influencing partners in a number of key areas in order to 
ensure that services are shaped and delivered around the needs and 
aspirations of citizens. 

2.10. The Council’s influencing role is focused in the following areas:
 Support the police and other partners to reduce crime, the fear of crime and 

anti social behaviour
 Ensure there is effective health provision particularly for the elderly
 Support the development of rail links to the city of Stoke-on-Trent
 Ensure that the services provided by other public sector partners meet the 

needs of residents
 Work with Staffordshire County Council and other partners to ensure an 

effective partnership with central government

2.11. The Plan identifies key priority outcomes, which will be the highest priority in the 
development of performance targets and key actions.  A significant proportion 
of the Council’s resources will be directed towards achieving them:-  

Aim Objectives

1 Help create a safer and 
healthier environment for 
our communities to live 
and work

 Increased supply of quality affordable homes
 Improved  health
 Improved community safety

2 Meet our financial 
challenges and provide 
value for money

 Balanced and sustainable medium term financial plan 
position

 Council services provide value for money
 High level of resident and customer satisfaction

3 Help create a strong 
economy by supporting 
further regeneration of 
towns and villages 

 Sustainable towns and rural communities
 Increased economic growth

4 Protect and improve the 
environment 

 High recycling rates
 Quality parks and open spaces and clean streets

Page 73



2.12. The Council maintains a Strategic Alliance with High Peak Borough Council, 
formed around the principle of shared services in the pursuit of efficiency and 
realisation of savings. The Strategic Alliance has enabled the implementation 
and transformation of a joint management structure and services, consequently 
realising significant efficiency savings. 

2.13. The Council intends to continue to drive savings and service improvements 
through collaboration with its Alliance partner.

3. Current Spending Levels

3.1. The starting point for the development of the MTFP is the current level of 
spending and the approved capital expenditure commitments.

3.2. The Council’s current year (2018/19) General Fund budget can be summarised 
as follows: 

Income and Expenditure 2018/19 
Budget

 £
Employees 8,604,930
Premises 1,938,950
Transport 1,203,260
Supplies & Services 4,573,350
Benefits 5,010
Borrowing 272,760
Parish Grant 13,830
Financing Costs 555,000
Contribution to / (from) Reserves and 
Balances

      
(801,050)

  

Total Expenditure 16,366,040

Fees and Charges / Other Income (5,797,000)
Interest Receipts (73,590)
Ascent LLP Income (546,690)
  

Net Expenditure 9,948,760

3.3. The net expenditure is financed as follows: 

Financing 2018/19 
Budget

 £
Council Tax   (5,199,590)
Government Funding       (389,100)
New Homes Bonus       (682,090)
Business Rates Retention   (3,530,390)
Collection Fund Deficit        590,410 
Efficiency Requirement       (738,000)
Total Financing   (9,948,760)

Page 74



3.4. The medium-term projection for capital commitments approved by Members in 
February 2018 is detailed below: -   

Service Area 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total 
 £ £ £ £ £ £

Asset Management Plan 932,840 1,749,570 617,400
     

393,470 
  

2,640,970 6,334,250
Affordable Housing              -                -                -                -                -                 -   
Growth Fund              -                -                -                -                -                 -   
Housing Grants 501,630 1,241,000 1,211,000 1,211,000 1,211,000   5,375,630 
ICT Strategy 104,310 19,390 19,390      19,390      19,390 181,870
Other Schemes 173,690 600,000 150,000 50,000      50,000 1,023,690
Total Programme 1,712,470 3,609,960 1,997,790 1,673,860 3,921,360 12,915,440 
Financed by:-       
External Contributions 775,850 1,241,000 1,211,000 1,211,000 1,211,000 5,649,850
Capital Receipts              -        21,000 150,000 190,000              -   361,000
Capital Reserve    420,000              -                -                -                -   420,000
S106 Planning      16,700    114,000              -                -                -   130,700
Borrowing    499,920 2,233,960 636,790    272,860 2,710,360 6,353,890

Total  Financing 1,712,470 3,609,960 1,997,790 1,673,860
  

3,921,360 12,915,440

4. Transformation Programme

4.1. Introduction 

4.1.1. The Council’s ‘transformation programme’ incorporates all major projects which 
meet the strategic priorities of the authority and have significant financial 
implications, including:-
 The Capital Programme 
 The Efficiency and Rationalisation strategy
 Member Priority Projects
 Alliance Environmental Services (AES)

4.1.2. The delivery of transformation programme projects is monitored by the 
Transformation Board made up of Directors, Heads of Service along with key 
Corporate Service Managers and officers.  A Director is allocated as ‘project 
executive’ and a full business case appraisal is completed for each project.

4.1.3. The progress and current financial projections of the transformation programme 
is explored below along with any potential revenue and capital consequences.  
Any further work required to identify the financial implications of the programme 
are discussed and will feed into the November 2019 MTFP update process.

Page 75



4.2 Capital Strategy 

4.2.1 In accordance with the requirements of the 2017 edition of the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code for 
Capital Finance in Local Authorities, a Capital Strategy has been produced for 
2019/20 

4.2.2 The Strategy, which is being presented to members along side this report, 
explains how capital expenditure and investment decisions are taken in line 
with the Council’s Corporate Plan and service objectives, taking account of 
stewardship, value for money, prudence, risk management, sustainability and 
affordability. 

4.2.3 The Capital Strategy is detailed in APPENDIX B.

4.3       Capital Programme 

4.3.1 The Capital Programme presented to Members in February 2018 has been 
reviewed, re-profiled and updated to reflect the latest position in terms of 
capital projections to 31st March 2023.

4.3.2 The latest capital projections, specifically identifying the major schemes, are 
summarised in the table below.  Full detail is attached in Annex A.

Service Area 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total 
 £ £ £ £ £ £
Asset Management Plan 483,750 1,467,080 1,085,220 1,036,300 1,627,450 5,699,800
Housing Grants 1,161,650 1,256,000 1,226,000 1,211,000 1,211,000   6,065,650 
ICT Strategy              -   255,800              -                -                -   255,800
Fleet Management 1,346,300 1,325,750 2,468,290 129,250 30,000 5,299,590
Other Schemes 600,000 480,620 50,000 50,000              -   1,180,620
Total Programme 3,591,700 4,785,250 4,829,510 2,426,550 2,868,450 18,501,460 
Financed by:-       
External Contributions 1,211,000 1,238,390 1,211,000 1,211,000 1,211,000 6,082,390
Capital Receipts              -        40,000              -      140,000              -   180,000
General Fund Balances    953,730              -                -                -                -        953,730 
Capital Reserve    392,570 1,620,430              -                -                -   2,013,000
S106 Planning    135,690              -                -                -                -   135,690
Borrowing    898,710 1,886,430 3,618,510 1,075,550 1,657,450 9,136,650
Total  Financing 3,591,700 4,785,250 4,829,510 2,426,550 2,868,450 18,501,460

4.3.3 The capital projections above include the carry forward of £93,190 capital 
budgets from 2017/18, a further prior year adjustment of £16,850, an increase 
to the 2018/19 programme of £2,084,890 (to fund the purchase of fleet – as 
approved by Council in May 2018) and increased budget provision of  £50,000 
against  an existing scheme  as approved by Members.

Page 76



Asset Management Plan (AMP) 

4.3.4 It is essential that the Council maintains an asset base, which delivers the 
ambitions of the Corporate Plan – however, this needs to be affordable.  The 
Capital Strategy (Appendix B) sets out the outcomes and actions emerging 
from a report presented to Cabinet on 20th September 2016 – which was based 
on the result of asset condition surveys completed on the Council’s property 
portfolio.  

4.3.5 This included the potential capital and revenue financial implications of 
maintaining the Council’s current property assets over a 30 year period, as 
summarised below:- 

SMDC AMP Capital Investment & Revenue 
Consequence                                                             

(AS AT SEPT 2016)
2016-17 – 
2019-20

2020-21 – 
2045-46            

(26 years)
TOTAL

£ £ £

Public Buildings 1,010,850 2,761,600 3,772,450
Car Parks 754,000 4,293,431 5,047,431
Public Conveniences 181,400 415,800 597,200
Waterways & Infrastructure Assets 479,361 448,761 928,122
Leisure Centres 310,000 10,005,995 10,315,995
Depots and Parks Buildings 97,070 2,355,714 2,452,784
Industrial Units 80,380 392,050 472,430
TOTAL 2,913,061 20,673,351 23,586,412

Revenue Consequences (cost of borrowing) 115,959 943,653 1,059,612

4.3.6 This position has been reviewed and updated in February 2017 and 2018 to 
take account of any changes and updates to stock information since 
September 2016, and has subsequently been reviewed again for the purposes 
of this report.   

4.3.7  The table below reflects the updated capital investment requirements as at 
February 2019, adjusted for 2017/18 actual outturn, any in-year re-profiling 
that has taken place in 2018/19 and changes to spending plans – which 
reduces the forecast capital spend by £906,040 over the 30 years from the 
original position; reported in September 2016.

MTFPSMDC AMP Capital 
Investment & Revenue 

Consequences
2016-17 
(actuals)

2017/18 
(actuals) 2018/19– 

2021/22 2022/23
2023/24 -  

2045/46  (23 
Years )       

TOTAL

 £ £ £ £ £ £
Public Buildings 70,020 410,000 638,360 861,900 2,153,770 4,134,050
Car Parks - 1,290 684,710 676,930 3,616,502 4,979,432
Public Conveniences - 3,280 143,900 53,900 361,900 562,980
Waterways & Infrastructure 5,270 261,090 376,270 - 343,761 986,391
Leisure Centres 1,700 95,170 1,356,790 - 7,669,215 9,122,875
Depots and Parks Buildings - - 791,940 34,720 1,595,554 2,422,214
Industrial Units - - 80,380 - 392,050 472,430
TOTAL 76,990 770,830 4,072,350 1,627,450 16,132,752 22,680,372
Revenue Consequences - 11,250 196,450 63,490 665,320 936,510

Page 77



4.3.8   The Chartered Institute of Public Finance Accountancy (CIPFA) Property Team 
has been commissioned to support the Council in producing an Asset 
Management Strategy to ensure the future delivery of efficient asset 
management; this work is underway and will be reported to Members in due 
course.

4.3.9  Any positive revenue implications of the asset management strategy, for 
example, reduced annual maintenance and utility costs due to fewer and/or 
more efficient buildings and income receipts from shared accommodation 
partners will be taken towards the efficiency programme.

  Affordable Housing Project

4.3.10 The Council’s affordable housing project is being delivered via Ascent 
Housing – the joint venture established by the Council in partnership with Your 
Housing.  Phase one resulted in 276 housing units.

4.3.11 The £5 million debenture facility was fully drawn in 2014/15, and is generating 
annual income of £100,000 for the remainder of the 25 year period (subject to 
early repayments by Ascent).

4.3.12 £14 million of the £20 million loan facility has been drawn to date, it is 
assumed for the purposes of this report that the remaining £6million loan 
facility will not be drawn during the 4 year period (which is subject to review as 
per paragraph 4.2.14) 

4.3.13 The first tranche of the loan facility matured in October 2017, the £7m was 
refinanced by Ascent with the Council for a short-term period of 1 year until 
October 2018; and has since be refinanced again for another short-term 
period of up to 1 year from October 2018 with a slightly improved interest rate.

4.3.14 The short-term refinancing has been completed whilst a full review of the 
Ascent business plan and wider funding arrangements is being carried out by 
Your Housing and the Council.  There are no assumptions of the potential 
financial impact of the outcome of this review included at this stage.  Any 
potential additional income streams generated as a result of the review would 
be realised against the Efficiency Programme.  An update on this will be 
provided as part of a separate report.

  Housing Grants

4.3.15 The District Council is the duty holder under the Housing Grants, Construction 
and Regeneration Act 1996 for the mandatory Disabled Facilities Grant 
(DFGs) and this status remains despite changes to funding arrangements. All 
eligible applicants are entitled to receive mandatory funding for certain major 
adaptations to their properties. The funding for these adaptations has 
previously been given directly to the council but from 2015/16, the funding has 
been incorporated into the Better Care Fund and paid to the County Council.  

Page 78



4.3.16 The Better Care Fund is a single pooled fund for all health and social care 
provision and covers the whole range of services including public health, 
social care services and clinical commissioning groups

4.3.17 A county-wide review of the approval process was undertaken during 2017 
and resulted in the commissioning of new home improvement agency 
arrangements which took effect from April 2018.  The award of the new 5 year 
contract to Millbrook Healthcare Ltd will facilitate improvements in the 
processes in order that completions can be achieved to ensure that grants are 
approved at the new higher level of resources available. The current amount 
of uncommitted funding as at 31st March 2018 (prior to receipt of future 
funding and 2018/19 outturn) is £1.4m – this is held in a capital grants 
reserve.

4.3.18 In the meantime because of current demand and changes to the delivery of 
DFGs during this transitional year of hand-over to the new service provider, it 
is unlikely that the existing funds will be required to deliver the mandatory 
grants programme.  If there is to be any significant spend against the new 
increased budget, there is a need to find new areas to invest as well as 
embarking on a robust campaign to promote the traditional DFG to local 
residents in partnership with the new service provider. 

4.3.19 There is scope to do this as part of the funding agreement as long as any 
proactive scheme outside the mandatory DFG programme is agreed with the 
County Council and is restricted to capital expenditure. 

4.3.20 There are several possible options which for example include; investment in 
local schools, catering for persons with disability needs; work with local social 
housing providers to look at dementia friendly adaptations or improvements to 
existing housing schemes with a significant number of elderly residents. There 
are also opportunities to work with local community groups to help them 
develop schemes in their areas that benefit the larger disabled community.  A 
paper was submitted to the Strategic Partnership Board in November 2018 
seeking approval to seek out new ways of utilising the DFG funding on capital 
adaptation programmes within the wider local community and this was 
supported by the other Staffordshire Authorities and the County Council.

  ICT Strategy 

4.3.21 The framework for the existing ICT Strategy was established in 2014/15.  The 
key drivers of which were to support delivery of the Efficiency and 
Rationalisation Plan, provide the infrastructure to support joint working, 
support new ways of working and improve access to services for our 
customers.  

4.3.22 A Digital Strategy is currently being developed.  The aim of which is to drive a 
change in culture and deliver the systems, processes and skills required in an 
environment where information is shared seamlessly though connected 
systems.  This will reduce costs of services through optimisation, improving 
online services and enabling customers to self-serve more transactions.  This 
will also reduce manual administrative tasks, removing paper processes and 
allowing Officers to focus on high-value tasks.  

Page 79



4.3.23 The initial estimated requirements have been identified with additional costs of 
£178,240 which have been added to the plan at this stage.  However, it is 
likely that some additional capital investment will be necessary to realise 
revenue efficiencies and other benefits - these will be subject to individual 
business case approval.

Fleet Management

4.3.24 Fleet management arrangements have been subject to review over the last 12 
months.  Responsibility for maintaining the Council’s fleet has now transferred 
to Alliance Environment Service (AES), however, the responsibility for funding 
fleet remains with the Council.  The fleet review aims to deliver savings to be 
realised against the efficiency programme by ensuring the most cost effective 
funding options are selected for the various types of vehicles.      

4.3.25 The existing contract hire agreements that were in place were terminated on 
30th June 2018 and the majority of vehicles under the agreement were directly 
purchased.  An options appraisal undertaken on the funding of refuse 
freighters has highlighted direct purchase (via the capital programme funded 
by borrowing or capital reserves/capital receipts) as the most cost effective 
method of funding.   

4.3.26 For the purposes of this report, it has been assumed that all replacement 
vehicle requirements over the next four years will be funded via direct capital 
purchase – but this will be subject to further funding options appraisals prior to 
purchase.  Therefore, at this stage, the capital programme includes an 
allocation of £5,299,590 in order to replace vehicles as they reach the end of 
their useful lives.

New/Other Capital Commitments 

4.3.27 The following additional commitments have been included in the programme 
for  approval:-

- CCTV - £275,100

To support the implementation of a revised strategy recommended for the 
upgrade and monitoring of the existing CCTV system.

- Brough Park Improvements - £50,000

Following a successful bid to Sport England, £50,000 has been secured 
towards the cost of the new Skate Park, including a provision of £20,000 for 
installation of floodlighting which was not originally planned.  It is proposed 
that the £30,000 saving against the Skate Park costs is added to the capital 
provision for the next phase of improvements to Brough Park.  

Page 80



- Home Repairs Assistance  Grant Applications  - £30,000

Home Repairs Assistance Grants (HRA) there is only minimal budget within 
the current capital programme for HRA grants, but officers do receive 
applications and it is felt that the availability of additional funding will enable 
them to offer necessary support to vulnerable residents struggling to heat or 
maintain their homes. It will also give supplementary funding to support 
additional repair works at premises with disabled occupants where the work is 
not covered by the traditional Disabled Facilities Grant.

It is proposed to use monies received from a former housing grant scheme, to 
support the HRA commitment. In June 2012 secured and unsecured loans 
granted for housing improvements under the West Midlands Kickstart 
Partnership project transferred to the Council. Debts outstanding are secured 
by legal charges on properties loans were granted, based on an equity share 
agreements. When a property is sold the funds received under these 
agreements are accounted for as capital receipts and used to support the 
Council’s capital programme. In the current financial year receipts of £31,000 
have been received so far. 

The proposals will be subject to further report and approval by members.

  Financing the Capital Programme

4.3.28 As outlined in the Capital Strategy (see Appendix B), the capital programme 
can be funded from a number of options which include external grants and 
contributions from third parties comprising of Government and lottery funding; 
capital receipts from asset sales as part of the asset management plan; 
earmarked revenue reserves and borrowing. 

4.3.29 The main element of spending within the current programme which is 
expected to be funded from external resources is support towards Disabled 
Facilities Grants. Estimated capital receipts of £0.18m will be available over 
the next four years subject to a review of surplus assets. Revenue and capital 
reserves of £2.97m are forecast (at this stage) to be applied 2018/19. 

4.3.30 Borrowing is therefore the main funding option for the programme. The 
Treasury Management Strategy then considers whether this is funded 
externally or internally - both options have a consequence on revenue either 
through reduced investment income or increased external interest liability as 
highlighted in the table below.

4.3.31 It is proposed to use General fund reserves where an options appraisal on the 
acquisition of vehicles, plant and equipment has been carried out and 
suggests that the most financially viable option is to outright purchase.  

  Revenue Consequences of the Capital Programme

4.3.32 The capital investment proposals above will result in estimated revenue 
consequences as follows:  

Page 81



4.4 Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy

4.4.1 The current Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy was approved by Members 
in February 2017, which identified a programme of £3.1 million (including 
£443,600 in unachieved efficiencies from the previous efficiency programme) in 
savings to be made over the period 2017/18 – 2020/21.  

4.4.2 The new Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy has the effect of both reducing 
expenditure and increasing income. The need to grow income is now more of a 
priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing i.e. not reliant 
on direct government funding such as revenue support grant. 

4.4.3 The strategy has been developed with the underlying principles of protecting 
frontline service delivery. It is also intended that the strategy is a tool to enable 
the Council to ensure that its service spending is determined by the established 
priorities set out in the Corporate Plan.

4.4.4 It is intended that there will be five areas of focus:-
 Major Procurements - There is the opportunity to focus attention on a 

number of large service functions which are currently provided by an 
external contractor / supplier. A number of significant contracts are coming 
to an end. This will also allow a fundamental review of these services with 
proper consideration of the current financial constraints.  The contract 
commitments have sometimes restricted the opportunity to align services 
across the alliance with High Peak.  The individual projects will focus on 
Waste Collection & Environment Services, Leisure Management and 
Facilities Management

 Asset Management Plan – continuation of the existing priority of 
rationalising the Council’s asset base with a focus around priorities in order 
to allow for the necessary capital investment

 Growth – development of a clear focus upon housing and economic 
growth based upon the established Local Plan. 

 Income Generation – focus on increasing the yield from existing sources 
on income and a drive towards identifying new sources of income

 Rationalisation – a commitment to reducing expenditure on non-priority 
areas of spend e.g. management arrangements, channel shift, non-
statutory services 

Revenue Consequence                     
(changes year-on-year) 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

£ £ £ £

Ascent Loan Income (37,580) (33,730) - -
Debenture Income - - - -
Investment Income (24,320) (26,560) 34,570 (14,650)
Borrowing Costs 59,420 104,180 329,700 60,820

Total (2,480) 43,890 364,270 46,170

Page 82



4.4.5 The below table summarises the finanical savings requirements and profile for 
achievement (ANNEX B provides more detail of the savings plan):-

4.4.6 The £661,000 target for 2017/18 was achieved in year, and to date, £372,050 
in savings have been realised against the 2018/19 efficiency target.  Therefore, 
it is likely that there will be a potential shortfall against the in-year target, mainly 
down to some slippage in the profile of savings assumed in the Efficiency 
Programme.

4.4.7 Consequently, a review has been undertaken to assess the timing and 
estimated value of future savings based on the current programme.  The table 
below shows the projected reprofiled Efficiency Programme – this adjustment 
has been incorporated into the MTFP:-

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 TOTAL
£ £ £ £ £ £

Original Programme 661,000 830,000 475,000 1,175,000 - 3,141,000
Amended Programme 661,000 395,000 935,000 702,000 448,000 3,141,000
Variance - (435,000) 460,000 (473,000) 448,000 -
 
4.4.8 Continued progression against the efficiency programme is dependent on 

achieving significant savings as a result of the alternative delivery model for 
Waste, Streets and Parks via the transfer of services to trading company 
Alliance Environment Services, as well as a review of leisure provision.  There 
are also significant income generation targets focusing on housing and 
economic growth, linked to the approval of the Local Plan.

4.5 Member Priority Actions / Projects 

4.5.1 During the development of the Corporate Plan a number of priority actions have 
been identified and prioritised by members. These are as follows:

Financial Implications
Member Priority Actions / Projects

(y/n) Firm - in 
plans

Costs 
understood - 
not in plans

Costs 
not  yet 
known

Environment 
Work with ANSA and Cheshire East to launch Alliance 
Environmental Services Ltd, our new joint venture company, to 
deliver waste, streets and grounds maintenance services on 
behalf of the Council in order to achieve improved performance 
and value for money outcomes. 

Y 

Establish a developer open space contributions plan Y 

Reduce the Council’s energy consumption and associated costs 
(through the Asset Management Plan) Y 

General Fund Efficiency 
Strategy

ACHIEVED 
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 TOTAL

 £ £ £ £ £
Major Procurements 100,000 275,000 100,000 600,000 1,075,000
Asset Management 50,000 50,000 25,000 25,000 150,000
Growth 65,000 150,000 250,000 300,000 765,000
Income Generation 305,000 355,000 100,000 250,000 1,010,000
Rationalisation 141,000 - - - 141,000
TOTAL 661,000 830,000 475,000 1,175,000 3,141,000

Page 83



Financial Implications
Member Priority Actions / Projects

(y/n) Firm - in 
plans

Costs 
understood - 
not in plans

Costs 
not  yet 
known

Customer Services 
Undertake detailed process benchmarking with high performing / 
low cost councils with a view to identifying value for money 
improvements around Housing Benefit processing

Y 

Planning & Property 
Refresh and implement the Asset Management Plan, including a 
review of public estate, and ensure adequate facilities 
management arrangements are in place

Y 

Undertake detailed process benchmarking with high performing / 
low cost councils with a view to identifying value for money 
improvements for planning application processing

Y 

Develop and implement plans to extend the public market 
operation in Leek and Cheadle Y 

Leisure, Sports, Parks, Countryside and Communities 
Identify and implement an approach to reduce the cost of 
country parks Y 

Develop a plan to improve Brough Park with HLF support Y 

Develop a strategy for further development of affordable and 
specialist housing Y 

Develop and agree a new empty properties strategy Y 

Develop a scheme that supports the upgrading of security in 
vulnerable people’s homes N

Support the Community Safety Partnership with improved 
provision of outreach workers for dealing with domestic violence N

Undertake a review of the current CCTV system to look at its 
cost-effectiveness in preparation for the expiry of the 
maintenance contract in early 2018

Y 

Help to ensure, through the scrutiny work programme, that 
partner service provision, particularly health provision for the 
elderly, is effective

N

Implement the Council’s new sport and physical activity strategy 
and carry out research into nil cost facility provision being 
achieved by other councils; in order to achieve improved health 
and value for money outcomes for the Staffs Moorlands    

N

Leader 
Develop and implement a plan to identify new and innovative 
ways of generating income Y 

Implement the Growth Fund initiative to support small 
businesses Y 

Support the development of London Mill as part of a wider 
redevelopment scheme Y 

Support the development of Cornhill and improved rail links Y 

Implement the town deal in Biddulph in partnership with Biddulph 
Town Council N

Work with Staffordshire County Council and other partners to 
ensure an effective partnership with central government N

Page 84



 
4.5.2 Any costs or revenue associated with these actions will need to be included in 

the MTFP. The impact of a number of them is already included in this iteration 
of the plan but additional work will need to be undertaken to develop a number 
of the actions further and at the same time identify any financial implications.  
These will be reviewed following the May 2019 elections.

4.6  Alliance Environment Service (AES)

4.6.1 Alliance Environmental Services (AES) is a company created with a vision to 
deliver waste, street cleansing and grounds maintenance services in the High 
Peak and Staffordshire Moorlands areas. The company has three 
shareholders: Staffordshire Moorlands District Council, High Peak Borough 
Council and Ansa, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cheshire East 
Council. 

4.6.2 Phase 1 of the transfer of services commenced on 7th August 2017 to deliver 
High Peak Borough Council Waste services. This followed the end of their 
previous contract with Veolia Environmental Services.

4.6.3 Phase 2 of the transfer of services commenced on 1st July 2018 with the 
transfer of all fleet management across the Alliance and the transfer of the 
Staffordshire Moorlands Waste Collection service.  Phase 3 is currently 
estimated to commence in April 2019, which will involve the transfer of Street 
Scene and Grounds Maintenance. 

4.6.4 Savings of £500,000 are forecast in the Efficiency & Rationalisation 
Programme – which are split between AES and savings to be achieved from 
Council retained budgets.  

4.6.5 The contract fee for 2019/20 has been reviewed and discussions have taken 
place between the Council and AES.  The contract fee has been calculated 
based on the base 2018/19 contract fee plus 2019/20 inflation/growth items 
less forecast savings achieved.  The payment of any identified risk items 
(which the Council is currently paying an additional fee) primarily relating to 
the cost of short-term vehicle hire prior to procurement will continue if they 
materialise.  However, every effort will be made to remove these or offset 
them with other savings.

Page 85



5.        Financial Forecasts

5.1   Interest Rates

5.1.1.   The Bank of England Base Rate was increased from 0.50% to 0.75% at the 
Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) meeting on 2nd August 2018. Link (the 
Council’s advisors) have produced an interest rate forecast which incorporates 
the assumption that Parliament and the EU agree a Brexit deal in the first 
quarter of 2019, with the next increase in Bank Rate in May 2019, followed by 
increases in February and November 2020, to reach 2.0% in February 2022. 
They acknowledge that the wide range of potential scenarios (altered deal, no 
deal, delays) would impact on the movement of interest rates both up and 
down. Overall the expectation is that investment returns are likely to remain 
low during 2019/20 but to be on a gently rising trend over the next few years. 

5.1.2.   Based on the current forecasts, changes in investment income and borrowing 
costs (based on interest rate changes) are highlighted below:-

5.2. Inflationary Projections

5.2.1. The Retail Price Index (RPI) and Consumer Price Index (CPI) 12 month rate, as 
at December 2018, stood at 2.7% and 2.1% respectively.  Inflation forecasts 
are made reflecting the composition of the Council’s expenditure, resulting in an 
inflation rate specific to the Council.

5.2.2. The MTFP presented to members in November 2018 has been updated, where 
appropriate, to reflect the latest inflation forecasts. The full costs to the Council 
arising from inflation are forecast in the table below.

Expenditure/Income 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2021/22
     
 £ £ £ £

Employee Costs 275,240 310,600 272,310 277,620
Premises Costs 46,330 41,180 41,490 42,280
Transport 400 400 2,830 2,850
Supplies and Services 163,420 116,730 107,000 109,190
In-Year Inflation Pressure 485,390 468,910 423,630 431,940
     
5.3. Budgetary Demand

5.3.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan presented to Council in November 2018 
analysed and projected forward both income and expenditure.  This has been 
revised to reflect known changes in budgetary demand.

Investment Income 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£ £ £ £

Changes in Investment Income (19,670) (63,660) (36,260) (31,310)
Changes in Borrowing costs (37,780) 95,500 (4,250) 90

(57,450) 31,840 (40,510) (31,220)

Page 86



5.3.2. The current changes in budgetary demand, included in this iteration of MTFP, 
are highlighted below:-

* replenishment of reserves used to fund SFS contract hire buy-out as per cabinet report 24th April 2018

5.4. Budget Growth

5.4.1. In previous years, very few additions in respect of budget growth have been 
included in the MTFP. It is assumed in light of the financial pressures faced by 
the Council, that any local issues that necessitate budget growth will be 
financed by internal spending reductions elsewhere. Occasionally, however, it 
is necessary to include budget growth to meet spending commitments.

5.4.2. No such items are included in this iteration of the MTFP.

5.5. Pensions

5.5.1. The last triennial actuarial valuation of the Staffordshire Pension Fund took 
place in 2016. At this valuation, the Staffordshire Moorlands portion of the Fund 
was in deficit by £23 million and was 66% funded.

5.5.2. The 2016 valuation determined the level of contributions necessary for the 
following 3 year period (2017 – 2020). The Council was required to contribute 
16.6% of pensionable pay plus the equivalent of £667,000 per annum in 
secondary payments with effect from 2017/18. The Council made a £1.9m lump 
sum payment in 2017/18 to discharge the secondary payment liability realising 
a £100,000 discount for paying the full amount in a single advance payment.

5.5.3. A further valuation of the Fund is scheduled to take place in 2019. This will set 
employer contribution rates payable between 2020/21 and 2022/23 (years 2-4 
of this plan). As well as  national factors; such as investment returns, inflation 
factors, demographics etc; this valuation will also take into account the impact 
on pensions of local changes in the Council’s service delivery model in respect 
of environmental services. These local factors are likely to have an upward 
pressure on primary contribution rates as overall numbers in the Fund reduce.

Increased / (Reduced) Budget Demand 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2021/22
 £ £ £ £
Reduction in level of Parish Council Local Council 
Tax Support (13,830) - - -

Uniforms – Customer Services (2,500) 2,500 (2,500) 2,500
DWP – Benefits Admin Grant reduction 12,000 12,000 - -
End of WWI Centenary (20,000) - - -
Markets promotion – Temp post - (26,150) - -
Markets promotion – Income generation (3,300) - - -
Council Tax support administration grant reduction 4,890 4,500 - -
Benefits – Fairer Charging transfer to SCC 10,180 - - -
Elections Reserve Contribution 13,320 - - -
Waste transfer station – SCC revised charge 64,600 - - -
Dry recyclate – Increased handling costs 90,160 - - -
Vehicle Funding – Contract hire adjustment * (390,520) 120,200 270,320 -
 Total (235,000) 113,050 267,820 2,500
 

Page 87



5.5.4.  Provision for an increase in contributions of £125,000 in Years 2-4 have been 
included in this iteration of the MTFP. This working assumption will be 
monitored as details of the 2019 valuation emerge over the next 12 months

5.5.5. The outcome of the 2019 valuation is expected in December 2019

6.      Funding & Income Generation

6.1. Council Tax

6.1.1. The Council has the capacity to vary Council Tax levels, following the abolition 
of capping.  However the Council’s ability to increase Council Tax by more than 
a certain percentage is subject to referendum. This threshold was increased to 
2.99% for 2019/20 the same as in 2018/19.

6.1.2. This iteration of the MTFP assumes that a 2.9% Council Tax increase will be 
implemented throughout the 4 year life of this Plan.

6.1.3. Provision has been included within the Plan to reflect anticipated growth in 
Council Tax base over the 4 years. The figures included are shown in the table 
below:

Increased Council Tax Income 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£ £ £ £

Council Tax increase (150,790) (156,120) (161,440) (167,010)
Revenue from tax base growth (33,100) (27,460)   (30,330)   (36,950)
TOTAL (183,890) (183,580) (191,770) (203,960)

6.2. Business Rates Retention 

6.2.1. Under the 50% Business Rates Retention system, the Authority retains 40% of 
Business Rates less a tariff that is payable into a pool maintained by a number 
of Staffordshire Authorities. This amount is then compared to a Funding 
Baseline (estimated at £2,640,830 for 2019/20): any amount in excess of this 
Baseline is subject to levy, or conversely if the amount of retained Business 
Rates is below this Baseline, the loss is capped by a safety net payment. The 
MTFP does not anticipate the Council falling below the Baseline.

6.2.2. As part of the Staffordshire Pool, the levy or the safety net payment is made to 
or from the Pool instead of Central Government. If the Council was not in the 
Staffordshire Pool it would have to pay 50p in the £1 to the Government as a 
levy, effectively limiting the income the Council can gain from business rates 
growth. However, as part of the Pool, the Council is able to retain 40% of this 
levy; meaning that each £1 achieved above the baseline, is distributed as 
follows: 

Page 88



 70p is retained by the Council;
 20p is paid to a Central Incentive Fund which is managed by the Pool 

Board;
 10p is paid to a Contingency Fund maintained by the Pool Board to assist 

should a safety net payment be triggered. 

The benefit to the Council of being part of the Pool arrangement is estimated to 
be approximately £293,000 in 2019/20.

6.2.3. In October 2015, the Government announced a forthcoming package of 
reforms to the Business Rates Retention System including a move to local 
government retaining 100% of the rates that they received (subsequently being 
revised to a 75% scheme) with an end to Revenue Support Grant.

6.2.4. There remains uncertainly surrounding how the new system will be phased in 
and in what form. Following invitation from DCLG, Staffordshire Authorities 
made an application to become a pilot area for the Business Rates Retention 
scheme. The application was unsuccessful for 2018/19, but the application was 
submitted again to the MHCLG for the 2019/20 75% pilot and Staffordshire 
Authorities were successful in being named as a pilot authority for 2019/20. For 
the purpose of the MTFP, a windfall of £200,000 has been included based on 
the minimum payment to be received by each Member Authority as detailed in 
the Memorandum of Understanding to the Pilot Pool.

6.2.5. The Contingency Fund being built up as part of the original Staffordshire Pool is 
currently the subject of discussion as to what is a reasonable balance for the 
County to maintain and whether any amounts could be released for other 
purposes.  Any distribution of this to the Council would be treated as a windfall 
and is not included in the MTFP at this stage.

6.2.6. The MTFP anticipates that Business Rates retention will be above the baseline. 
Net income is somewhat suppressed due to the award of reliefs including 
increased small business rate relief including the changes in thresholds, 
multiplier cap, extended rural relief, supporting small businesses relief, retail 
discount and local discretionary relief; and the increase in the provision for RV 
reductions on successful appeals, including potential NHS Trust applications 
and ATM RV changes. To compensate for the loss of business rates income 
resulting from the reliefs, funding has to date been made available to Councils 
under Section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003. The MTFP assumes both 
the extension of reliefs and equivalent Section 31 grants will continue. 

6.2.7. Changes in the level of the Council’s business rates will be impacted by a 
range of factors, including the Staffordshire Pool’s success in generating new 
and retaining existing business within its area. At this stage, predicted levels of 
business rates income are based on known and expected changes to the 
business rates listing. 

Page 89



Business Rates Retention 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£ £ £ £

In year:
      Baseline Funding (2,640,830) (2,764,640) (2,894,250) (3,029,940)
      Achievement against Baseline 257,530 409,610 (140,570) (161,140)
      Section 31 Grant (1,656,810) (1,669,450) (1,172,360) (1,199,410)
Total (4,040,110) (4,024,480) (4,207,180) (4,390,490)
Change between years:
      Business Rates retained 58,720 28,270 (679,790) (156,260)
      Section 31 Grant (586,440) (12,740) 497,090 (27,050)
Total (509,720) 15,630 (182,700) (183,310)

6.3. Collection Fund 

6.3.1. The Council maintains a Collection Fund to record the receipt of Council Tax 
and Business Rates and their distribution to precepting authorities. Any surplus 
or deficit generated is distributed or recovered from the preceptors in 
subsequent years.

6.3.2. It is expected that Staffordshire Moorlands’ share of a surplus, in respect of 
Council Tax, will be £71,870 in 2019/20.

6.3.3. It is assumed that a deficit, after providing for appeals, of £666,270 will be 
distributed in 2019/20 in respect of retained Business Rates generated in the 
current and previous years. Staffordshire Moorlands’ share of this deficit will be 
£266,510. It is assumed the Business Rates element of the collection fund will 
break even in future years, leaving no surplus or deficit for distribution.

6.3.4. These and future year movements are set out in the table below:

Changes in Collection Fund Income 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£ £ £ £

Council Tax (44,330) 45,360 8,450 (3,290)
Business Rates (351,440) (266,510) - -
Total (395,770) (221,150) 8,450 (3,290)

6.4. Income from Government Grants  

Revenue Support Grant
 
6.4.1. In October 2015, Government announced the phasing out of Revenue Support 

Grant (RSG). 2018/19 was the final year of RSG grant; none will be received in 
2019/20.

6.4.2. In 2016/17 RSG accounted for 12% (£1.25m) of the Council’s funding. 

Page 90



New Homes Bonus 

6.4.3. New Homes Bonus (NHB) is aimed at encouraging local authorities to grant 
planning permission for the building of new houses, in return for additional 
revenue.

6.4.4. The bonus is paid on the increase in occupied homes in the District compared 
with the previous year. This payment is subject to certain conditions: 

 The bonus is only paid on development in excess of a national 
‘deadweight’ threshold (currently 0.4% of the tax base). This threshold 
represents the percentage of housing that would have been built anyway. 
For Staffordshire Moorlands, the current threshold is the equivalent of 173 
properties. The Government had indicated that it intended to raise the 
threshold in 2019/20, but in the settlement announcement in December, it 
backed off from this position, leaving the deadweight threshold at 0.4%. 
The possibility remains of this threshold increasing in the future and 
should it happen; this would reduce the value of future New Homes Bonus 
receipts; 

 Once awarded, New Homes Bonus is currently paid for the following 4 
years.

6.4.5. Further changes, proposed in the 2016 consultation, have been put on hold to 
be considered for future implementation. These include:

 Withholding the Bonus from areas where an authority does not have a 
Local Plan in place; and

 Abating the Bonus in circumstances where planning permission for a 
new development has only been granted on appeal.

The settlement announcement in December 2018 made no reference to 
implementing these measures in 2019/20.

6.4.6. The announcement did, however, point out that 2019/20 represents the final 
year of funding agreed through the 2015 Spending Review and it is the 
Government’s intention to explore how to incentivise housing growth most 
effectively. There is, therefore, a risk that the system may change 
fundamentally during the life of this Plan. Given the small amount of benefit 
SMDC gains from the current arrangements, it is entirely possible that any such 
changes may turn out to be positive for the Council. There will be a period of 
consultation on any change prior to a new system being implemented.

6.4.7. This iteration of the MTFP is based on the current NHB system and includes 
total New Home Bonus receipts of £1.1 million over the next 4 years (£0.4m in 
2019/20 and £0.2m pa thereafter). However, these amounts assume no 
detrimental increase in the Government’s (0.4%) ‘deadweight’ threshold in the 
period 2020-2023 (Years 2-4 of the Plan).

6.4.8. The settlement announcement in December 2018, confirmed that; although the 
Council did not achieve housing growth in excess of the threshold; of the 100 
new houses that were built, 36 were ‘affordable’ generating the payment of an 
‘affordable homes premium’.  Consequently, the Council has been awarded 
additional New Homes Bonus of £10,080 for 2019/20. 

Page 91



6.4.9. Small additional awards are anticipated for Years 2-4 of the Plan, but these will 
be under threat from any future detrimental movement in the deadweight 
threshold.

6.4.10. The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy included an assumed £400,000 in 
from stimulated housing growth, primarily from New Homes Bonus over the four 
years (2017-21).  The current low levels of growth being experienced in the 
District, together with the risk of detrimental change in the deadweight 
threshold, make this target more difficult to achieve.

Local Council Tax Support Grant

6.4.11. The Council operated a scheme whereby funding received from Central 
Government in respect of Local Council Tax Support was passed on to the 
Parishes by means of an annual grant. The allocation of this grant was based 
on the eligibility of parish residents for Council Tax discounts.

6.4.12. The level of resources made available for this grant has been reduced each 
year in line with the reduction in overall Government funding suffered by the 
Authority. The final year of Local Council Tax Support grant funding was 
2018/19. No further funding is included for this purpose in the Plan.

Summary of Income from Government Grants

6.4.13. The table below summarises the movement in Government funding from the 
2016/17 baseline:-

6.4.14. The changes shown in the table above mean that the Government grant 
funding received by the Council will have reduced to £221,310 by 2022/23, 
compared to the £2,525,610 received in 2016/17.

6.5. Fees and Charges

6.5.1. Charging for local services makes a significant contribution to the Council’s 
finances. The Council also uses charging to influence individual choices and 
behaviour, and to bring other benefits to local communities. The Council’s 
Charging Policy sets out the following principles for establishing the level of 
fees and charges:  

Government Grant 
(gain) / loss of funding

2016/17 
(baseline)

2017 - 19 
(actual)

2019/20 
(forecast)

2020/21 
(forecast)

2021/22 
(forecast)

2022/23 
(forecast)

 £ £ £ £ £ £
Revenue Support Grant (1,246,290) 899,290 347,000 - - -
Rural Services Delivery 
Grant (14,930) (22,390) 37,320 - - -

Transition Grant - (4,780) 4,780 - - -
New Homes Bonus (1,264,390) 582,300 238,330 219,500 15,190 (12,240)

Change in Govt Funding (2,525,610) 1,454,420 627,430 219,500 15,190 (12,240)
    

Page 92



 The cost of providing services should be fully met by income
 There is a standard approach to concessions for those on low incomes
 Where a subsidy is agreed, this should be used to support the development 

of Council services in accordance with priorities
 Subsidies should be reconfirmed annually

6.5.2. Services have completed the fees and charges templates, the financial 
outcomes of the process are shown in ANNEX C. The summary includes 
categorisation of charges and identifies where fee-earning services are 
provided at a subsidy.

6.5.3. The proposed fees and charges for 2018/19 are presented in Appendix C to 
this report.

6.5.4. The Medium Term Financial Plan currently projects that the Council will 
increase fees and charges (and other income) broadly in line with inflation.  
However, it is also recognised that certain income streams (such as car 
parking, planning receipts) may not increase each year and that other income 
streams (such as grants and rental income) are fixed or subject to periodic 
review.

6.5.5. The underlying annual total expected from inflationary increases to fees and 
charges has been set at £25,000, recognising the potential overlap with income 
generation themes included in the Efficiency Programme.

6.5.6. The projected revenue from increased fees and charges (and other income) is 
summarised in the table below:

Increased Fees and Changes 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

£ £ £ £
Revenue from increased Fees and Charges (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) (25,000)
Total (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) (25,000)

7.   Risks, Contingencies & Use of Reserves

7.1. Risk Identification and Management

7.1.1. The early identification and management of risks is critical to the Budget and 
Medium Term Financial Planning process. Risks are assessed, mitigated and 
actively managed to ensure that the Council delivers its services effectively 
within the funding at its disposal. The principal risks to the Medium Term 
Financial Plan are summarised in ANNEX D.

7.1.2. Risk areas will be closely monitored and reviewed on an on-going basis and 
remedial action taken as appropriate. 

7.1.3. The table below highlights specific financial risks that are embedded within this 
Medium Term Financial Plan: 

Page 93



7.1.4. Britain’s Exit from the European Union

At this stage it is impossible to predict the impact of the Brexit process on the 
Authority’s finances and financial planning.   It has the potential to influence a 
number of local and national economic drivers such as inflation, interest rates, 
the valuation of assets and liabilities and the demand for and funding of 
services.  Currently the timing and direction of Brexit’s influence on these areas 
is a matter of debate.  To give an idea of the potential financial consequences 
the table below quantifies the impact on the Authority’s current 2018/19 budget 
had there been a 1% change in its key economic drivers.

Risk item Impact on MTFP
1 % change in inflation 150,000
1 % change in interest rates 135,000

7.2. Contingencies  

7.2.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan is underpinned by a number of assumptions. 
These assumptions have been made in the light of currently available 
information. New information, when it emerges, may require the Council to alter 
its assumptions with a consequential effect on the Council’s financial position.

7.2.2. Key risk areas will be closely monitored and reviewed on an ongoing basis and 
remedial action taken.  Members will receive quarterly updates on performance 
against the budget. 

7.2.3. The Council carries reserves as a contingency for situations where risks cannot 
be fully mitigated. Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the 
Chief Finance Officer (CFO) to report on the robustness of the estimates 
included in the budget and the adequacy of the reserves that the budget 
provides. 

7.2.4. While there is no detailed guidance on calculating the level of general reserves 
the Council is encouraged to take into account the strategic, operational and 

Revenue Risks Capital Risks
 Inflationary assumptions
 Interest rates
 Revenue consequences of capital
 Housing benefits
 Fees and charges
 Universal Credit
 Business Rates 
 Council Tax collection
 Government grants
 Financial benefits from partnerships / 

shared services
 Pension costs
 Insurance costs
 Waste management costs

 Interest rates 
 External funding
 Capital receipts
 Capacity to deliver capital 

programme
 Project overspend
 Project overrun
 External factors (e.g. planning 

objections, judicial reviews etc. 
leading to project delay)

 Housing Joint Venture
 Suppliers / Contractors / Contract 

Management
 Weather 

Page 94



financial risks facing the Council.  The table below present analysis undertaken 
by the Council in calculating the minimum level of general reserve required.

Risk Item Calculation Factor Value Reserve 
Requirement

£’m £
Expenditure Items (gross) – Employee Related 2% of value 6.80 136,000

Expenditure Items (gross) – Other 2% of value 9.57 191,000

Housing Benefits 0.25% of value 14.95 37,000

Fees and Charges 3.5% of value 4.89 171,000

Interest Receipts/Payments 50% fall in average rate 0.12 59,000

Efficiency Provisions 30% of value 0.48 143,000

Council Tax Collection 1.5% of value 5.38 81,000

Business Rates Retention 5% of value 4.04 202,000

Development Services Income 5% of value 0.51 25,000

Local Land Charges 5% income fall 0.14 7,000

Total Minimum Requirement 1,052,000

7.2.5. It is proposed that the minimum general reserve contingency balance should 
reduce by £58,000 to £1,052,000 to meet unforeseen expenditure and/or 
shortfalls in income.  [The Council anticipates that at 1st April 2019 it will be 
holding a contingency reserve of £1,510,000 and earmarked reserves (held for 
specific purposes) of £4,243,000].

7.2.6. The level and utilisation of reserves is determined formally by the Council, 
having received the advice and judgement of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO). 
The Chief Financial Officer’s advice is:  

“In the view of the Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 
Officer), the budget includes estimates which take into account circumstances 
and events which are reasonably foreseeable at the time of preparing the 
budget. The view is therefore held, that the level of reserves are adequate for 
the Council based on this budget and the circumstances in place at the time of 
preparing it.” 

[Note: A formal record of the Chief Finance Officer’s advice is recorded in the 
minutes of the Council meeting.  In the unusual event that a Chief Finance 
Officer’s advice is not accepted by a Council, the rejection by a Council of the 
Chief Finance Officer’s advice must be recorded in the minutes].

7.3. Use of Reserves and Balances  

7.3.1. The February 2018 Medium Term Financial Plan included an £8,180 
contribution from General Fund Reserves in 2018/19 in respect of Section 106 
(Commuted Sum). The level of Section 106 reserve usage has been revised to 
£7,700 pa from 2019/20.

Page 95



7.3.2. The February 2018 MTFP also included the use of General Fund contingency 
reserves in 2018/19 and 2019/20 necessary to smooth timing differences in the 
delivery of the Efficiency Programme. The Plan then included an anticipated 
payment into reserves in both 2020/21 and 2021/22.

7.3.3. The use of reserves anticipated over the 4 years has been updated in this 
iteration of the plan, in line with revenue forecasts. The annual changes are 
shown in the table below:

7.3.4. The Quarter Three report forecasts that there will be a surplus against the 
revenue budget of approximately £148,430. During 2018/19 the Council has 
also used £953,730 from reserves to purchase refuse collection vehicles – as 
per the Cabinet report approved on 24th April 2018. This results in an expected 
usage of reserves of £1,598,170 in 2018/19.

7.3.5. With effect from 2019/20 the MTFP reflects a contribution of £325,810 into 
reserves over the next 4 years (2019/20 £3,140; 2020/21 £243,340; 2021/22 
£50,960; and 2022/23 £29,370)

7.3.6. The table below shows the revised level of contingency reserves over the life of 
the Medium Term Financial Plan: 

Contingency reserve 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

 £ £ £ £ £

As at February 2019:

Balance at year end 1,509,880 1,513,020 1,755,360 1,806,320 1,835,690

Minimum requirement (7.2) 1,110,000 1,052,000 1,052,000 1,052,000 1,052,000

Headroom 399,880 461,020 703,360 754,320 783,690

      

Reserve / Balance 2018/19 
(Budget) 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

 £ £ £ £ £
General Fund Contingency Reserve (792,870) 3,140 242,340 50,960 29,370
Section 106 Monies (8,180) (7,700) (7,700) (7,700) (7,700)

Total Reserve Usage (801,050) (4,560) 234,640 43,260 21,670
    
Change in use of reserves  796,490 239,200 (191,380) (21,590)
      

Page 96



8. Budget 2019/20

8.1. The prospects for the 2019/20 Budget were considered by the Council, as part 
of the update of the Medium-Term Financial Plan, on 5th December 2018 prior 
to the commencement of the budget exercise.  

8.2. Budget preparation work has now been completed and an overall balanced 
budget position has been reached with the inclusion of a £738,000 efficiency 
target and a drawdown of £801,050 in reserves.

Proposed Budget

8.3. The proposed 2019/20 Budget is detailed below:-

Budget Heading 2019/20  
Projection

 £
Employees 6,800,120
Premises 2,192,420
Transport 404,260
Supplies & Services 5,746,430
Benefits 5,010
Borrowing 294,400
Parish Grant re Council Tax Support 0
Financing Costs 621,900
Total Expenditure 16,064,540
  
Fees and Charges / Other Income (5,185,420)
Interest Receipts (117,580)
Ascent LLP Income (584,270)
Net Expenditure 10,177,270
  
Council Tax (5,383,480)
Revenue Support Grant 0
Business Rates Retention (4,040,110)
Rural Service / Transition Grant 0
New Homes Bonus (443,760)
Earmarked Reserves / Balances (4,560)
Collection Fund 194,640
Total Financing (9,677,270)
  
Cumulative Deficit / (Surplus) 500,000
  
Efficiency Requirement (500,000)
  
In Year Deficit / (Surplus) 0
  

Page 97



Council Tax Requirement 2019/20

8.4. The table below illustrates the Council Tax requirement for 2019/20:-

 2019/20
 £
Net Expenditure 10,177,270
  
Efficiency Target (new) (500,000)
Revenue Support Grant -
New Homes Bonus (443,760)
Rural Service Delivery Grant -
Transition Grant -
Business Rates Retention (4,040,110)
Use of Reserves (4,560)
Collection Fund 194,640
  
Net Requirement 
from Council Tax 5,383,480

8.5. Members will be aware that the Council has adopted the following items of 
expenditure as Special District Expenses (SDEs) to be levied on specific 
parishes:
 Leek – Brough Park, Birch Gardens, Recreation Grounds and Leek 

Cemetery; and
 Biddulph – Recreation Grounds.

8.6.    Estimated net expenditure for 2019/20 in respect of Special District Expense 
items is set out in the table below:

Special District Expense Net Cost

 £
Leek
Brough Park 97,030
Recreation Grounds 79,210
Birch Gardens 29,720
Cemetery 130,490
Total 336,450

Biddulph
Recreation Grounds 65,810
Total 65,810

TOTAL LEVY 402,260

8.7. Members should note that overall Special District Expenses have been 
adjusted to achieve a 2.9% increase, to accord with the Council’s strategy for 
District Council Tax levels in 2019/20.

8.8. The overall Council Tax requirement contained within these proposals is 
summarised in the table below.

Page 98



Budget 
Requirement

£
Tax Base

Band D 
Council Tax

£

Increase/
(Decrease) 

%

District Council Tax 4,981,220 33,089 150.54 2.9%

Special District Expense

Leek 336,450 6,479 51.93 2.9%
Biddulph 65,810 6,304 10.44 2.9%

9. MTFP General Fund Revenue Position   

9.1. The medium term general fund revenue position is as set out in the table below, 
which summaries the impact of the discussions in the previous sections of the 
report:-

     
 Summary Revenue Position 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

    
 £ £ £ £

Revenue Consequences of Capital Spend (section 4.3) (2,480) 43,890 364,270 46,170
Interest Rate Changes (section 5.1) (57,450) 31,840 (40,510) (31,220)
Inflation Pressures (section 5.2) 485,390 468,910 423,630 431,940
Increased / (Reduced) Budget Demand (section 5.3) (235,000) 113,050 267,820 2,500
Budget Growth (section 5.4) - - - -
Increased Council Tax Income (section 6.1) (183,890) (183,580) (191,770) (203,960)
Business Rates Retention (section 6.2) (509,720) 15,630 (182,700) (183,310)
Changes in Collection Fund Surplus (section 6.3) (395,770) (221,150) 8,450 (3,290)
Reduction in Government Grant (section 6.4) 627,430 219,500 15,190 (12,240)
Additional Fees and Charges (section 6.5) (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) (25,000)
Contribution to / (Use of) Reserves & Balances (section 7.3) 796,490 239,200 (191,380) (21,590)
    
In Year Change in Position 500,000 702,290 448,000 -

Existing Efficiency & Rationalisation Plan (section 4.3) (500,000)* (702,290) (448,000) -
Growth Efficiencies Realised - - - -
   Budget (Surplus) / Deficit - - - -
Cumulative (Surplus) / Deficit

*new in-year requirement - £435,000 also rolled forward from 2018/19 as per re-profiled programme

9.2. The table above table shows a balanced position over the life of the Medium 
Term Financial Plan assuming the remaining Efficiency Programme savings of 
£1,650,290 (plus £435,000 carried forward from 2018/19) is achieved. 

9.3. The above position includes the contribution of £325,810 into contingency 
reserves during the life of the plan.

9.4. ANNEX E shows the indicative detailed revenue budget for the period 2019/20 
– 2022/23.

10.      Consultation

Page 99



10.1. The Council is committed to consulting with residents and other stakeholders to 
help inform the budget setting process and spending priorities/non-priorities. A 
variety of techniques have been used and the approaches have been iterative, 
building year on year on what has gone before. The Council already holds 
comprehensive information gathered about residents’ spending priorities. Much 
of this information was gathered in times of rising expenditure. The financial 
challenges for the Council are now very different. 

10.2. The consultation process for 2019/20 was undertaken via an online 
communication available on the Council’s website, which summarises the 
finanicial challenges the Council faces and invited comment.   This survey will 
remain live until 31st March 2019, with any additional responses feeding into 
the 2020/21 budget setting process.

10.3. It will be particularly important that the Council, as it makes difficult budgetary 
decisions, is able to evidence that it has considered the impact of its decisions 
on groups with ‘protected characteristics’.

10.4. Going forward, the Council will be developing a timetable of consultation, which 
will focus on specific emerging issues that potentially have a significant impact 
on the Council’s finances over the medium term.

Page 100



ANNEX A

Proposed Capital Projections (2018/19 to 2022/23)  

Capital Schemes 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total

 £ £ £ £ £ £
Asset Management Plan       
Public Buildings     403,360    235,000              -                -      861,900  1,500,260 
Car Parks       63,390    314,430      79,780    227,110    676,930  1,361,640 
Public Conveniences               -                 -      143,900              -        53,900    197,800 
Infrastructure/Waterways               -      209,270      62,000    105,000              -      376,270 
Leisure Centres       10,000    510,000    745,790      91,000              -    1,356,790 
Depots & Park Buildings         7,000    118,000      53,750    613,190      34,720    826,660 
Industrial Units               -        80,380              -                -                -        80,380 
     483,750 1,467,080 1,085,220 1,036,300 1,627,450  5,699,800 
       

Private  Housing Grants 1,161,650 1,256,000 1,226,000 1,211,000 1,211,000 6,065,650
       
ICT Projects - 255,800 - -              -   255,800
       
Fleet Management 1,346,300 1,325,750 2,468,290 129,250      30,000 5,299,590
       
Other Schemes       
Conservation 30,000 75,520      50,000      50,000              -   205,520
Public Parks/Play Facilities 570,000    130,000              -                -                -   700,000
CCTV               -      275,100              -                -                -   275,100
 600,000 480,620 50,000 50,000              -   1,180,620
       

TOTAL PROGRAMME 3,591,700 4,785,250 4,829,510 2,426,550 2,868,450 18,501,460
       

CONTRIBUTIONS 1,211,000 1,238,390 1,211,000 1,211,000 
 

1,211,000 6,082,390
       

NET PROGRAMME 2,380,700 3,546,860 3,618,510 1,215,550 
 

1,657,450 12,419,070

Page 101



ANNEX B

Summary of Approved Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy (February 2017)

Efficiency 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 TOTAL
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Major Procurements      
Ansa Joint Venture 100 200 100 100 500
Leisure Centres - - - 500 500
Facilities - 75 - - 75
 100 275 100 600 1,075
Asset Management      
Asset Rationalisation 50 50 25 25 150
 50 50 25 25 150
Growth      
Housing Growth 50 50 150 150 400
Business Growth 15 50 50 150 265
Industrial Units - 50 50 - 100
 65 150 250 300 765
Income Generation      
Fees & Charges 125 175 100 250 650
Affordable Housing 100 100 - - 200
Advertising / Sponsorship 30 30 - - 60
Commercial Property - 50 - - 50
Enhanced Trading 50 - - - 50
 305 355 100 250 1,010
Rationalisation      
Management Staffing 100 - - - 100
Channel Shift - - - - -
Service Rationalisation 41 - - - 41
 141 - - - 141
      
TOTAL 661 830 475 1,175 3,141
      

The above programme has been reprofiled to take account of any changes to the 
expected timing of savings:- 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 TOTAL
£ £ £ £ £ £

Original Programme 661,000 830,000 475,000 1,175,000 - 3,141,000
Amended Programme 661,000 395,000 935,000 702,000 448,000 3,141,000
Variance - (435,000) 460,000 (473,000) 448,000 -

Page 102



ANNEX C
Fees & Charges

 SMDC Proposed Fees & 
Charges Charging Policy Category

Service Area 2019/20 Full 
commercial

Fair 
charging

Cost 
recovery Subsidised Nominal Free Statutory Total

Income £12,867 £29,588 £20 £2,348  £0 £14,149 £58,972Environmental 
Health Surplus/ (Subsidy) after Costs £4,184 £3,773 £20 -£923  -£56,750 -£10,707 -£60,404

Income      £127,493 £0 £127,493
Licensing Surplus/ (Subsidy) after Costs      -£1,300 £10,793 £9,493

Income   £199,161   £0 £0 £199,161
Land Charges Surplus/ (Subsidy) after Costs   £4,487   £0 -£2,053 £2,433

Income  £27,088 £6,421     £33,509
Planning Surplus/ (Subsidy) after Costs  £13,698 £1,373     £15,071

Income   £3,788     £3,788
Building Control

Surplus/ (Subsidy) after Costs   £3,788     £3,788
Income  £11,616      £11,616

Street Naming Surplus/ (Subsidy) after Costs  £9,954      £9,954
Income £5,457  £20,925     £26,382

Waste Surplus/ (Subsidy) after Costs £1,880  £1,202     £3,082
Income £14,836 £95,588      £110,424

Cemeteries Surplus/ (Subsidy) after Costs £11,527 £33,372      £44,899
Income  £2,872      £2,872

Street Scene Surplus/ (Subsidy) after Costs  £202      £202
Income £4,012 £686  £515  £0  £5,213

Horticulture Surplus/ (Subsidy) after Costs £284 -£57  -£131  -£745  -£649
Income  £637,287    £0 £30,000 £667,287

Car Parks Surplus/ (Subsidy) after Costs  £406,287    -£19,000 £10,000 £397,287
Income  £125,027      £125,027

Markets Surplus/ (Subsidy) after Costs  -£20,274      -£20,274
Income  £10,177      £10,177

Lettings Surplus/ (Subsidy) after Costs  £6,738      £6,738
Income  £200,350      £200,350

Finance Surplus/ (Subsidy) after Costs  £989      £989
Income     £1,709   £1,709

Elections Surplus/ (Subsidy) after Costs     £0   £0
Income       £18,685 £18,685Environmental 

Crime Surplus/ (Subsidy) after Costs       £9,821 £9,821
Income       £1,050 £1,050

Community Surplus/ (Subsidy) after Costs       -£296 -£296

Charging 
Policy Policy Objective

Full commercial Service is promoted to maximise revenue within an overall 
objective of generating a surplus from the service

Fair charging
Service is promoted to maximise income but subject to 
defined policy constraints including commitments made to 
potential customers on an appropriate fee structure

Cost recovery Service generally available to all but without a subsidy

Subsidised Service is widely accessible, but users of the service should 
make some contribution from their own resources

Nominal Service to be fully available and a charge is made to 
discourage frivolous usage

Free Service fully available at no cost

Statutory Charges are set in line with legal obligations

Page 103



 ANNEX D
Medium Term Financial Plan – Principal Risks

Risk Category Risk Mitigation and Controls

Financial 
Implications

Robustness of financial 
assumptions within Efficiency 
and Rationalisation Strategy

Structured project management 
arrangements have been put in place with 
detailed business cases for each initiative – 
these will be strengthened in the service 
review process

Financial 
Implications

Additional financial pressures 
emerge – cost & income 

The strategy is kept under constant review 
and adjustments will be made where 
necessary

Service 
Continuity

Interruptions to key services or 
performance standards

Resource implications and impact are 
identified as part of the business case 
process. Service continuity and 
maintenance of standards of service are 
key requirements of any new proposals

Corporate 
Governance

Maintaining stakeholder 
confidence; lack of clarity on 
accountability

Ongoing review of standards of internal 
control (e.g. Financial Procedure Rules 
reviewed and updated). Internal Audit Plan 
will be reviewed to account for the new 
approach proposed in the Efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy

Management of 
Change

Management of corporate and 
local, cultural change; 
behavioural risks; residual 
effects of aggregation; 
proposed changes to 
organisational structure, roles 
& responsibilities

Progress with achievement of aims will be 
monitored through an effective performance 
management structure. Investment has 
been made in a new approach to 
Organisational Development.

People Risks Impact of cultural changes;
assessment of skills; 
recruitment & retention;
capacity issues

Continuing communications process for the 
delivery of transformation programme

Key Projects & 
Partnerships

Managing changes to shared 
service delivery arrangements

The project management methodology 
provides for an adequate transition where 
there are changes in service delivery

  

Performance 
Management

Adequacy of framework to 
monitor transition

Risk management processes are 
embedded

Page 104



Risk Category Risk Mitigation and Controls

Reputation and 
Relationship 
Risks

Maintaining existing partner 
confidence

Continuing communications process for the 
delivery of transformation programme

Programme 
Delivery

Delays in implementation of 
efficiency savings

Effective governance arrangements in place 
to monitor plans. 

Executive Directors and Senior Managers 
own delivery of efficiencies. 

Executive Director (Transformation) 
appointed as programme director. 

Programme 
Delivery

A number of the efficiency / 
rationalisation initiatives are 
not achieved

Structured project management approach is 
in place for delivery including effective 
exception reporting

The strategy is kept under constant review

Identification of further efficiency / 
rationalisation opportunities through 
benchmarking / effective member working 
groups
  

Political Support Lack of Members support for 
Plan.

Regular reporting and member briefings 
including effective scrutiny arrangements

Page 105



ANNEX E
Proposed Revenue Projections (2019/20 to 2022/23)

Budget Heading
2019/20  

Projection
2020/21  

Projection
2021/22  

Projection
2022/23  

Projection
 £ £ £ £
Employees 6,800,120 7,084,570 7,356,880 7,634,500
Premises 2,192,420 2,233,600 2,275,090 2,317,370
Transport 404,260 404,660 407,490 410,340
Supplies & Services 5,746,430 5,985,860 6,360,680 6,472,370
Benefits 5,010 5,010 5,010 5,010
Borrowing 294,400 494,080 819,530 880,440
Parish Grant re Council Tax Support 0 0 0 0
Financing Costs 621,900 621,900 621,900 621,900
     
Total Expenditure 16,064,540 16,829,680 17,846,580 18,341,930
     

Fees and Charges / Other Income
       

(5,185,420)
     

(5,193,920)
       

(5,218,920)   (5,243,920)

Interest Receipts 
          

(117,580)
        

(207,800)
         

(209,490)      (255,450)

Ascent LLP Income 
          

(584,270)
        

(618,000)
         

(618,000)      (618,000)

Recharges
                      

0
                    

0
                     

0                  0
     
Net Expenditure 10,177,270 10,809,960 11,800,170 12,224,560
     

Council Tax
       

(5,383,480)
     

(5,567,060)
       

(5,758,830)   (5,962,790)

Revenue Support Grant
                      

0
                    

0
                     

0                  0

Business Rates Retention
       

(4,040,110)
     

(4,024,480)
       

(4,207,180)   (4,390,490)

Rural Service Delivery Grant
                      

0
                    

0
                     

0                  0

New Homes Bonus
          

(443,760)
        

(224,260)
         

(209,070)      (221,310)

Earmarked Reserves
              

(7,700)
            

(7,700)
             

(7,700)         (7,700)

Contingency Balances
                

3,140
          

242,340
             

50,960          29,370

Collection Fund
            

194,640
          

(26,510)
           

(18,060)        (21,350)
     

Total Financing
       

(9,677,270)
     

(9,607,670)
     

(10,149,880) (10,574,270)
     

Cumulative Deficit / (Surplus)
            

500,000
       

1,202,290
         

1,650,290     1,650,290
     

Efficiency Requirement (cumulative)
          

(500,000)*
     

(1,202,290)
       

(1,650,290)   (1,650,290)
Growth Efficiencies realised (cumulative)     
     

Deficit / (Surplus)
                      

0
                    

0
                     

0                  0
     

*new in-year requirement - £435,000 also rolled forward from 2018/19 as per re-profiled programme

Page 106



APPENDIX B

                              

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

CAPITAL STRATEGY 
2019/20

Page 107



1 Introduction & Background 

1.1 The 2017 edition of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities 
requires local authorities to produce a ‘Capital Strategy’ from 2019/20. The 
purpose of the Capital Strategy is to demonstrate that the Council’s capital 
expenditure and investment decisions are taken in line with corporate 
priorities and properly take account of the following:

 Stewardship;
 Value for money;
 Prudence;
 Sustainability; and
 Affordability. 

1.2 The Capital Strategy is intended to give a high level overview of how capital 
expenditure, capital financing and treasury management activity contribute to 
the provision of services along with an overview of how associated risk is 
managed and the implications for future sustainability. It allows authorities to 
give greater weight to local circumstances and explain their approach to 
borrowing and investment.

1.3 The Strategy forms part of the Council’s integrated revenue, capital financial 
planning and sets out the long term context in which capital expenditure and 
investment decisions are made. It is an integral component of the Medium 
Term Financial Plan (MTFP) and is aligned with the Council’s:

 Corporate Plan
 Asset Management Strategy; 
 Growth Strategy; and
 Treasury Management Strategy

1.4 The strategy will provide for a balanced, sustainable capital programme over 
the medium term planning period ensuring that limited resources are applied 
in the most effective, efficient and economical way to contribute to the 
achievement of the Council’s Corporate Plan. 

1.5 The strategy sets out how the Council will prioritise its capital spending plans 
within the resources available and indicates the action to be taken to 
maximise resources for capital spending. The strategy is strategic in nature 
and will focus upon the process for determining capital investment priorities. 

1.6 The strategy sets out the strategic approach to the management of debt and 
borrowing. The detailed implications of this are contained within the Treasury 
Management Strategy (TMS) which is updated annually. .

1.7 The Capital Strategy will be updated annually alongside the Council’s MTFP. 
There will also be a fundamental review of the strategy alongside a revision of 
the Corporate Plan.

Page 108



2. Corporate Priorities

2.1 The Capital Strategy is driven by local priorities. The Council’s spending 
strategy is set out in the Corporate Plan formally adopted by the Council.

2.2 The Council’s 4-year Corporate Plan (2015-2019) articulates the aims, 
objectives and priority actions, which the Council is working to achieve over 
this period. Its delivery is measured through the Performance Framework, 
which has at its centre the three pillars of value for money - efficiency, 
economy and effectiveness. It in effect determines the Council’s commitments 
in the delivery of services and community leadership to the citizens of 
Staffordshire Moorlands.

2.3 The Council’s vision is expressed as:

“Achieving Excellence in the delivery of high quality services that meet the 
needs and aspirations of our communities”

2.4 This vision is articulated further by four aims:

 Help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live 
and work

 Meet our financial challenges and provide value for money
 Help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns 

and villages
 Protect and improve the environment

2.5 These aims are supported by a number of objectives which also provide the 
framework for the delivery of service plans. The Council’s objectives are 
summarised below:

Aim Objectives

1 Help create a safer and 
healthier environment for our 
communities to live and work

 Increased supply of good quality affordable homes
 Develop a positive relationship with communities
 Effective relationship with strategic partners
 Effective support of community safety arrangements including 

CCTV
 Provision of sports facilities and leisure opportunities focused 

upon improving health

2 Meet our financial challenges 
and provide value for money

 Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure value 
for money

 Ensure services are easily available to all our residents in the 
appropriate channels and provided “right first time”

 A high performing and well motivated workforce
 More effective use of Council assets

3 Help create a strong 
economy by supporting 
further regeneration of towns 
and villages 

 Encourage business start-ups and enterprises
 Flourishing town centres that support the local economy
 Encourage and develop tourism
 High quality development and building control with an “open 

for business” approach

Page 109



Aim Objectives

4 Protect and improve the 
environment 

 Effective recycling and waste management
 Promote environmentally sustainable policies and practices
 Provision of high quality public amenities, clean streets and 

environmental health
 Provision of quality parks and open spaces
 Car parking arrangements that meet the needs of residents, 

businesses and visitors

2.6 The Council is committed to playing the lead role in championing the local 
area. In so doing the Council recognises its community leadership role. 
Fulfilling this role effectively means influencing partners in a number of key 
areas in order to ensure that services are shaped and delivered around the 
needs and aspirations of citizens.

2.7 The Council’s influencing role is focused in the following areas:

 Support the police and other partners to reduce crime, the fear of crime 
and anti social behaviour

 Ensure there is effective health provision particularly for the elderly
 Support the development of rail links to the city of Stoke-on-Trent
 Ensure that the services provided by other public sector partners meet the 

needs of residents
 Work with Staffordshire County Council and other partners to ensure an 

effective partnership with central government

2.8 The Plan identifies key priority outcomes, which will be the highest priority in 
the development of performance targets and key actions. A significant 
proportion of the Council’s resources will be directed towards achieving them:

Aim Priority Outcomes

1 Help create a safer and healthier 
environment for our communities to 
live and work

 Increased supply of quality affordable homes
 Improved health
 Improved community safety

2 Meet our financial challenges and 
provide value for money

 Balanced and sustainable medium term financial plan 
position

 Council services provide value for money
 High level of resident and customer satisfaction

3 Help create a strong economy by 
supporting further regeneration of 
towns and villages 

 Sustainable towns and rural communities
 Increased economic growth

4 Protect and improve the 
environment 

 High recycling rates
 Quality parks and open spaces and clean streets

Page 110



2 Capital Spending Priorities

3.1 The Council’s capital investment priorities are determined by the corporate 
priorities set out above. The key capital investment priorities for the Council 
are therefore as follows: 

Corporate Property – the Council will invest in maintaining the properties 
that support the delivery of services direct to residents. 

Other Corporate Assets – the Council will invest in other assets that support 
the delivery of services e.g. transport fleet.  

Affordable Housing & Private Sector Housing Renewal – the Council will 
support the development of affordable housing and investment in the 
improvement in housing conditions throughout the district  

Enabling Growth – the Council will support the growth of business and 
employment opportunities within the district in addition to housing 
development in line with the commitments set out in the Local Plan  

Service Transformation – the Council will invest in projects that improve 
service performance or reduce service expenditure on an “invest to save” 
basis the will include investment in ICT 

3 Asset Management Planning

4.1 The overriding objective of asset management is to ensure that the Council 
maintains a portfolio of property assets that is appropriate, fit for purpose and 
affordable.

4.2 The council’s property portfolio consists of the following:

 Operational property i.e. assets that support core business and service 
delivery

 Investment properties held to support economic growth and / or to 
provide a financial return to the Council e.g. industrial units

 Community assets e.g. parks, playgrounds and open spaces.

4.3 Asset management is an important part of the council’s management 
arrangements and is crucial to the delivery of value for money services. The 
Council through production of its Asset Management Plan (AMP) is committed 
to:

 Optimise the Council’s land and property portfolio through proactive estate 
management and effective corporate arrangements for the acquisition and 
disposal; 

 A regular review of the condition of retained properties including a long-
term (30-year) assessment of the necessary investment to maintain the 
assets fit for purpose; and

Page 111



 Realise the value of any properties that have been declared surplus to 
requirements in a timely manner, having regard to the market conditions.

4 Commercial Activities 

5.1 The Council currently undertakes and will continue consider commercial 
activities. These are in two forms: 

Alternative service delivery arrangements – where the Council has a stake 
in a company which is established for the delivery of Council services 

Commercial investments - investments taken for mainly financial reasons - 
these may include:

 Investments explicitly taken with the aim of making a financial surplus for 
the Council.

 Commercial investments also include fixed assets which are held primarily 
for financial benefit or to support economic growth.

5.2 The reasons for commercial investments are:

 Financial returns to fund services to residents;
 Reductions in service spending;
 Pursuing the Council’s Growth Strategy; and
 Economic development and regeneration activity in the district 

5.3 The Council will continue to invest prudently on a commercial basis and to 
take advantage of opportunities as they present themselves, supported by our 
robust governance process.

5.4 Such investments do not always give priority to security and liquidity over 
yield. In these cases, such a decision will be explicit, with the additional risks 
set out and the impact on financial sustainability identified and reported. 
Before considering any such investments the Council will ensure: 

 That it has the appropriate legal powers to undertake such investments; 
and

 That any investment is proportionate of all investments in order to avoid an 
excessive level of risk. 

5.5 The commercial investments may involve the acquisition of property. The 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) define 
investment property as property held solely to earn rentals or for capital 
appreciation or both. Historically, property has provided strong investment 
returns in terms of stable income. Property investment is not without risk as 
property values can fall as well as rise and changing economic conditions 
could cause tenants to leave with properties remaining vacant. These risks 
will continue to be identified and managed through the Council’s Risk 
Management Framework.

Page 112



5.6 The council may fund commercial investments by borrowing. The revenue 
returns should exceed the cost of repaying the borrowed money each year. 

5 Loans to Third Parties

6.1 The council has discretion to grant loans to third parties for a number of 
reasons. These loans are treated as capital expenditure. In making loans the 
Council is exposing itself to the risk that the borrower defaults on repayments. 
The Council, in making these loans, will therefore ensure they are prudent 
and that the risks have been identified and fully considered. 

6.2 The Council will periodically review its loan portfolio in order to ensure that the 
cumulative exposure of the Council is proportionate and prudent.

6.3 The Council will ensure that a full due diligence exercise is undertaken for 
each individual loan and will ensure that adequate security is in place. The 
business case for each loan will consider all of the benefits and the risks. 

6.4 It will be necessary to assess the level of risk attached to the provision of 
each individual loan and consequently build in a ‘risk premium’ into the 
interest rate charges to account for this. The factors taken into account in 
determining this premium:
 the level of security;
 financial position and credit rating; 
 the overall term of the loan; and 
 the value of the loan. 

6.5 The step by step process undertaken is outlined below:-

STEP 1 – Assessing 
State Aid Implications 

In assessing state aid implications and due diligence around 
risk, the starting point used is the EU reference rate:  as it 
stands, this is approximately 1%.   Other considerations are then 
assessed (based on STEP 2 – 4) which potentially increase this 
rate between 1-10% - resulting in an overall rate chargeable 
between 2% and 11%.

STEP 2 – Assessing 
available market rates

In liaison with the Council’s Advisors, the interest rate the third 
party would be expected to pay if accessing funding from the 
market (based on amount/loan term etc) is estimated.  This is to 
ensure the rate the Council is offering is competitive and not 
undercutting the market.  

STEP 3 – Assessing 
credit quality

The next consideration is credit quality – which may then 
consequently reduce/increase the rate.  Factors that are taken 
into account include:- credit ratings (if applicable), the financial 
position of the borrower, what security is available etc.

STEP 4 – Assessment 
of Corporate Plan 
objectives

Finally, there is an overall assessment of the purpose of the third 
party loan and linking this to the Council’s Corporate Plan 
objectives – local factors based on the outcomes of the loan 
may have an influence on the rate charged.

6.6 All loans are agreed by full Council in line with the Council’s constitution. All 
loans will also be subject to regular monitoring.

Page 113



7 Capital Expenditure

7.1 Capital spending decisions will appropriately reflect the aspirations and 
priorities included within the Corporate Plan and its supporting strategies.

7.2 Any scheme / project to be added to the Capital Programme will be subject to 
a ‘gateway’ process and prioritised according to availability of resources and 
the longer-term impact on the council’s financial position. The ‘gateway’ 
process will be undertaken in line with the Council’s agreed project 
management methodology with a robust business case being developed at 
the critical stages of project approval and initiation. This process will be 
overseen by the Council’s Transformation Board.

7.3 The business case will include the following considerations:
 A clear assessment of the cost of financing the capital scheme, net of 

revenue benefits, profiled over the lifetime of each scheme; and
 Commissioning and procuring for capital schemes will comply with the 

requirements set out in the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules.

7.4 The Capital Strategy and the Capital Programme will be agreed by the 
Council in February each year as part of the budget setting process. The 
Medium Term Financial Plan, Asset Management Plan and Treasury 
Management Strategy will be considered at the same time.  In year variations 
of spend (subject to budget tolerance levels) and the re-profiling of schemes 
will be considered and approved by Cabinet. 

7.5 The Cabinet and the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel receive capital 
monitoring reports as part of the quarterly performance and financial 
monitoring reports.

7.6 Cabinet considers and approves new bids for inclusion in the capital 
programme. Approval to spend on individual capital schemes will only be 
given once procedural this approval has been achieved.

7.7 Each approved scheme will be included in the Council’s Transformation 
Programme and one of the Council’s Alliance Management Team (AMT) will 
be assigned as Project Executive and will be responsible / accountable for the 
delivery of the scheme. 

7.8 Wherever possible the Council will take a long term view of plans in order to 
assess affordability and the demand on future capital resources. It is essential 
for example to consider the lifespan and fitness for purpose of assets. This 
will be considered through asset management planning (condition surveys) 
and wider service based exercises e.g. leisure centre provision evaluation. 

7.9 There is a clear demand for long term planning for capital and treasury 
management purposes. The council’s current debt portfolio contains loans 
that mature up to 2020. The debt repayment profile needs to be managed 
alongside the longer term expectations for capital expenditure and funding 
forecasts.

Page 114



7.10 Long-term forecasts are not easily predicted and the accuracy of all financial 
estimates will be limited. However, long-term forecasting is valuable in 
informing strategic plans taking account of the cumulative sustainability and 
affordability of existing and planned investments which will need to be repaid 
over future periods. For major projects and investment the funding and 
financial implications need to be planned well in advance.

8 Resourcing Capital Expenditure 

8.1 In order to fund its capital investment, the Council will have access to limited 
sources of funding. The main sources of funding are as follows: 

 Capital Receipts 

These will be yielded from the disposal of land and property. A programme of 
disposal will be agreed by the Cabinet. This will be informed by the asset 
management planning process. In considering disposals the Council will take 
account of the following:

o Potential loss of income from investment properties 
o Projected saving in running costs, and capital costs of major investment 

required 
o Assessment against fitness of premises for purpose and current patterns 

of need 

The Secretary of State has allowed the flexible use of capital receipts. It is 
considered that individual local authorities will be best placed to decide which 
projects will be most effective for their area. The key criteria to use when 
deciding whether expenditure can be funded by the capital receipts flexibility 
is that it is forecast to generate ongoing savings. If the Council plans to use 
this funding option a proposal will be prepared setting out the planned use, 
listing the projects and the expected savings and / or improvements in service 
outcomes for each project, and the impact on the Council’s prudential 
indicators.

 Borrowing 

Capital projects that cannot be funded from any other source can be funded 
from borrowing. Local Authorities can borrow to fund schemes where it is 
prudent to so. They need to consider their ability to pay for the borrowing. The 
levels of borrowing are determined by using the indicators set out in the 
Prudential Code. The borrowing repayment and interest charges on the loan 
need to be met from existing revenue budgets or identify them as new growth 
in the annual budget setting process and factor them into the MTFP.

The Chief Finance Officer will make an assessment of the overall prudence, 
affordability and sustainability of the total borrowing requested and the impact 
of the Council’s borrowing will be reported in the Treasury Management 
Strategy alongside the Prudential Indicators required by CIPFA’s Prudential 
Code for Capital Finance.

Page 115



The Chief Finance Officer will also determine whether the borrowing should 
be from internal resources or whether to enter into external borrowing. This 
decision making will be undertaken in line with the Council’s Treasury 
Strategy and will be reported to the Audit & Accounts Committee as part of 
the monitoring of treasury management activity. 

 Revenue Funding

The Council may use revenue budgets to fund capital expenditure. This may 
be via a capital reserve which has been established to finance capital 
expenditure as an alternative to external borrowing.

The Council will formally review such reserves and their application both as 
part of the budget setting process and at finalisation of the annual accounts.  

 S106 contributions 

The principal purpose of S106 agreements is to support individual planning 
applications in line with the Council’s planning policies. Wider contributions 
are constrained by legislation and have to be negotiated and justified.

The Council will ensure these are where possible focussed towards corporate 
priorities subject to the legislative constraints.

 External Grant Funding 

The Council has a history of success in bidding for grants from a number of 
sources. There is a risk of reacting to funding opportunities informed by 
external priorities rather than chasing those that match the Council’s priorities 
/ needs. 

The Council will seek to ensure that bids are submitted to support investment 
that is directed to the commitments made in the Corporate Plan.  

 Partnership Funding

There are a number of examples where the Council has attracted third party 
funding from partners e.g. leisure centre investment from long-term 
contractor.    

The Council is aware of the need to be innovative and to work closely with the 
private, public and voluntary Sectors to deliver outcomes in line with the 
Corporate Plan priorities at a time when there will be reduced levels of capital 
resources.

Any such investments will be considered only if they are more cost effective 
than the Council investing directly.

Page 116



9 Forecast Expenditure and Resources

9.1 The forecasted spend over the current financial planning period (2019/20 to 
2022/23) is as follows:

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total 
 £ £ £ £ £ £
Asset Management Plan 483,750 1,467,080 1,085,220 1,036,300 1,627,450 5,699,800
Housing Grants 1,161,650 1,256,000 1,226,000 1,211,000 1,211,000   6,065,650 
ICT Strategy              -   255,800              -                -                -   255,800
Fleet Management 1,346,300 1,325,750 2,468,290 129,250 30,000 5,299,590
Other Schemes 600,000 480,620 50,000 50,000              -   1,180,620

Total Programme 3,591,700 4,785,250 4,829,510 2,426,550 2,868,450 18,501,460 
      

9.2 The individual projects that are included in the above include: 

 Asset Management Plan (AMP) – the costs identified in ensuring the 
Council’s property portfolio remain fit for purpose.  This includes:-
- Public Buildings
- Car Parks
- Public Conveniences
- Waterways & Infrastructure assets
- Leisure Centres
- Depots & Parks Buildings
- Industrial Units

 Housing Grants – the District Council is the duty holder for the mandatory 
Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG’s).  All eligible applicants are entitled to 
receive mandatory funding for certain major adaptations to their properties.  
Funding for this scheme is provided through the Better Care Fund vi the 
County Council

 ICT Strategy – the key priorities of the ICT Strategy are to provide the 
technological infrastructure to support joint working, new ways of workings 
and improve access to services for the Council’s customers  

 Fleet Management – the estimated costs of the replacement fleet 
programme are included within the capital programme.  However, options 
appraisals are undertaken prior to purchase to determine the most cost 
effective method of financing.  Therefore, other funding models, for 
example, contract hire or leasing may be undertaken for some vehicles 
categories

 Other schemes – include schemes such as park and play facility 
improvements, facility improvements, conservation grants, CCTV 
equipment 

9.3 Further detail of the above capital schemes is included within the main body 
of the Medium Term Financial Plan. 

Page 117



9.4 The resources that are to be used to finance the Capital Programme are as 
follows:

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total 
£ £ £ £ £ £

External Contributions 1,211,000 1,238,390 1,211,000 1,211,000 1,211,000 6,082,390
Capital Receipts              -   40,000              -     140,000              -   180,000
General Fund Balances    953,730              -                -                -                -        953,730 
Capital Reserve 392,570 1,620,430              -                -                -   2,013,000
S106 Planning    135,690              -                -                -                -   135,690
Borrowing 898,710 1,886,430 3,618,510 1,075,550 1,657,450 9,136,650

Total  Financing 3,591,700 4,785,250 4,829,510 2,426,550 2,868,450 18,501,460

9.5 The commercial investments held by the Council can be summarised as 
follows:

 Industrial units – commercial units available for small and medium sized 
organisations to rent for the operation of their business

 Property rentals – rental streams generated from sharing Council 
properties with partners/external organisations

 Ascent Housing – a joint venture with Your Housing Group Limited for the 
provision of affordable housing across the District

 Alliance Environment Services (AES) – company established in 
partnership with ANSA (wholly owned company of Cheshire East Council)  
to deliver waste, streets, fleet and grounds maintenance.

9.6 The following investments are currently being considered:

 Investment in key strategic land to enable housing and business 
development 

 The purchase of additional investment property
 An alternative funding model working with Your Housing to further 

enhance the provision of affordable housing
 Alternative service delivery arrangements for the delivery of trading 

services

10 Long-term Considerations

10.1 There a number of functions where there are long term capital spending 
liabilities have been identified.

Asset Management Plan 

10.2 In line with the commitment made in this strategy, asset condition surveys 
were last completed for the Council’s property portfolio in 2016. These 
ascertain the overall condition of the properties and establish the necessary 
capital investment required to ensure that they are maintained to an 
appropriate standard.

Page 118



10.3 The indicative capital investment required can be summarised as follows:

SMDC - Capital Investment Required
2016-17 - 
2019-20 
(MTFP)

2020-21 - 
2045-46 (26 

Years)
TOTAL

£ £ £
Public Buildings 1,010,850 2,761,600 3,772,450
Car Parks 754,000 4,293,431 5,047,431
Public Conveniences 181,400 415,800 597,200
Waterways & Infrastructure Assets 479,361 448,761 928,122
Leisure Centres 310,000 10,005,995 10,315,995
Depots and Parks Buildings 97,070 2,355,714 2,452,784
Industrial Units 80,380 392,050 472,430

TOTAL 2,913,061 20,673,351 23,586,412

10.4 The overall outcomes of the surveys can be summarised as follows:

 A number of the Council’s operational assets are dated in appearance and 
require investment;

 The Council’s car parks require capital investment;
 There are structural issues associated with a number of the Council’s 

buildings  which require resolution;
 There are urgent works related to health and safety requirements that 

need to be resolved; and
 Investment is required to the electrical and mechanical infrastructure of a 

number of buildings. 

10.5 The results from these surveys have informed the development of the 
Council’s four-year Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). Adjustments have 
been made to exclude any major investment in the Council’s leisure centres 
and operational depots where it is assumed that investment will be deferred 
pending the major decisions that linked to changes in the service delivery 
arrangements which are in progress. 

10.6 The indicative investment for 30-years will have a significant impact on the 
Council’s future revenue budgets and the analysis shows that the Council’s 
property portfolio in its current form is unaffordable. The estimated impact of 
the indicative capital projections is detailed below for the 30-year investment 
requirements at the point the surveys were completed is detailed below:

SMDC Estimated Revenue Consequences - Cumulative 
Impact

2016-17 - 
2019-20 
(MTFP)

2020-21 - 
2045-46 (26 

Years)
TOTAL

£ £ £
Fit for Purpose Standard works - Cumulative Cost       115,959    943,653    1,059,612 
Less Existing MTFP - Cumulative Cost (111,403) - (111,403)
Potential Additional Budget Requirement           4,556    943,653      948,210 

Page 119



10.7 The above analysis shows that providing the investment in the longer term to 
maintain the Council’s property portfolio in its current form is unaffordable.   

10.8 In order to address this, the Council agreed to a number of actions to reduce 
the impact of the necessary capital spending. It was agreed that the following 
are considered before investment in each of the assets is made: 

 Asset rationalisation 
 Shared use of assets 
 Reduction in specification and functionality
 Generate additional capital receipts
 Identify grants to support investment 
 Generate additional revenue from asset holdings 

Review of Strategic Land Holdings

10.9 In order to address a number of the considerations above the Council agreed 
to review the Council’s strategic land holdings with a view to developing 
options to either generate additional capital receipts or opportunities to 
generate ongoing financial returns. This review is currently in progress.   

Leisure Centres

10.10 Given the age and condition of the leisure centres, significant capital 
investment is required over the next 30 years in order that these assets 
remain fit for purpose. 

10.11 The Council commissioned a review of its leisure centre provision in the 
context of its sports facility needs focusing on sports halls, swimming pools 
and other indoor provision. The purpose of undertaking this review was to 
inform the Council on options for future provision of council leisure centres 
and other sports facility based services from 2018 and beyond. 

10.12 The outcome from this review in effect set out a position statement on the 
suggested facility hierarchy and approach, along with recommendations for 
the phasing of future facility developments and rationalisation. The aim is to 
ensure that the Council can develop a more sustainable solution in relation to 
meeting customer needs, affordability and partner aspirations, whilst 
supporting the overall vision of the Council’s newly adopted Physical Activity 
& Sports Strategy.

10.13 The effectiveness of the current leisure centre provision was also assessed. 
This assessment considered current income and expenditure benchmarks. 
The conclusion of the review was that the Council should consider the 
following investment requirements: 

 Replacement of South Moorlands Leisure Centre with smaller community 
pool and fitness offer, ideally co-located with other public sector services 
(health /  children’s services / social care etc.);

 Refurbishment and essential works at Biddulph Valley Leisure Centre; 
 Replacement pool at Brough Park Leisure Centre & 3G pitch development; 

Page 120



 Increased access to school sites for sports hall provision / club use; and
 Development of 3G pitch provision – potentially linked to school sites

10.14 The indicative capital cost for these investments would be in the region of 
£19.25m. At this stage the investment costs are significantly in excess of 
revenue savings, and consequently it will be necessary for the Council to 
identify additional sources of capital investment to deliver these 
improvements.

Operational Depot Provision

10.15 In 2017 established Alliance Environmental Services (AES) which was 
created jointly with High Peak Borough Council and ANSA (a company owned 
by Cheshire East Council) to deliver the Council’s waste collection, street 
cleansing and grounds maintenance services. The Council’s waste collection 
service was transferred to the company in July 2018 with the rest of functions 
expected to transfer in April 2019.    

10.16 Major investments in the operational depot facilities which have been leased / 
licensed to AES has been deferred until the opportunity has been taken to 
review the requirements of the new company in light of widening of the base 
of the services provided.

11 Debt, Borrowing & Treasury Management

11.1 Effective treasury management is critical to the safeguarding and 
management of the financial resources at the Council’s disposal.  Investment 
and borrowing decisions are made in accordance with the Council’s formally 
adopted Treasury Management Strategy.  The Treasury Management 
Strategy is presented annually and approved by Full Council.  

11.2 There are key prudential indicators set in respect of the impact of capital 
expenditure.  The report details the forecast borrowing requirement over a 
four year period, the consequential borrowing costs and the impact of the 
Council’s capital financing requirement (CFR). The CFR is total outstanding 
capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for either from revenue or 
capital resources, essentially the Council’s underlying borrowing need. 

Page 121



11.3 The table below summarises the impact of the Council’s capital expenditure 
plans on the CFR:-

2017/18 
Actual

201819 
Estimate

2019/20 
Estimate

2020/21 
Estimate

2021/22 
Estimate

2022/23 
EstimateCapital Financing 

Requirement (CFR)
£ £ £ £ £ £

CFR – services 16,472,000 16,483,000 18,238,000 21,769,000 22,487,000 23,766,000

CFR – Commercial activities/ 
non-financial investments

0 0 80,000 78,000 77,000 75,000

Total CFR 16,472,000 16,483,000 18,318,000 21,847,000 22,564,000 23,841,000

Movement in CFR 262,000 11,000 1,835,000 3,529,000 717,000 1,277,000

Represented by:
Net financing need for the 
year

636,000 899,000 1,886,000 3,619,000 1,076,000 1,657,000

Less Minimum Revenue 
Provision*

(374,000) (888,000) (51,000) (90,000) (359,000) (380,000)

Movement in CFR 262,000 11,000 1,835,000 3,529,000 717,000 1,277,000

*MRP includes termination of leased vehicles in 2018/19 and forecast borrowing on fleet programme 
in 2021/22.

11.4 Where a borrowing requirement is identified, an assessment takes place on 
the most cost effective way to fund this.  This could result in ‘external 
borrowing’ from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB), other Local 
Authorities, direct from the market or by utilising finance lease arrangements.  

11.5 Alternatively, ‘internal borrowing’ – the use of cash balances – could be used 
temporarily, particularly in the current interest rate climate where investment 
returns remain low.  However, this needs to be carefully reviewed to avoid 
incurring higher borrowing costs in the future when the Council may not be 
able to avoid new borrowing to finance capital expenditure and/or the 
refinancing of maturing debt.

11.6 The Council’s forward debt projections are shown in the table below in relation 
to the CFR:-

March ‘18 
Actual  £

March ‘19 
Estimate  £

March ‘20 
Estimate  £

March ‘21 
Estimate  £

March ‘22 
Estimate  £

March ‘23 
Estimate  £

External Borrowing 12,000,000 11,000,000 16,785,000 20,403,000 21,479,000 23,137,000

Other long-term liabilities 854,000 0 0 0 0 0

Gross Debt at 31st March 12,854,000 11,000,000 16,785,000 20,403,000 21,479,000 23,137,000

Change in Debt position (360,000) (1,854,000) 5,785,000 3,618,000 1,0736,000 1,658,000

Capital Financing 
Requirement 16,472,000 16,483,000 18,318,000 21,847,000 22,564,000 23,841,000

(Under) / over borrowing (3,618,000) (5,483,000) (1,533,000) (1,444,000) (1,085,000) (704,000)

Page 122



12 Risk Management

12.1 There are a number of key risks that will impact upon the successful 
implementation of the Council’s Capital Strategy 

12.2 The Council operates effective risk management through its Risk 
Management Framework. Risk management is the process of identifying 
risks, evaluating their potential consequences and determining the most 
effective methods of managing them and/or responding to them. It is both a 
means of minimising the costs and disruption to the Council caused by 
undesired events and of ensuring that the element of risk in all activities is 
properly understood.

12.3 In order to manage risk effectively, the risks associated with each capital 
project need to be systematically identified, analysed, influenced and 
monitored. It is important to identify the appetite for risk by each scheme and 
for the capital programme as a whole, especially when investing in capital 
assets held primarily for financial returns. 

12.4 An assessment of risk should therefore be built into each individual capital 
project and the major risks that identified should be recorded in the Projects 
Risk Register which is reported to the Council’s Audit & Accounts Committee. 

12.5 The risks associated with the Capital Strategy are detailed below with the 
mitigating actions:

Risk Mitigating Actions
Diminishing Resources  The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) carefully monitored 

and managed
 New grant / funding opportunities explored
 Partnership opportunities explored to share investment

Project Delivery  Spending / Funding closely monitored 
 Projects managed through the Council’s project management 

methodology
 Major projects reported through the council’s performance 

framework 
Commercial Investments  Exposure to non-repayment carefully managed through the 

contract management arrangements
 Disinvestment potential will be regularly considered

VAT Partial Exemption  Each capital investment will be closely reviewed to assess its 
VAT implications.

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



Environmental Health Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% increase

Animal Boarding Establishments (Kennels & 

Cateries) including Domestic Day Care & Over 

Night Licence (initial or renewal, excluding vet 

fees). Vets fees are charged in addition to 

these fees based on full cost recovery:

1-10 animals Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £120.00 £150.00 25.00%

11 + animals Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £185.00 £200.00 8.11%

25 Plus Animals Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £250.00 £250.00 0.00%

Animal boarding (Crèche Facility) - 

Commercial 
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £250.00 £250.00

Commercial Home Boarding (Host franchise) 

upto 5 Households 
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £400.00

Commercial Home Boarding (Host franchise) 

upto 5 - 10 Households 
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £600.00

Commercial Home Boarding (Host franchise) 

upto 10 Plus 

Price On 

Request 

Re-Rate Inspection £100.00

Interim Inspection £100.00

Approved Food Premises  Charge not VAT-able Statutory £0.00 £0.00

Camping Site Registration Charge not VAT-able Statutory £0.00 £0.00

Caravan & Camping Site Registration Charge not VAT-able Statutory £0.00 £0.00

Park Homes: New application Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £345.00 £350.00 1.45%

Fee per additional 

pitch
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £10.00 £10.50 5.00%

Licence amendment Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £175.00 £180.00 2.86%

Transfer of Licence Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £115.00 £120.00 4.35%

Annual fee Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £180.00 £190.00 5.56%

Deposit of site rules Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £95.00 £100.00 0.00%

Contaminated Land Enquiry:
(Initial Enquiry 2 Hours 

Minimum Charge ) 
VAT included Fair charging £100.00 £110.00 10.00%

Each subsequent hour 

or part thereof
VAT included Fair charging £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Cooling Tower Notification Charge not VAT-able Statutory £0.00 £0.00

Dangerous Wild Animals Licence (initial or 

renewal, excluding vet fees). Vets fees are 

charged in addition to these fees based on full 

cost recovery

Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £285.00 £300.00 5.26%

Dog Breeding Establishments Licence (initial or 

renewal, excluding vet fees). Vets fees are 

charged in addition to these fees based on full 

cost recovery:

1-4 dogs Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £130.00 £140.00 7.69%

5 - 10 dogs Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £235.00 £250.00 6.38%

10 Plus Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £300.00 £300.00 0.00%

Re-Rate Inspection £100.00

Interim Inspection £100.00

Environmental Health Pre-Application advice 

(minimum 2 hours) 

(Initial Enquiry 2 Hours 

Minimum Charge)
VAT included Fair charging £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

Each subsequent hour 

or part thereof
VAT included Fair charging £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Page 125



Environmental Health Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% increase

Environmental Permit Fees Set by DEFRA Charge not VAT-able Statutory
Fees set by 

DEFRA

Fees set by 

DEFRA

Copy of Register of Authorisations  (Permits): 

Copying Charge Plus officer time charged for 

photocopying per hour or part thereof.

per side of A4 (or 

equivalent electronic 

format)

Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £0.15 £20.00

Officer Time (EIR) Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Export Health Certificate VAT included Fair charging £130.00 £130.00 0.00%

Export Health Certificate Unlimited Yearly VAT included Fair charging £1,500.00 £1,500.00 0.00%

Export Health Certificate for Brewery/Artisan 

Products 
VAT included Fair charging £60.00 £60.00 0.00%

Export Health Certificate Unlimited Yearly 

Brewery/Artisan Products 
VAT included Fair charging £500.00 £500.00 0.00%

Export Health Certificate (Samples/ Low Value 

goods up to £500 per consignment)
VAT included Fair charging £60.00 £60.00 0.00%

Amendment to Health Certificate VAT included Fair charging £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Amendment to Health Certificate 

(Artisan/Brewery Products)
VAT included Fair charging £10.00 £15.00 50.00%

Food Hygiene Rating Scheme - Re-Rate within 

3 Months of Inspection 

Price On Application 

Officer Time hourly 
VAT included Fair charging £150.00 £150.00 0.00%

Enhanced Food Registration & Advice Visit 

with Safer Food Better Business Pack 
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

Food Hygiene/Health & Safety Bespoke 

Training Courses 
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging

Price on 

Application   

Price on 

Application   

Copy of Food Register (Full Copy of database) Full Register Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £170.00 £170.00 0.00%

One Copy of Any Entry in the Register Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £15.00 £15.00 0.00%

List of Food Premises In a Particular Category Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £70.00 £70.00 0.00%

Food Premises Registration Charge not VAT-able Statutory £0.00 £0.00

House in Multiple Occupation Licence: First application Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £385.00 £385.00 0.00%

 

Subsequent 

application/renewal by 

same landlord

Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £310.00 £310.00 0.00%

Change of ownership 

application
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £310.00 £310.00 0.00%

Improvement Notice Fee VAT included Statutory £200.00 £200.00 0.00%

Immigration Housing Certificate per application VAT included Fair charging £80.00 £100.00 25.00%

Hypnotism Registration Charge not VAT-able Statutory £0.00 £0.00

Land Drainage/Culvert Maintenance for Private 

Individuals or Companies 

Full Price On 

Application inc. Officer 

Time hourly 

VAT included Fair charging £50.00 £55.00 10.00%

Pet Shop Licence (initial or renewal) (excluding 

vet fees. Vets fees are charged in addition to 

these fees based on full cost recovery):

Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £160.00 £170.00 6.25%

Interim Inspection £100.00

Re-Rate Inspection £100.00

Pleasure Boats & Pleasure Vessels to be let 

for hire or used for carrying passengers for hire 

(Exemption for such boats on any inland 

waterway owned or managed by the British 

Waterways Board)

VAT included Fair charging £100.00 £110.00 10.00%

Page 126



Environmental Health Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% increase

Riding Establishments Licence (initial or 

renewal, excluding vet fees). Vets fees are 

charged in addition to these fees based on full 

cost recovery:  (Annual Vet Inspection 

required)

1-10 animals Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £120.00 £130.00 8.33%

11-20 animals Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £140.00 £150.00 7.14%

21+ animals Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £175.00 £185.00 0.00%

Re-Rate Inspection £100.00

Interim Inspection £100.00

Sex Shop & Cinema Licence (including Sexual 

Entertainment Venues of any type):
New Application Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £3,100.00 £3,100.00 0.00%

Renewal Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £1,700.00 £1,700.00 0.00%

Transfer Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £700.00 £700.00 0.00%

Special Treatments Registration (Premises) 

including: Massage; Manicure; Other Special 

Treatments e.g. Vapour, Sauna or Other Bath 

Treatments

Charge not VAT-able Statutory £0.00 £0.00

Statement of Officers Opinion: Initial Enquiry 2 Hours VAT included Full commercial £100.00 £105.00 0.00%

subsequent hour or 

part thereof
VAT included Full commercial £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Home/Mobile Tattooing, Piercing, Acupuncture 

Including 1 person 
Premises/ Person Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £150.00 £200.00 33.33%

Tattooing, Piercing, Acupuncture, Electrolysis 

Licence (initial or renewal):
Premises Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £150.00 £150.00 0.00%

Person Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £85.00 £90.00 5.88%

Guest Tattooist Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Ear Piercing Only: Premises Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Person Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Amendment (e.g. 

Change of address)
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Zoo Licence (excluding vet fees). Vets fees are 

charged in addition to these fees based on full 

cost recovery:

First (4 year licence) Charge not VAT-able Statutory £700.00 £1,000.00 42.86%

Second & subsequent 

(6 year licence)
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £700.00 £1,000.00 42.86%

Zoo Licence: Interim periodical Charge not VAT-able Statutory

Vet fees as 

applicable 

only

Vet fees as 

applicable 

only

Renewal periodical Charge not VAT-able Statutory

Vet fees as 

applicable 

only

Vet fees as 

applicable 

only

Informal inspections Charge not VAT-able Statutory

Vet fees as 

applicable 

only

Vet fees as 

applicable 

only

Pest Control

Contract Work (Commercial) Per hour Per officer VAT included Full commercial £100.00 £110.00 10.00%

treatments in addition to contract agreement: Single treatment VAT included Full commercial £100.00 £110.00 10.00%

up to 3 treatments VAT included Full commercial £200.00 £215.00 7.50%

Page 127



Environmental Health Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% increase

up to 5 treatments VAT included Full commercial £300.00 £315.00 5.00%

Non Contract Work (Commercial) Per hour Per officer VAT included Full commercial £125.00 £150.00 20.00%

Rodents (Rats) (Domestic) - up to three visits 

to treat:
VAT included Free £0.00 £0.00

Wasps Nest (Domestic Treatment): VAT included Full commercial £60.00 £65.00 8.33%

Recipients of Means 

Tested Benefits 

(Housing Benefit/ 

LCTRS) & Vulnerable 

Adults

VAT included Subsidised £30.00 £32.50 8.33%

Rodents (Mice) (Domestic) - up to three visits 

to treat:
VAT included Full commercial £60.00 £65.00 8.33%

Recipients of Means 

Tested Benefits 

(Housing Benefit/ 

LCTRS) & Vulnerable 

Adults

VAT included Subsidised £30.00 £32.50 8.33%

Bed Bugs:

2 bed house
VAT included Full commercial £110.00 £115.00 4.55%

Recipients of Means 

Tested Benefits 

(Housing Benefit/ 

LCTRS) & Vulnerable 

Adults

VAT included Subsidised £55.00 £57.50 4.55%

3 bed house VAT included Full commercial £170.00 £175.00 2.94%

Recipients of Means 

Tested Benefits 

(Housing Benefit/ 

LCTRS) & Vulnerable 

Adults

VAT included Subsidised £85.00 £87.50 2.94%

4 bed house VAT included Full commercial £220.00 £225.00 2.27%

Recipients of Means 

Tested Benefits 

(Housing Benefit/ 

LCTRS) & Vulnerable 

Adults

VAT included Subsidised £110.00 £112.50 2.27%

>4 bed house VAT included Full commercial £300.00

Recipients of Means 

Tested Benefits 

(Housing Benefit/ 

LCTRS) & Vulnerable 

Adults

VAT included Subsidised
50% 

reduction
£150.00

Fleas:

2 bed house
VAT included Full commercial £80.00 £90.00 12.50%

Recipients of Means 

Tested Benefits 

(Housing Benefit/ 

LCTRS) & Vulnerable 

Adults

VAT included Subsidised £40.00 £45.00 12.50%

3 bed house VAT included Full commercial £100.00 £110.00 10.00%

Recipients of Means 

Tested Benefits 

(Housing Benefit/ 

LCTRS) & Vulnerable 

Adults

VAT included Subsidised £50.00 £55.00 10.00%

4 bed house VAT included Full commercial £120.00 £130.00 8.33%

Page 128



Environmental Health Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% increase

Recipients of Means 

Tested Benefits 

(Housing Benefit/ 

LCTRS) & Vulnerable 

Adults

VAT included Subsidised £60.00 £65.00 8.33%

>4 bed house VAT included Full commercial £200.00

£100.00

Ants VAT included Full commercial £70.00 £70.00 0.00%

Recipients of Means 

Tested Benefits 

(Housing Benefit/ 

LCTRS) & Vulnerable 

Adults

VAT included Subsidised £35.00 £35.00 0.00%

Other insect pests (domestic): VAT included Full commercial £70.00 £70.00 0.00%

Recipients of Means 

Tested Benefits 

(Housing Benefit/ 

LCTRS) & Vulnerable 

Adults

VAT included Subsidised £35.00 £35.00 0.00%

Moles (Commercial Only) VAT included Full commercial
Price on 

Application

Price on 

Application

Private Water Supply Charges

Risk Assessment: Upto 2 properties Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £300.00 £300.00 0.00%

Including Officer Time on Site 3-5 Properties £400.00

5 Plus Properties £500.00

Large Commercial £500.00

Sampling
Officer Time per 

Sample 
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £60.00 £60.00 0.00%

Investigation Per investigation Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £100.00 £120.00 20.00%

Analysing a sample under regulation 10 Re-Charge Charge not VAT-able Fair charging
Laboratory 

Charge

Laboratory 

Charge

Analysing a check monitoring sample 

Regulation 9
Re-Charge Charge not VAT-able Fair charging

Laboratory 

Charge

Laboratory 

Charge

Analysing an audit monitoring sample Re-Charge Charge not VAT-able Fair charging
Laboratory 

Charge

Laboratory 

Charge

Request from Search Company for Data 

relating to Private Water Supplies in a 

particular area. 

Hourly Rate Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £55.00 £60.00 9.09%

Stray Dogs Statutory fee Charge not VAT-able Statutory £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Admin fee Charge not VAT-able Statutory £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Kennel fee per day or 

part thereof

Fee set by 

kennel owner

Fee set by 

kennel owner

Page 129



Licensing Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Gambling Act

Bingo - New Application Charge not VAT-able Statutory £2,500.00

Annual Fee Charge not VAT-able Statutory £650.00 £1,000.00 53.85%

Application to Vary Charge not VAT-able Statutory £650.00 £1,500.00 130.77%

Application to Transfer Charge not VAT-able Statutory £550.00 £1,200.00 118.18%

Application for Reinstatement Charge not VAT-able Statutory £550.00 £1,200.00 118.18%

Application for Provisional Statement Charge not VAT-able Statutory £2,000.00

Application in respect of Provisional Statement 

Holder
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £700.00 £1,200.00 71.43%

Notification of Change Charge not VAT-able Statutory £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Copy of Licence Charge not VAT-able Statutory £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Adult Gaming Centre - New Application Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,300.00 £2,000.00 53.85%

Annual Fee Charge not VAT-able Statutory £650.00 £1,000.00 53.85%

Application to Vary Charge not VAT-able Statutory £650.00 £1,000.00 53.85%

Application to Transfer Charge not VAT-able Statutory £600.00 £1,200.00 100.00%

Application for Reinstatement Charge not VAT-able Statutory £600.00 £1,200.00 100.00%

Application for Provisional Statement Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,300.00 £2,000.00 53.85%

Application in respect of Provisional Statement 

Holder
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £650.00 £1,200.00 84.62%

Notification of Change Charge not VAT-able Statutory £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Copy of Licence Charge not VAT-able Statutory £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Family Entertainment Centre - New Application Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,500.00

Annual Fee Charge not VAT-able Statutory £500.00 £750.00 50.00%

Application to Vary Charge not VAT-able Statutory £600.00 £1,000.00 66.67%

Application to Transfer Charge not VAT-able Statutory £550.00 £950.00 72.73%

Application for Reinstatement Charge not VAT-able Statutory £550.00 £950.00 72.73%

Application for Provisional Statement Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,000.00 £1,600.00 60.00%

Application in respect of Provisional Statement 

Holder
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £600.00 £950.00 58.33%

Notification of Change Charge not VAT-able Statutory £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Copy of Licence Charge not VAT-able Statutory £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Betting Premises (excluding Tracks) - New 

Application
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,000.00 £2,000.00 100.00%

Annual Fee Charge not VAT-able Statutory £450.00 £600.00 33.33%

Page 130



Licensing Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Application to Vary Charge not VAT-able Statutory £650.00 £1,300.00 100.00%

Application to Transfer Charge not VAT-able Statutory £650.00 £1,200.00 84.62%

Application for Reinstatement Charge not VAT-able Statutory £650.00 £1,200.00 84.62%

Application for Provisional Statement Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,000.00 £2,000.00 100.00%

Application in respect of Provisional Statement 

Holder
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £650.00 £1,200.00 84.62%

Notification of Change Charge not VAT-able Statutory £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Copy of Licence Charge not VAT-able Statutory £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Race Tracks - New Application Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,800.00 £2,000.00 11.11%

Annual Fee Charge not VAT-able Statutory £900.00 £1,000.00 11.11%

Application to Vary Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,250.00 £1,250.00 0.00%

Application to Transfer Charge not VAT-able Statutory £900.00 £950.00 5.56%

Application for Reinstatement Charge not VAT-able Statutory £900.00 £950.00 5.56%

Application for Provisional Statement Charge not VAT-able Statutory £1,800.00 £2,000.00 11.11%

Application in respect of Provisional Statement 

Holder
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £900.00 £950.00 5.56%

Notification of Change Charge not VAT-able Statutory £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Copy of Licence Charge not VAT-able Statutory £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Gambling Act Permit Fees set by the 

Secretary of State 

Licensed Premises Automatic Notification 

Process: Payable on Notification

Up to 2 

machines
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Charges for Annual Licences (unless 

stated)

Small society Lotteries Application Application Charge not VAT-able Statutory £40.00 £40.00 0.00%

Small Society Lotteries Annual Renewal Renewals Charge not VAT-able Statutory £20.00 £20.00 0.00%

Street Trading Consent Annual Rate Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £3,100.00

Street Trading Consent - Upto 2 Days Annual Rate Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £1,600.00

Daily Street Trading consent Daily rate Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £30.00 £40.00 33.33%

Taxi Licences - Hackney Carriage & Private 

Hire Vehicles

Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle Licence (new & 

renewal) Including Brackets & Plates/Decals
Yearly Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £180.00 £180.00 0.00%

Replacement Driver Badge or Vehicle Plate 
Per 

Plate/Badge
Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £10.00 £10.00 0.00%

Hackney Carriage Decals - Provided by 3rd 

party company 

Price on 

request
Price on request

Change of Vehicle Including Plate/Card Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Page 131



Licensing Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

New Licensed Driver/Renewal: Including 

Knowledge Test and Resit, Safeguarding 

Training & Driver Badge 

Annual Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £75.00 £75.00 0.00%

3 years Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £150.00 £150.00 0.00%

Private Hire Operators Licence 1 Year Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £105.00 £105.00 0.00%

Private Hire Operators Licence 5 years Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £315.00 £315.00 0.00%

Document Identification Check (Fee set by 

Crown Post Office
VAT included Statutory £8.75 Price on Application

DBS Check by 3rd Party Company 
Price on 

request
Price on Application

Re-Sit Knowledge Test Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £20.00 £20.00 0.00%

Taxi Test (Paid Directly to Garage) 
Price on 

request
Price on Application 

Scrap Metal Dealers

Collectors Licence Charge not VAT-able Statutory £245.00 £245.00 0.00%

Variation to Collectors Licence Charge not VAT-able Statutory £95.00

Site Licence Charge not VAT-able Statutory £365.00 £390.00 6.85%

Variation to Site Licence £115.00

Variation to licence Change of Name or 

Address
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £32.00 £32.00 0.00%

Copy of Licence Charge not VAT-able Statutory £10.50 £15.00 42.86%

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licences and Club Premises 

Certificates - First Year Fee:

Band A Charge not VAT-able Statutory £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

Band B Charge not VAT-able Statutory £190.00 £190.00 0.00%

Band C Charge not VAT-able Statutory £315.00 £315.00 0.00%

Band D Charge not VAT-able Statutory £450.00 £450.00 0.00%

Band E Charge not VAT-able Statutory £635.00 £635.00 0.00%

Premises Licences and Club Premises 

Certificates Annual Fee:

Band A Charge not VAT-able Statutory £70.00 £70.00 0.00%

Band B Charge not VAT-able Statutory £180.00 £180.00 0.00%

Band C Charge not VAT-able Statutory £295.00 £295.00 0.00%

Band D Charge not VAT-able Statutory £320.00 £320.00 0.00%

Band E Charge not VAT-able Statutory £350.00 £350.00 0.00%

Personal  Licence (Application or Renewal) Charge not VAT-able Statutory £37.00 £37.00 0.00%

Temporary Event Notice Charge not VAT-able Statutory £21.00 £21.00 0.00%

Permitted Temporary Activities, Personal 

Licences and Miscellaneous:

Theft/ Loss, etc. of Premises Licence or 

Summary
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £10.50 £10.50 0.00%

Page 132



Licensing Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Application for a Provisional Statement where 

premises being built etc.
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £315.00 £315.00 0.00%

Notification of change of name or address Charge not VAT-able Statutory £10.50 £10.50 0.00%

Application to vary licence to specify individual 

as premises supervisor
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £23.00 £23.00 0.00%

Application for transfer of premises licence Charge not VAT-able Statutory £23.00 £23.00 0.00%

Interim authority notice following death etc. of 

licence holder
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £23.00 £23.00 0.00%

Theft, loss etc. of certificate or summary Charge not VAT-able Statutory £10.50 £10.50 0.00%

Notification of change of name or alteration of 

rules of club
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £10.50 £10.50 0.00%

Change of relevant registered address of club Charge not VAT-able Statutory £10.50 £10.50 0.00%

Theft, loss etc. of temporary event notice Charge not VAT-able Statutory £10.50 £10.50 0.00%

Theft, loss etc. of personal licence Charge not VAT-able Statutory £10.50 £10.50 0.00%

Duty to notify change of name or address Charge not VAT-able Statutory £10.50 £10.50 0.00%

Right of freeholder etc. to be notified of 

licensing matters
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £21.00 £21.00 0.00%

Minor Variation Charge not VAT-able Statutory £89.00 £89.00 0.00%

Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permit

Grant Charge not VAT-able Statutory £150.00 £150.00 0.00%

Existing Operator Grant Charge not VAT-able Statutory £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

Variation Charge not VAT-able Statutory £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

Transfer Charge not VAT-able Statutory £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Annual Fee Charge not VAT-able Statutory £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Change of Name Charge not VAT-able Statutory £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Club Gaming Permits

Grant Charge not VAT-able Statutory £200.00 £200.00 0.00%

Grant (Club Premises Certificate Holder) Charge not VAT-able Statutory £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

Existing Operator Grant Charge not VAT-able Statutory £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

Variation Charge not VAT-able Statutory £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

Renewal Charge not VAT-able Statutory £200.00 £200.00 0.00%

Renewal (Club Premise Certificate Holder) Charge not VAT-able Statutory £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

Annual Fee Charge not VAT-able Statutory £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Club Machine Permits

Grant Charge not VAT-able Statutory £200.00 £200.00 0.00%

Page 133



Licensing Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Grant (Club Premises Certificate Holder) Charge not VAT-able Statutory £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

Existing Operator Grant Charge not VAT-able Statutory £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

Variation Charge not VAT-able Statutory £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

Renewal Charge not VAT-able Statutory £200.00 £200.00 0.00%

Renewal (Club Premise Certificate Holder) Charge not VAT-able Statutory £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

Annual Fee Charge not VAT-able Statutory £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Family Entertainment Centre Gaming 

Permits

Grant Charge not VAT-able Statutory £300.00 £300.00 0.00%

Existing Operator Grant Charge not VAT-able Statutory £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

Renewal Charge not VAT-able Statutory £300.00 £300.00 0.00%

Change of Name Charge not VAT-able Statutory £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Copies of all Permits Each Charge not VAT-able Statutory £15.00 £15.00 0.00%

Other Licences

Street Collection Licence Charge not VAT-able Free £0.00 £0.00

Registrations

Statement of Officers Opinion Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £45.00 £50.00 11.11%

Page 134



Land Charges Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

LLC1 Residential Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

LLC1 Additional Parcels Residential Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £10.00 £10.00 0.00%

Con 29R Residential VAT included Cost recovery £39.60

(plus SCC fee incurred) VAT included Cost recovery £45.90 TBC

Con 29R Additional Parcels Residential VAT included Cost recovery £18.00 £26.00 44.44%

Full Standard Search (LLC1 + Con 29R) Part 

Con 29 (Inc. Vat)
Residential VAT included Cost recovery £67.40

(plus SCC fee incurred) VAT included Cost recovery £45.90 TBC

Full Standard Search Additional Parcels Part 

Con 29 (Inc. Vat)
Residential VAT included Cost recovery £28.00 £36.00 28.57%

Con 29O - Each Residential VAT included Cost recovery £9.00 £9.00 0.00%

Each Additional Enquiry Residential VAT included Cost recovery £18.00 £18.00 0.00%

Personal Search of the Land Charges Register Residential Charge not VAT-able Statutory £0.00 £0.00

A search on each individual part of the Local 

Land Charges Register:

Parts 5, 7, 8 & 12 Residential - each Charge not VAT-able Free £0.00 £0.00

Parts 1, 2, 6, 9, & 11 Residential - each Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Parts 4 & 10 Residential - each Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £4.00 £4.00 0.00%

Part 3 Residential - each Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £12.00 £12.00 0.00%

LLC1 Commercial Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £35.00 £40.00 14.29%

LLC1 Additional Parcels Commercial Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £20.00 £24.00 20.00%

Con 29R Commercial VAT included Cost recovery £82.80

(plus SCC fee incurred) VAT included Cost recovery £45.90 TBC

Con 29R Additional Parcels Commercial VAT included Cost recovery £36.00 £42.00 16.67%

Full Standard Search (LLC1 + Con 29R) Part 

Con29 (Inc. Vat)
Commercial VAT included Cost recovery £122.80

(plus SCC fee incurred) VAT included Cost recovery £45.90 TBC

Full Standard Search Additional Parcels Part 

Con29 (Inc. Vat) 
Commercial VAT included Cost recovery £56.00 £66.00 17.86%

Con 29O - Each Commercial VAT included Cost recovery £9.00 £9.00 0.00%

Each Additional Enquiry Commercial VAT included Cost recovery £18.00 £18.00 0.00%

Personal Search of the Land Charges Register Commercial Charge not VAT-able Statutory £0.00 £0.00

A search on each individual part of the Local 

Land Charges Register:

Parts 5, 7, 8 & 12 Commercial - each Charge not VAT-able Free £0.00 £0.00

Parts 1, 2, 6, 9, & 11 Commercial - each Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £1.50 £1.50 0.00%

Parts 4 & 10 Commercial - each Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £4.50 £4.50 0.00%

Part 3 Commercial - each Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £18.50 £18.50 0.00%

Fees for access to individual Con 29R 

questions:

Page 135



Land Charges Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Con 29R Q1.1 a-j Residential Block VAT included Cost recovery £1.20 £4.80 300.00%

Con 29R Q1.1 j-l Residential Block VAT included Cost recovery £4.80

Con 29R Q1.2 Residential Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.24 £2.40 900.00%

Con 29R Q2
Residential - request direct 

to SCC
SCC SCC

Con 29R Q3.1 Residential VAT included Cost recovery £0.24 £1.20 400.00%

Con 29R Q3.2
Residential - request direct 

to SCC
SCC SCC

Con 29R Q3.3 a-c Residentail Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.24 £1.20 400.00%

Con 29R Q3.4
Residential - request direct 

to SCC
SCC SCC

Con 29R Q3.5 a & b Residential Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.24 £1.20 400.00%

Con 29R Q3.6
Residential - request direct 

to SCC
SCC SCC

Con 29R Q3.7 (a-d, f) Residential Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.24 £2.40 900.00%

Con 29R Q 3.7 e
Residential request direct to 

Staffordshire County 
SCC SCC

Con 29R Q3.8 Residential Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.24 £1.20 400.00%

Con 29R Q3.9 a-n Residential Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.90 £10.80

Con 29R Q3.10 a-h Residential Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.24 £1.20 400.00%

Con 29R Q3.11 a & b Residential Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.24 £2.40 900.00%

Con 29R Q3.12 Residential Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.24 £1.20 400.00%

Con 29R Q3.13 a-c Residential Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.24 £1.20 400.00%

Con 29R Q3.14 Residential Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.24 £1.20 400.00%

Con 29R Q3.15 a & b Residential Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.24 £2.40 900.00%

Con 29R Q1.1 a-l Commercial Block VAT included Cost recovery £3.00 £12.00 300.00%

Con 29R Q1.1 j-l Commercial Block VAT included Cost recovery £12.00

Con 29R Q1.2 Commericla Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.60 £5.40 800.00%

Con 29R Q2
Commercial - request direct 

to SCC
SCC SCC

Con 29R Q3.1 Commerical Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.60 £2.40 300.00%

Con 29R Q3.2
Commercial - request direct 

to SCC
SCC SCC

Con 29R Q3.3 a-c Commercial Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.60 £2.40 300.00%

Con 29R Q3.4
Commercial - request direct 

to SCC
SCC SCC

Con 29R Q3.5 a & b Commercial Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.60 £2.40 300.00%

Con 29R Q3.6
Commercial - request direct 

to SCC
SCC SCC

Con 29R Q3.7 a-d, f Commercial Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.60 £5.40 800.00%

Con 29 R Q 3.7 e
Commercial Request direct 

to SCC
SCC SCC

Con 29R Q3.8 Commercial Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.60 £2.40 300.00%

Con 29R Q3.9 a-n Commercial Block VAT included Cost recovery £1.80 £18.00 900.00%

Con 29R Q3.10 a-h Commercial Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.60 £2.40 300.00%

Con 29R Q3.11 a & b Commercial Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.60 £5.40 800.00%

Con 29R Q3.12 Commercial Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.60 £2.40 300.00%

Con 29R Q3.13 a-c Commercial Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.60 £2.40 300.00%

Con 29R Q3.14 Commercial Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.60 £2.40 300.00%

Page 136



Land Charges Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Con 29R Q3.15 a & b Commercial Block VAT included Cost recovery £0.60 £5.40 800.00%

Page 137



Planning Enforcement Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2017/18 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Desk-based history check requested by 

member of the public
Per check Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £40.00 £40.00 0.00%

Site visit requested by member of the public Per visit Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £80.00 £80.00 0.00%

Charges do not apply to alleged breaches of planning 

regulations which are provided free of charge

Page 138



Planning Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Householder PD check VAT included Fair charging £67.00 £67.00 0.00%

Listed Building enforcement check VAT included Fair charging £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

COPYING

Decision Notice Per notice VAT included Cost recovery £47.00 £47.00 0.00%

A4 OS maps 4 Copies VAT included Cost recovery £31.00 £31.00 0.00%

Planning Applications (Current & Historic): First page VAT included Cost recovery £7.00 £7.00 0.00%

Additional 

pages
VAT included Cost recovery £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Planning Applications Plans - AO size Per copy VAT included Cost recovery £18.50 £18.50 0.00%

Planning Applications Plans - A3 size Per copy VAT included Cost recovery £13.50 £13.50 0.00%

Planning Applications Plans - A4 size Per copy VAT included Cost recovery £8.25 £8.25 0.00%

Weekly Planning List Per year VAT included Cost recovery £370.00 £370.00 0.00%

Informal or history Searches: First hour VAT included Cost recovery £51.25 £51.25 0.00%

Additionals VAT included Cost recovery £32.00 £32.00 0.00%

Postage:
Cost of 

Postage
Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery Postage Cost Postage Cost

Admin Charge VAT included Cost recovery £8.25 £8.25 0.00%

PRE-APPLICATION ADVICE

Meetings

Strategic major applications

Over 50 

dwellings or 

10,000sqm 

commercial

VAT included Fair charging £1,130.00 £1,130.00 0.00%

Major proposals 

Between 10 

and 50 

dwellings or 

1,000-

10,000sqm 

commercial

VAT included Fair charging £845.00 £845.00 0.00%

Minor proposals and other 

structures/developments not in the above 

categories

Between 1 and 

9 dwellings or 

under 

1,000sqm 

commercial

VAT included Fair charging £570.00 £570.00 0.00%

Written Advice

Strategic major applications

Over 50 

dwellings or 

10,000sqm 

commercial

VAT included Fair charging £565.00 £565.00 0.00%

Page 139



Planning Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Major proposals

Between 10 

and 50 

dwellings or 

1,000-

10,000sqm 

commercial

VAT included Fair charging £425.00 £425.00 0.00%

Minor proposals 

Between 1 and 

9 dwellings or 

under 

1,000sqm 

commercial

VAT included Fair charging £285.00 £285.00 0.00%

Statutory Planning Fees Statutory
See Planning 

Portal

See Planning 

Portal

Page 140



Building Control Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

For the first issue of a Completion Certificate 

where work has been completed/ occupied 

without notice to the council.

VAT included Cost recovery £117.00 £117.00 0.00%

Copies of completion certificates, approvals, 

where an application number is quoted and 

assessment for redaction applied:

For 

regularisation
Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £41.00 £41.00 0.00%

Not for 

regularisation
VAT included Cost recovery £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Written response to an enquiry on works not 

requiring an application (e.g. confirmation of 

information available on the internet or 

provided over the telephone). Includes a 

search on the presence of public sewers in 

relation to the development where applicable.

VAT included Cost recovery £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Written response to a query. (Charges will 

therefore vary dependent on length of time 

taken to collate information).

Per hour or part 

thereof
VAT included Cost recovery £65.00 £65.00 0.00%

Written response to a query requiring a search 

for information that needs input of senior staff. 

(Charges will therefore vary dependent on 

length of time taken to collate information).

Per hour or part 

thereof
VAT included Cost recovery £65.00 £65.00 0.00%

Making available drawings for viewing subject 

to redaction and permission of copyright 

ownership

Per hour or part 

thereof
VAT included Cost recovery £55.00 £55.00 0.00%

Returning of stamped approved copy plans to 

applicant following scanning of the original file
VAT included Cost recovery £40.00 £40.00 0.00%

Administration fee for withdrawal of an 

application where registered but not assessed
VAT included Cost recovery £40.00 £40.00 0.00%

Administrative fee for the return of invalid 

applications where the applicant does not 

respond within 10 days (including weekends)

VAT included Cost recovery £40.00 £40.00 0.00%

Consultation Advice (in excess of 1 hour) - 

Discounted by 100% on the submission of a 

Building Regulations Application

Per half hour VAT included Cost recovery £40.00 £40.00 0.00%

Dealing with the Notification of Demolition 

Notices under Section 80 of the Building Act. 

Further charges may be incurred if a complex 

demolition is proposed. These charges will be 

based on an hourly rate of £56

Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £65.00 £65.00 0.00%

Recovery of costs associated with dealing 

with reports of dangerous structures, where 

investigation or action taken:

Normal: Per 

hour - minimum 

charge

Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £56.00 £56.00 0.00%

Out of Hours: 

Per hour - 

minimum 

charge

Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £82.00 £82.00 0.00%

Page 141



Street Naming Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

New Properties, small developments 
1-5 Properties 

(each)
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £67.55 £69.58 3.00%

New Properties, large developments 
6+ Properties 

(each)
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £39.40 £40.58 3.00%

New Street Name Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £202.60 £208.68 3.00%

Renaming Existing Properties Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £67.55 £69.58 3.00%

Confirmation of Postal Address Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £43.71 £45.02 3.00%

Page 142



Waste Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% increase

Trade Waste & Recycling

Domestic Waste

Charge for new or replacement waste or 

recycling bin of any size or colour  for use at a 

single domestic dwelling.

per bin Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery £30.75 £31.00 0.81%

Charge for new or replacement 140l, 180l or 

240l bin for use by multiple domestic dwellings 

or for a trade premise to replace a bin 

damaged by the customer.

per bin Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery New £43.00

Charge for new or replacement 360 bin for 

use by multiple domestic dwellings or for a 

trade premise to replace a bin damaged by 

the customer.

per bin Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery New £62.00

Charge for new or replacement 660l  bin for 

use by multiple domestic dwellings or for a 

trade premise to replace a bin damaged by 

the customer.

per bin Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery New £270.00

Charge for new or replacement 1100l  bin for 

use by multiple domestic dwellings or for a 

trade premise to replace a bin damaged by 

the customer.

per bin Charge not VAT-able Cost recovery New £310.00

Special Collection (Difficult Waste) up to 20 

Black Bags
Per 20 bags Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £71.50 £72.50 1.40%

Black Sacks roll of 16 Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £3.85 £3.95 2.60%

Garden Sacks Each Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £0.68 £0.70 2.94%

Additional Garden Waste Bin Each Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £72.50 £75.00 3.45%

To ensure that the Council remains competitive and is 

commercially focused, rates levied for trade waste and trade 

recycling collections will be calculated based upon volumes 

and demand ensuring at all times that they do not fall below 

the cost of service provision to the authority.

Page 143



Cemeteries Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Burial Plots Exclusive right of burial & 

issue of certificate 

Purchase Fee

New Coffin Grave Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £660.00 £680.00 3.03%

New Cremated Remains Grave Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £330.00 £340.00 3.03%

Out of area fees:

Leek Parish residents only Charge not VAT-able Fair charging Single Fees Single Fees

Other Staffordshire Moorlands residents Charge not VAT-able Fair charging Double Fees Double Fees

All areas outside Staffordshire Moorlands Charge not VAT-able Fair charging Triple Fees Triple Fees

Pre-purchased new coffin grave  (Cost of 

interment due at time of burial)
per grave Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £660.00 £748.00 13.33%

Pre-purchased cremated remains grave (Cost 

of interment due at time of burial)
per grave Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £330.00 £363.00 10.00%

Interment Fees

Grave for three (Leek Cemetery only) Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £890.00 £926.00 4.04%

Grave for two Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £772.00 £798.00 3.37%

Grave for one Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £692.00 £712.00 2.89%

Cremated remains burial Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £228.00 £234.00 2.63%

Lawn burial of ashes Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £145.00 £150.00 3.45%

Cremation Casket in Garden of Remembrance Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £166.00 £175.00 5.42%

Out of area fees:

Leek Parish residents only Charge not VAT-able Fair charging Single Fees Single Fees

Re-opened graves for those not residing in 

Leek Parish
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging Double Fees Double Fees

Outside Staffs. Moorlands (newly dug graves 

only)
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging Triple Fees Triple Fees

Interment

Child aged 0-10 years

Child's grave or ashes grave Charge not VAT-able Free £0.00 £0.00

Child's new full size grave Charge not VAT-able Subsidised £386.00 £399.00

Child's reopened Grave Charge not VAT-able Subsidised £346.00 £356.00

Memorial

Baby's grave Charge not VAT-able Free £0.00 £0.00

Child's grave  (age 1-10 yrs) Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £77.50 £80.00

Page 144



Cemeteries Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Child's new full size grave or ashes grave (age 

1-10yrs)
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £155.00 £160.00

Child's reopened Grave (age 1-10 yrs) Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £155.00 £160.00

Memorials

Permit for a new upright memorial including 

1st inscription
Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £155.00 £160.00 3.23%

Permit for a memorial desk tablet/ vase 

including 1st inscription
Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £110.00 £114.00 3.64%

Permit for a replacement memorial Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £110.00 £114.00 3.64%

Permit for an additional inscription on 

memorial/ tablet/ vase etc
Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £66.00 £68.00 3.03%

Cast Bronze/ Granite memorial plaque (up to 

75 letters)
VAT included Full commercial £370.00 £378.00 2.16%

Cast bronze sponsored tree plaque (existing 

tree only)
VAT included Full commercial £370.00 £378.00 2.16%

Sponsored memorial bench & bronze plaque

50% deposit 

required before 

order

VAT included Full commercial £1,300.00 £1,320.00 1.54%

Other Charges

Replacement or transfer of grave deed Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £45.00 £47.00 4.44%

Search fee Per half hour VAT included Fair charging £24.00 £26.00 8.33%

Grave selection requiring Cemetery Officer 

attendance 
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £24.00 £26.00 8.33%

Large coffin (both dimensions over 6' 5" and 

25")
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £68.00 £70.00 2.94%

Cancellation of funeral within 72 hours of 

burial
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £68.00 £70.00 2.94%

Coffin size not confirmed within 48 hours of 

burial
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £68.00 £70.00 2.94%

Headstone not removed from grave when 

requested
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £68.00 £70.00 2.94%

Paperwork not received in cemetery office 

before burial
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £68.00 £70.00 2.94%

Late arrival of funeral at cemetery (>30 

minutes)
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £68.00 £70.00 2.94%

Page 145



Horticulture Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Horticulture

Copy of Tree Preservation Order Per hard copy Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £35.00 £40.00 14.29%

Memorial bench purchase and installation in a 

public open space

Purchase & 

Installation
VAT included Full commercial £1,000.00 £1,020.00 2.00%

Adoption of an existing memorial bench 

located in a public open space

Purchase & 

Installation
VAT included Fair charging £525.00 £535.00 1.90%

High Hedges

High Hedge Complaints Per complaint Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £500.00 £500.00 0.00%

Parks & Open Space Concession

Sport / Fitness Classes Per session Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £6.70 £6.80 1.49%

Park /Open Space Event Charges

Commercial Fairs - Small (< 10 items) Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £52.50 £55.00 4.76%

Commercial Fairs - Small (< 10 items) Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £210.00 £220.00 4.76%

Commercial Fairs - Large (> 10 Items) Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £105.00 £110.00 4.76%

Commercial Fairs - Large (> 10 Items) Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £400.00 £415.00 3.75%

Commercial Circus - Small (1- 300) Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £52.50 £55.00 4.76%

Commercial Circus - Small (1- 300) Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £130.00 £135.00 3.85%

Commercial Circus - Large (300 +) Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £105.00 £110.00 4.76%

Commercial Circus - Large (300 +) Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £350.00 £360.00 2.86%

Commercial Event - Small (1-500) Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £52.50 £55.00 4.76%

Commercial Event - Small (1-500) Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £125.00 £130.00 4.00%

Commercial Event - Medium (A) (500 - 1000) Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £80.00 £82.00 2.50%

Commercial Event - Medium (A) (500 - 1000) Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £250.00 £255.00 2.00%

Commercial Event - Medium (B) (1000 - 

2000)
Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £105.00 £107.00 1.90%

Commercial Event - Medium (B) (1000 - 

2000)
Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £370.00 £380.00 2.70%

Commercial Event - Large (2000 - 5000) Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £210.00 £215.00 2.38%

Commercial Event - Large (2000 - 5000) Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £500.00 £510.00 2.00%

Commercial Event - Very Large (5000 - 

10,000)
Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £260.00 £265.00 1.92%

Commercial Event - Very Large (5000 - 

10,000)
Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £650.00 £660.00 1.54%

Commercial Event - Major (+ 10,000) Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £520.00 £530.00 1.92%

Commercial Event - Major (+ 10,000) Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £950.00 £965.00 1.58%

Page 146



Horticulture Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Charitable Event - Some Commercial 

Activity<1500
Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Subsidised £26.25 £27.50 4.76%

Charitable Event - Some Commercial 

Activity>1500
Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Subsidised £78.00 £80.00 2.56%

Community Event -Some Commercial Activity 

<1500
Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Subsidised £26.25 £27.50 4.76%

Community Event - Some Commercial Activity 

>1500
Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Subsidised £78.00 £80.00 2.56%

Charitable Event - No commercial activity Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Free £0.00 £0.00

Community Event -No Commercial Activity Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Free £0.00 £0.00

Commercial Filming Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £52.50 £55.00 4.76%

Commercial Filming Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £620.00 £635.00 2.42%

Commercial photo shoot Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £52.50 £55.00 4.76%

Commercial photo shoot  Half Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £320.00 £330.00 3.13%

Discretionary Commercial Event Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £52.50 £55.00 4.76%

Discretionary Commercial Event Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £62.50 £65.00 4.00%

Educational Establishments Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Free £0.00 £0.00

Catering concessions - leisure sites Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £50.00 £55.00 10.00%

Catering concessions - leisure sites Day Rate Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £20.00 £25.00 25.00%

New sites for concessions - amusements Admin Fee Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £50.00 £55.00 10.00%

New sites for concessions - amusements
Day Rate / Per 

Item
Charge not VAT-able Full commercial £30.00 £35.00 16.67%

Page 147



Street Scene Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Street Signs – Developers Per Sign VAT included Fair charging £310.00 £320.00 3.23%

Carnivals: (quote only) Quote VAT included Fair charging £26.50 £28.50 7.55%

Private sweeps (Does not include any 

disposal costs)
Per Hour VAT included Fair charging £52.50 £57.50 9.52%

Private picks (Does not include any disposal 

costs)
Per Hour VAT included Fair charging £48.50 £49.50 2.06%

Poll booths for Parishes, Town Councils and 

barrier erection
Per Hour VAT included Fair charging £48.50 £49.50 2.06%

Parish Council Works Per Hour VAT included Fair charging £48.50 £49.50 2.06%

Private removal of Asbestos: (quote only) Quote VAT included Fair charging £26.50 £28.50 7.55%

Graffiti: (quote only) Quote VAT included Fair charging £26.50 £28.50 7.55%

Gritting Per Hour VAT included Fair charging £48.50 £49.50 2.06%

Page 148



Car Parks Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Season tickets (long stay car parks)

Leek: Per annum VAT included Fair charging £365.00 £365.00 0.00%

Half yearly VAT included Fair charging £189.00 £189.00 0.00%

Quarterly VAT included Fair charging £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

Cheadle: Per annum VAT included Fair charging £315.00 £315.00 0.00%

Half yearly VAT included Fair charging £164.00 £164.00 0.00%

Quarterly VAT included Fair charging £85.00 £85.00 0.00%

Biddulph: Per annum VAT included Fair charging £245.00 £245.00 0.00%

Half yearly VAT included Fair charging £126.00 £126.00 0.00%

Quarterly VAT included Fair charging £66.00 £66.00 0.00%

Smithfield Centre Per annum VAT included Fair charging £346.00 £346.00 0.00%

California Car Park (proven Leek workers & 

Residents)
Per annum VAT included Fair charging £52.50 £52.50 0.00%

Buxton Road Car Park (proven Leek workers 

only)
Per annum VAT included Fair charging £210.00 £210.00 0.00%

Pay and Display

Leek: Brook Street Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Up to 2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.50 £1.50 0.00%

Up to 3 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.90 £1.90 0.00%

Leek: Buxton Road Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Up to 2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.50 £1.50 0.00%

Up to 3 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.90 £1.90 0.00%

Up to 10 hours VAT included Fair charging £2.40 £2.40 0.00%

Leek: High Street Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Up to 2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.50 £1.50 0.00%

Up to 3 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.90 £1.90 0.00%

Up to 10 hours VAT included Fair charging £2.40 £2.40 0.00%

Leek: Joliffe Street Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Up to 2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.50 £1.50 0.00%

Up to 3 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.90 £1.90 0.00%

Page 149



Car Parks Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Up to 10 hours VAT included Fair charging £2.40 £2.40 0.00%

Leek: Market Place Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Up to 2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.50 £1.50 0.00%

Up to 3 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.90 £1.90 0.00%

Leek: Market Street East Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Up to 2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.50 £1.50 0.00%

Up to 3 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.90 £1.90 0.00%

Leek: Market Street West Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Up to 2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.50 £1.50 0.00%

Up to 3 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.90 £1.90 0.00%

Leek: Moorlands House Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Up to 2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.50 £1.50 0.00%

Up to 3 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.90 £1.90 0.00%

Leek: Queen Street Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Up to 2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.50 £1.50 0.00%

Up to 3 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.90 £1.90 0.00%

Leek: Regent Street Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Up to 2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.50 £1.50 0.00%

Up to 3 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.90 £1.90 0.00%

Leek: Silk Street Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Up to 2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.50 £1.50 0.00%

Up to 3 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.90 £1.90 0.00%

Leek: Smithfield South Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Up to 2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.50 £1.50 0.00%

Page 150



Car Parks Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Up to 3 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.90 £1.90 0.00%

Leek: Stockwell Street Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Up to 2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.50 £1.50 0.00%

Up to 3 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.90 £1.90 0.00%

Leek: St Edward Street Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Up to 2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.50 £1.50 0.00%

Up to 3 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.90 £1.90 0.00%

Leek: Vicarage Road/ California Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Up to 2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.50 £1.50 0.00%

Up to 3 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.90 £1.90 0.00%

Up to 10 hours VAT included Fair charging £2.40 £2.40 0.00%

Leek: West Street Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Up to 2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.50 £1.50 0.00%

Up to 3 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.90 £1.90 0.00%

Up to 10 hours VAT included Fair charging £2.40 £2.40 0.00%

Cheadle:Tape Street Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £0.90 £0.90 0.00%

Up to 2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.40 £1.40 0.00%

Up to 3 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.80 £1.80 0.00%

Cheadle:Well Street Up to 1 hour VAT included Fair charging £0.90 £0.90 0.00%

Up to 2 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.40 £1.40 0.00%

Up to 3 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.80 £1.80 0.00%

Up to 10 hours VAT included Fair charging £2.20 £2.20 0.00%

Biddulph: Wharf Road Up to 1 Hour VAT included Fair charging £0.60 £0.60

Up to 2 hours VAT included Fair charging £0.80 £0.80 0.00%

Up to 3 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.00 £1.00 0.00%

Page 151



Car Parks Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Up to 10 hours VAT included Fair charging £1.80 £1.80 0.00%

Penalty Charge Notices Off Street: Two tier 

system depending on the seriousness of the 

offence

Tier one: Per fine Charge not VAT-able Statutory £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

If paid within 14 

days
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £25.00 £25.00 0.00%

Tier two: Per fine Charge not VAT-able Statutory £70.00 £70.00 0.00%

If paid within 14 

days
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £35.00 £35.00 0.00%

Charge levied for grant of parking waiver Vehicle per day VAT included Statutory £15.00 £15.00 0.00%

Charge levied for grant of parking waiver Bay per day VAT included Statutory £15.00 £15.00 0.00%

Page 152



Markets Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

LEEK RETAIL MARKETS

Wednesday Outdoor (General Retail):

- Regular Traders Per day Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £20.00 £20.00 0.00%

- Regulars - non attendance Per day Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £10.00 £10.00 0.00%

- Casual Traders Per day Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £23.50 £23.50 0.00%

Wednesday Trestle (General Retail):

- Regular Traders Per day Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £21.50 £21.50 0.00%

- Regulars - non attendance Per day Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £10.75 £10.75 0.00%

- Casual Traders Per day Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £23.50 £23.50 0.00%

Friday Trestle (Franchised Archer Fairs)

- Per Stall Per day Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £16.00 £16.00 0.00%

Saturday Trestle (General Retail)

- Regular Traders Per quarter Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £192.00 £192.00 0.00%

- Casual Traders Per day Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £20.00 £20.00 0.00%

Saturday Outdoor Craft (Franchised Archer 

Fairs)

- Per Pitch Per day Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £17.50 £17.50 0.00%

Festival of Fine Food

- Per Stall Per day Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £26.00 £26.00 0.00%

- Per Stall

Per day 

(payment in 

advance)

Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £21.00 £21.00 0.00%

CHEADLE MARKETS

Cheadle Outdoor Market - Friday Per day Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £20.00 £20.00 0.00%

Page 153



Lettings Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Moorlands House Leek

Churnet Room Full Day (9am - 5pm) - 

Monday-Friday
VAT included Fair charging £113.00 £119.00 5.31%

Churnet Room Full Day (9am - 5pm) - 

Saturday
VAT included Fair charging £164.00 £172.00 4.88%

Churnet Room Full Day + Evening (9am - 

10pm) - Monday-Friday
VAT included Fair charging £176.00 £185.00 5.11%

Churnet Room Full Day + Evening (9am - 

10pm) - Saturday
VAT included Fair charging £260.00 £273.00 5.00%

Churnet Room Monday - Friday half day 

charge
VAT included Fair charging £58.00 £61.00 5.17%

Churnet Room Saturday (9am-12noon) VAT included Fair charging £83.00 £87.00 4.82%

Churnet Room Saturday (1pm-5pm) VAT included Fair charging £102.00 £107.00 4.90%

Churnet Room Evening (6pm - 10pm) - 

Monday-Friday
VAT included Fair charging £116.00 £122.00 5.17%

Churnet Room  Evening (6pm - 10pm) - 

Saturday
VAT included Fair charging £163.00 £171.00 4.91%

Trent Room Full Day (9am - 5pm) - Monday-

Friday
VAT included Fair charging £90.00 £95.00 5.56%

Trent Room Full Day (9am - 5pm) - Saturday VAT included Fair charging £114.00 £120.00 5.26%

Trent Room Full Day + Evening (9am - 10pm) 

- Monday-Friday
VAT included Fair charging £141.00 £148.00 4.96%

Trent Room Full Day + Evening (9am - 10pm) 

- Saturday
VAT included Fair charging £183.00 £192.00 4.92%

Trent Room Monday - Friday half day charge VAT included Fair charging £46.00 £48.00 4.35%

Trent Room Saturday (9am-12noon) VAT included Fair charging £58.00 £61.00 5.17%

Trent Room Saturday (1pm-5pm) VAT included Fair charging £102.00 £107.00 4.90%

Trent Room Evening (6pm - 10pm) - Monday-

Friday
VAT included Fair charging £92.00 £97.00 5.43%

Trent Room Evening (6pm - 10pm) - 

Saturday
VAT included Fair charging £114.00 £120.00 5.26%

Dove Room Full Day (9am - 5pm) - Monday-

Friday
VAT included Fair charging £102.00 £107.00 4.90%

Dove Room Full Day (9am - 5pm) - Saturday VAT included Fair charging £147.00 £154.00 4.76%

Dove Room Full Day + Evening (9am - 10pm) 

- Monday-Friday
VAT included Fair charging £159.00 £167.00 5.03%

Dove Room Full Day + Evening (9am - 10pm) 

- Saturday
VAT included Fair charging £234.00 £246.00 5.13%

Dove Room Monday - Friday half day charge VAT included Fair charging £53.00 £56.00 5.66%

Dove Room Saturday (9am-12noon) VAT included Fair charging £75.00 £79.00 5.33%

Dove Room Saturday (1pm-5pm) VAT included Fair charging £102.00 £107.00 4.90%

Dove Room Evening (6pm - 10pm) - Monday-

Friday
VAT included Fair charging £104.00 £109.00 4.81%

All Room Booking fees exclude optional extra Facilities  (Bar, 

Kitchen etc) - Charitable and Non Profit Making organisations 

subject to 20% discount - Bookings outside hours stated and 

commercial events by special arrangement

Page 154



Lettings Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Dove Room Evening (6pm - 10pm) - 

Saturday
VAT included Fair charging £147.00 £154.00 4.76%

Dove Room Excess Hours - 10pm - Midnight Per hour VAT included Fair charging £44.00 £46.00 4.55%

Rooms in the One Stop Shop: Tean, 

Rudyard, etc 

Monday-Friday (Half day) between 9am and 

5pm
VAT included Fair charging £25.00 £26.00 4.00%

Monday-Friday (Full day) 9am-5pm VAT included Fair charging £47.00 £49.00 4.26%

Moorlands House  Other Facilities for Hire:

Kitchen Per booking VAT included Fair charging £22.00 £23.00 4.55%

Piano Per booking VAT included Fair charging £17.00 £18.00 5.88%

Bar Per booking VAT included Fair charging £32.00 £34.00 6.25%

Portable Drinks Machine: Per session VAT included Fair charging £32.00 £34.00 6.25%

Audio Visual Equipment: NB All prices are per 

booking/ session - am or pm. Whole day 

usage will be 2 x per item hired.

- Overhead Projector VAT included Fair charging £22.00 £23.00 4.55%

- OHP Screen VAT included Fair charging £15.00 £16.00 6.67%

- Nobo Flipchart Easel with Paper (provide 

own markers)
VAT included Fair charging £15.00 £16.00 6.67%

Biddulph Town Hall

Full Day (9am - 5pm) - Monday-Friday Per session Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £62.00 £65.00 4.84%

Full Day (9am - 5pm) - Saturday Per session Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £74.00 £78.00 5.41%

Full Day + Evening (9am - 10pm) - Monday-

Friday
Per session Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £118.00 £124.00 5.08%

Full Day + Evening (9am - 10pm) - Saturday Per session Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £127.00 £133.00 4.72%

Morning (9am - 12noon) Monday-Friday Per session Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £34.00 £36.00 5.88%

Morning (9am - 12noon) Saturday Per session Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £36.00 £38.00 5.56%

Afternoon (1pm - 5pm) - Monday-Friday Per session Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £34.00 £36.00 5.88%

Afternoon (1pm - 5pm) - Saturday Per session Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £47.00 £49.00 4.26%

Evening (6pm - 10pm) - Monday-Friday Per session Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £88.00 £92.00 4.55%

Evening (6pm - 10pm) - Saturday Per session Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £105.00 £110.00 4.76%

Excess Hours - 10pm - Midnight Per hour Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £44.00 £46.00 4.55%

Rooms A, B, C in Extension Per half day Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £29.00 £30.00 3.45%

Rooms A, B, C in Extension Per full day Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £58.00 £61.00 5.17%

Kitchen Per session Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £22.00 £23.00 4.55%

Piano Per session Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £17.00 £18.00 5.88%

Page 155



Lettings Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Bar Per booking Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £32.00 £34.00 6.25%

Page 156



Finance Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% increase

Financial Services

Statement of Accounts
Per copy (plus 

postage)
VAT included Cost recovery £21.00 £21.00 0.00%

Committee Services

Agenda
Per copy (plus 

postage)
VAT included Cost recovery £10.00 £10.00 0.00%

Recovery Services - Summons costs 

recharged

Application for summons re Liability Order: Council Tax Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £57.50 £57.50 0.00%

Non-Domestic 

Rates
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £62.50 £62.50 0.00%

Issue of Liability Orders: Council Tax Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £35.00 £35.00 0.00%

Non-Domestic 

Rates
Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £35.00 £35.00 0.00%

Committal summons Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £310.00 £310.00 0.00%

Arrest warrants Charge not VAT-able Fair charging £150.00 £150.00 0.00%

Committal to prison Charge not VAT-able Fair charging
Reasonable 

charge

Reasonable 

charge

Page 157



Elections Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Purchase of Full Register (Data) 1.00 Charge not VAT-able Nominal £143.00 £143.00 0.00%

Purchase of Rolling register Alterations (Data) 1.00 Charge not VAT-able Nominal £193.50 £193.50 0.00%

Purchase of list of overseas voters (Data) 1.00 Charge not VAT-able Nominal £26.00 £26.00 0.00%

Purchase of Full Register (Paper) 1.00 Charge not VAT-able Nominal £420.00 £420.00 0.00%

Purchase of Rolling Register Alterations 

(Paper)
1.00 Charge not VAT-able Nominal £135.00 £135.00 0.00%

Purchase of list of overseas voters (Paper) 1.00 Charge not VAT-able Nominal £30.00 £30.00 0.00%

Page 158



Environmental Crime

(statutory charges correct at time of 

budget setting)

Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN)

Unlawful repairs / sale of vehicle on roads: Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

If paid within 10 

working days
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £60.00 £60.00 0.00%

Abandoning a vehicle: Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £200.00 £200.00 0.00%

If paid within 10 

working days
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £120.00 £120.00 0.00%

Depositing litter: Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £75.00 £120.00 60.00%

If paid within 10 

working days
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £50.00 £100.00 100.00%

Unauthorised distribution of free printed 

matter:
Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £75.00 £120.00 60.00%

If paid within 10 

working days
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £50.00 £100.00 100.00%

Criminal Damage and fly-posting: Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £75.00 £120.00 60.00%

If paid within 10 

working days
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £50.00 £100.00 100.00%

Failure to produce authority (waste carrier’s 

licence) 
Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £300.00 £300.00 0.00%

Failure to furnish documentation (waste 

transfer notes)
Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £300.00 £300.00 0.00%

Failure to remove dog faeces from land 

forthwith:
Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £80.00 £100.00 25.00%

If paid within 10 

working days
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £60.00 £75.00 25.00%

Not putting, and keeping, a dog on a lead 

when directed to do so by an authorised 

officer:

Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £80.00 £100.00 25.00%

If paid within 10 

working days
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £60.00 £75.00 25.00%

Permitting a dog to enter land from which 

dogs are excluded:
Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £80.00 £100.00 25.00%

If paid within 10 

working days
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £60.00 £75.00 25.00%

Not keeping a dog on a lead in a designated 

area:
Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £80.00 £100.00 25.00%

If paid within 10 

working days
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £60.00 £75.00 25.00%

Smoke & Carbon Monoxide Alarm (England) 

Regulations 2015:
Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £5,000.00 £5,000.00 0.00%

If paid within 14 

working days
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £2,500.00 £2,500.00 0.00%

Health Act 2006 Smoking in a smoke free 

designated vehicle or area:
Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £50.00 £50.00 0.00%

Page 159



Environmental Crime

(statutory charges correct at time of 

budget setting)

Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

if Paid within 15 

Days 
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £30.00 £30.00 0.00%

Health Act 2006 Failure to Display appropriate 

smoke free signage as dictated by law:
Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £200.00 £200.00 0.00%

if Paid within 15 

Days 
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £150.00 £150.00 0.00%

 Fly-tipping Charge not VAT-able Statutory £400.00

If Paid within 

10 Days
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £300.00

Household Waste Receptacles Charge not VAT-able Statutory £60.00

If Paid within 

10 Days
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £40.00

Page 160



Community

(statutory charges correct at time of budget 

setting)

Unit VAT
Charging 

Category

2018/19 

Current 

Charge

2019/20 

Proposed 

Charge

% 

increase

Failure to comply with a Community Protection 

Notice:
Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

If paid within 10 

working days
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £75.00 £75.00 0.00%

Failure to comply with a Public Spaces 

Protection Order:
Full FPN Charge not VAT-able Statutory £100.00 £100.00 0.00%

If paid within 10 

working days
Charge not VAT-able Statutory £75.00 £75.00 0.00%

Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime & Policing Act 2014

Page 161



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX D

                              

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

PROCUREMENT FORWARD 
PLAN 2019/20

Page 163



1. Introduction 

1.1 The Procurement Procedure Rules, which support the Joint Procurement 
Strategy, are essential to the achievement of the Alliance Procurement 
Objectives and set out the processes that must be followed.

1.2 A revised version of the Procurement Procedure Rules were presented and 
approved by full Council on 11th October 2017.  The Rules were updated to 
reflect recent changes for example:

 the service review process has resulted in a fully resourced central 
procurement unit incorporating the whole purchase to pay stream 
(procurement activity through to the payment of supplier invoices)  

 Processes have been reviewed and electronic systems implemented 
with the procurement process now utilising webforms and an e-
tendering system, removing paper records and improving efficiency

1.3 The opportunity was also taken to review the Rules as a whole, with 
specific amendments made to:-

 Sourcing thresholds – advertising periods updated
 Process for applying Performance Bonds / Parent Company 

Guarantees
 Applying extensions/variations to contracts
 Updated processes to include technology now utilised (for example, e-

webform platform and e-tendering system)
 Additional references where necessary – for example, the 

requirements of the Transparency Code
 Expansion of Contract Management responsibilities / processes

1.4 In addition, consideration was given to how the authority to procure and 
award procurement activities is undertaken - with the aim of simplifying and 
ensuring the process is as efficient as possible.  

2. Authorisation to Procure and Award

2.1 It was proposed within the Rules that the Procurement Forward Plan would 
be reported as part of the Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan in 
February each year.  

2.2 This would identify all potential procurement activity to be completed in the 
following financial year (subject to business case), with approval sought to 
commence procurement of all activity listed.  Performance and activity 
(including confirmation of award) against the forward plan would then be 
monitored and reported within the Quarterly Procurement Report to 
Committee.

2.3 The approval limits to be applied to then authorise the award of contracts 
and apply exemptions are detailed below:-

Page 164



  Award and Exemptions Authorisation Limits:

Total Contract Value    
(£)

Authorisation Authorisation By

<25,000 Head of Service / Executive 
Director

Webform

>25,000 - <181,302 
(EU Service 
Threshold)

Executive Director / Chief 
Executive

Webform

>181,302 (EU 
Service Threshold) - 
<1,000,000

Delegated Member Decision Delegated Member 
Report (Portfolio Holder 
for Procurement and the 

relevant service area)
>1,000,000* Cabinet SMDC

Executive HPBC
(with prior Scrutiny Committee)

Committee Report

* Committee reports may be presented where the total contract value is less than £1,000,000 - where 
considered appropriate due to the nature of the procurement or where it relates to a key decision

2.4 Any procurement activity undertaken during the year which was not 
included on the forward plan will also follow the authorisation rules (to 
procure/award) as detailed above - and detail will be included within the 
Quarterly Procurement Report. 

2.5 Irrespective of the total contract value, Committee reports may be 
presented to Executive/Cabinet to obtain authority to procure and award 
where considered appropriate due to the nature of the procurement or 
where it relates to a key decision.

3. Procurement Forward Plan 2019/20

3.1 The Procurement Forward Plan, detailing all anticipated procurement 
activity during 2019/20, is detailed at ANNEX A.  This includes activity 
specific to Staffordshire Moorlands D.C. and also any joint procurement 
activity with Alliance partner High Peak B.C.  

4. Procurement undertaken by Agent

4.1 In addition to procurement activity commissioned by the Council, there may 
also be procurement activity commissioned via an agent on behalf of the 
Council where appropriate to do so.  For example, the new Leisure Centre 
contract will allow provision for capital works required on the leisure centres 
to be commissioned by the Contractor, but funded by the Council.  In this 
case, the Council would complete due diligence to ensure compliancy and 
value for money has been achieved.

4.2 Similarly, Alliance Environment Services will be procuring fleet required by 
specific services, but this will be funded by the Council and appropriate due 
diligence undertaken.

Page 165



4

ANNEX A

PROCUREMENT FORWARD PLAN 2019/20 – SMDC  

Ref Auth Contract Title Brief contract description Capital / 
Revenue

Service Area Total est. 
value of  

contract £
933 SMDC Fowlchurch Depot Roof 

Replacement (subject to depots 
review in conjunction with AES)

Replacement of the current asbestos roof sheets to 
the sweeper and organic/maintenance sheds with 
associated repair works to damaged roof steels 
and cladding. Roof works to main office building.

Capital Assets Capital 
Projects

    350,000 

813 SMDC Car Parks Refurbishment works Programme of works to various car parks in 
Staffordshire Moorlands area 

Capital Assets Capital 
Projects

    270,000 

885 SMDC Brough Park Leisure Centre 
structural works

Remedial Structural Repairs Capital Assets Capital 
Projects

   200,000 

731 SMDC Moorlands House Improvements 
Works 

Air handling and external roof works to Moorlands 
House

Capital Assets Capital 
Projects

    190,000 

803 SMDC Waterways improvement works Works to various waterways across SMDC Capital Assets Capital 
Projects

      92,500 

812 SMDC Leek Bus Station Resurfacing Works Resurfacing works to Leek Bus Station Capital Assets Capital 
Projects

      88,000 

941 SMDC Town Yard Industrial Estate Walls 
& Railings

Remedial works Capital Assets Capital 
Projects

      40,000 

908 SMDC Biddulph Valley Leisure Centre 
Repair works to Culvert

Remedial works to Biddulph Valley LC Culvert Revenue Assets Capital 
Projects

    23,000 

862 SMDC Moorlands House Car Park Lighting Lighting at the rear of Moorlands house is 
inadequate, works required to improve the lighting 
in this car park 

Revenue Assets M&E  7,000 

884 SMDC Improvement works to footpath 
Path Link from Dorset Drive to 
Craigside in Biddulph

Improvement works to footpath, required to 
prevent limited access after wet weather

Revenue Assets M&E 4,750

732 SMDC Smithfield Public Conveniences 
Refurbishment - Toilets Leek

Smithfield Public Conveniences Refurbishments Capital Assets Capital 
Projects

TBC

P
age 166



5

935 SMDC Fowlchurch Depot Internal Office 
Alternations (subject to depots 
review in conjunction with AES) 

Alterations to the internal office space at 
Fowlchurch Depot

Capital Assets Capital 
Projects

 TBC 

Ref Auth Contract Title Brief contract description Capital / 
Revenue

Service Area Total est. 
value of  

contract £
953 SMDC Smithfield Canopy works Subject to structural surveys TBC Assets Capital 

Projects
TBC 

954 SMDC Leekbrook Industrial Estate 
Remedial works

Subject to surveys TBC Revenue Assets Capital 
Projects

 TBC

Ref Auth Contract Title Brief contract description Capital / 
Revenue

Service Area Total est. 
value of  

contract £
364 SMDC Provision of Housing Money and 

Debt advice 
Provision of money and debt advice services for 
tenants or homeowners at risk of losing their home

Revenue Customer Services - 
Housing Tenancy 
Services

 61,350 

555 SMDC Single Persons Housing Project Securing accommodation in the private rented 
sector for vulnerable and homelessness clients

Revenue Customer Services - 
Housing Tenancy 
Services

   74,450 

P
age 167



6

Ref Auth Contract Title Brief contract description Capital / 
Revenue

Service Area Total est. 
value of  

contract £
4 SMDC Civic Transport Services Provision of car and driver for SMDC Chairman and 

Vice Chairman. 
 Revenue Democratic & 

Community - 
Democratic 
Services

29,790

145 SMDC Planning Committee Site Visits - 
Coach Hire

Provision of Coach for Planning Applications 
Committee Site Visits

Revenue Democratic & 
Community - 
Democratic 
Services

 6,020
 

148 SMDC Planning Committee Refreshments Lunch for councillors attending each meeting of 
the Planning Applications Committee

 Revenue Democratic & 
Community - 
Democratic 
Services

1,200  

Ref Auth Contract Title Brief contract description Capital / 
Revenue

Service Area Total est. 
value of  

contract £
874 SMDC Toddler / Junior Play area 

Installation at Brough park Leek 
Installation of a new play area suitable for younger 
age groups in Brough park Leek 

Capital Operational 
Services - Leisure

    100,000 

495 SMDC Wetley Moor Turf Stripping and 
Heather Cutting (subject to 
transfer of countryside sites)

Turf stripping and heather cutting as part of 
ecological management on sensitive sites of high 
nature conservation value- Wetley Moor common

Revenue Operational 
Services - 
Horticulture

      20,300 

894 SMDC Website Build, hosting, licencing 
For Sport and physical activity uses 
(subject to Transformation review) 

A website to support the councils strategy for sport 
and physical activity.  Interactive website for both 
Council and general public, inc. local network of 
sporting clubs and voluntary sector organisations.

Revenue Operational 
Services - Leisure

        6,070 

P
age 168



7

635 SMDC Mining Features survey at Wetley 
Moor (subject to transfer of 
countryside sites)

Recommended every 5 years.  Essential part of 
health and safety for the site to protect the public, 
grazing livestock and vehicle access.

Revenue Operational 
Services - 
Horticulture

        3,900 

699 SMDC Water level monitoring  (Monitor 
Equipment is purchased separately 
when required) at Hales Hall Pool

Monitoring of water levels at Hales Hall Pool 
reservoir including quarterly visits and 
management of telemetry and alarm system

Revenue Operational 
Services - 
Horticulture

        2,640 

Ref Auth Contract Title Brief contract description Capital / 
Revenue

Service Area Total est. 
value of  

contract £
825 SMDC Blythe Bridge strategic investment 

site masterplan & phase 2 delivery 
plan (subject to external funding) 

Multidisciplinary team of consultants to prepare a 
masterplan & provide advice on infrastructure 
requirements, design, development  & 
management options for mixed use development 
site

Revenue Regeneration    100,000 

909 SMDC Legal Advice & Lease Preparation Lease Preparation in relation to Churnet Valley 
Railway Lease of land

Revenue Regeneration       10,450 

891 SMDC Acquisition Strategy Consultancy Support Revenue Regeneration  TBC

892 SMDC Churnet Works Delivery Consultancy Support Revenue Regeneration  TBC

Ref Auth Contract Title Brief contract description Capital / 
Revenue

Service Area Total est. 
value of  

contract £
842 SMDC Ecological surveys and advice Ecological surveys and advice for the Staffordshire 

Moorlands Area
Revenue Regulatory Services 

- Planning & 
Building Control

TBC 

P
age 169



8

Ref Auth Contract Title Brief contract description Capital / 
Revenue

Service Area Total est. 
value of  

contract £
373 SMDC Leek Markets Logistical Support 

Services
Storage, delivery, erection, dismantling and 
removal of Market Trader Pop-Up stools.

Revenue Visitor Services - 
Tourism & Markets

   325,000 

531 SMDC Car Parking Enforcement (subject 
to review)

Provision for off street parking enforcement Revenue Visitor Services - 
Car Parking

 300,000 

837 SMDC Pop up Market Stalls purchase Purchase of replacement market stalls for Leek 
Market  (replacement programme – phased)

Revenue Visitor Services - 
Tourism & Markets

      23,000 

90 SMDC Lone worker service for Civil  
Enforcement Officers

Alarm device for lone working  Visitor Services - 
Car Parking

  1,500 

P
age 170



9

PROCUREMENT FORWARD PLAN 19/20 – JOINT (SMDC/HPBC)

Ref Auth Contract Title Brief contract description Capital / 
Revenue

Service Area Total est. 
value of  

contract £

801 JOINT Closed Cemetery Boundary Wall 
Repairs Works 

Various boundary wall repair works Capital Assets Capital 
Projects

     123,910 

403 JOINT Bridge & structure repairs various 
schemes

Various schemes for HPBC and SMDC Capital Assets Capital 
Projects

    120,000 

Ref Auth Contract Title Brief contract description Capital / 
Revenue

Service Area Total est. 
value of  

contract £

158 JOINT Facilities Management Services - 
Council Buildings (HPBC / SMDC)

Facilities management provision for both Councils Revenue Assets Compliance  6,000,000 

600 JOINT Electricity Supply HPBC and SMDC Supply of Electricity - HPBC and SMDC buildings Revenue Assets Compliance  1,000,000 

575 JOINT Mains Gas Supply HPBC and SMDC Supply of Gas to HPBC and SMDC buildings Revenue Assets Compliance      779,140 

523 JOINT Architectural Services for HPBC & 
SMDC

Architectural services to assist in the delivery of capital 
schemes building improvement projects

Revenue Assets Compliance      400,000 

607 JOINT H&S CDM Client Advisor Services 
Framework for HPBC and SMDC

Framework of 3 suppliers to provide consultancy 
services for H&S CDM regs on Capital Projects

Revenue Assets Compliance      150,000 

533 JOINT Mechanical & Electrical Consultancy 
Services for HPBC & SMDC

Mechanical & Electrical consultancy services to assist in 
the delivery of capital schemes building improvement 
projects

Revenue Assets Compliance      150,000 

P
age 171



10

704 JOINT Structural and Civil Engineer 
Framework

Professional Services Revenue Assets Compliance      150,000 

736 JOINT Assets Health and Safety Remedial 
works - Various

Various works (H&S) assets Revenue Assets Compliance      100,000 

337 JOINT Confidential Waste and Paper/Card 
Recycling

Collection and Disposal of Confidential Waste and 
Paper/Card Recycling

Revenue Assets Compliance        25,000 

282 JOINT Security Services Buildings Security services for keyholding, mobile patrols, static 
guard when requested and call-outs

Revenue Assets Compliance TBC

944 JOINT Valuation Advice Right to Buy Right to Buy and ad hoc valuation advice.  Includes 
wider Land disposal strategy to support this

Revenue Assets Compliance TBC

945 JOINT Public Buildings Condition Surveys 
and ongoing (subject to approval)

Professional Advice on Public Buildings condition 
surveys and ongoing subsequent updates and surveys 

 Revenue Assets Compliance TBC

Ref Auth Contract Title Brief contract description Capital / 
Revenue

Service Area Total est. 
value of  

contract £

247 JOINT Provision of service for distribution 
of 'bulk' postages Hybrid Mail 
Services 

Outgoing bulk post and down stream mail – Pilot in 
progress pending full implementation (Contract sourced 
under Crown Commercial Service – renewal 19/20)

 Revenue Customer Services - 
Customer Services

     650,000 

374 JOINT Collection and Banking of Income 
and Internal Mail Courier Services

Provision of internal mail services, cash/payment 
collections from Pay & Display, 24 hr toilets and ad-hoc 
security patrol services

Revenue Customer Services - 
Customer Services

     192,280 

834 JOINT External Design Print Services Design and External design services Revenue Customer Services - 
Customer Services

       50,000 

70 JOINT Provision of Computer Consumables Purchase of toners, for desk top printers may include 
fuser kits etc

 Revenue Customer Services - 
Customer Services

       30,000 

P
age 172



11

230 JOINT Stationery items Stationery via DCC Framework contract  
Includes Paper, and all other stationery items, 

 Revenue Customer Services - 
Customer Services

       29,000 

565 JOINT Post Room Equipment Franking Machine / Scales Folding / Inserting Machine  
/Letter Opener 

Revenue Customer Services - 
Customer Services

       24,150 

188 JOINT Out of Hours Calls Out of hours call answering
 

Revenue Customer Services - 
Customer Services

       18,000 

606 JOINT Customer Services Uniforms Provision of uniforms for customer services team Revenue Customer Services - 
Customer Services

      13,500 

81 JOINT Lone Working Arrangements Lone working registration for emergency assistance for 
staff

Revenue Customer Services - 
Housing Tenancy 

Services

         3,600 

851 JOINT Housing Benefit Certification Audit Housing Benefit Certification Audit Revenue Customer Services - 
Benefits

         3,000 

816 JOINT Provision of Printers photocopiers 
and MFD's 

Provision of Printers photocopiers and MFD's across the 
Alliance

TBC 
(options 

appraisal) 

Customer Services - 
Customer Services

 TBC

Ref Auth Contract Title Brief contract description Capital / 
Revenue

Service Area Total est. 
value of  

contract £

262 Joint CCTV Monitoring (subject to review) Supply of CCTV Monitoring staff  Revenue Democratic & 
Community - 

Communities & 
Partnerships

       594,000 

53 Joint CCTV system maintenance 
agreement

Maintenance of HPBC  and SMDC public CCTV system Revenue Democratic & 
Community - 

Communities & 
Partnerships

         69,500 

P
age 173



12

815 JOINT Abandoned Vehicle recovery and 
disposal 

To remove, store and if required legally dispose of 
vehicles that are abandoned.  Evidence that disposal of 
vehicle has been completed is essential requirement

Revenue Democratic & 
Community - 

Communities & 
Partnerships

         10,000 

828 JOINT Electronic Fixed Penalty Notices 
(Subject to Business case review)

To switch from the current triplicate books paper based 
system to an electronic based system of issuing and 
collecting fixed penalty fines 

Revenue Democratic & 
Community - 

Communities & 
Partnerships

         10,000 

879 JOINT CCTV Consultant 
Specialist review of CCTV policy and 
legal update requirements (subject 
to review) 

Including Evaluation report against the Surveillance 
Camera commissioners code of Conduct 

Revenue Democratic & 
Community - 

Communities & 
Partnerships

          5,000 

Ref Auth Contract Title Brief contract description Capital / 
Revenue

Service Area Total est. 
value of  

contract £

73 JOINT Insurance Service Provision of insurance cover for council's activities 
including property, casualty, motor, engineering, 
additional cover, standalone policies

Revenue Finance - Mainstream     1,192,500 

688 JOINT Asset Valuation Services Professional services to complete asset valuations of the 
council's assets

Revenue Finance - Mainstream        114,140 

632 JOINT Banking Services Banking services Revenue Finance - Mainstream          90,000 

709 JOINT Treasury management advisory 
services 

Professional Advisory Services Revenue Finance - Mainstream          72,000 

855 JOINT Electronic Payments Worldpay Online and Phone payments processing Revenue Finance - Mainstream          65,000 

206 JOINT Debt Collection & Bailiff Services Debt Collection and Tracing Services Revenue Finance - Debtors          30,000 

P
age 174



13

796 JOINT Payroll Services Provision of Payroll Services for the Alliance Revenue Finance - Mainstream          22,000 

376 JOINT Revenue Payment cards and services Revenue Payment cards Revenue Finance - Revenues          20,000 

361 JOINT Professional Tax Advice Services Tax advice for investments, VAT and other taxation 
activities which impact on the councils operations or 
future plans.

Revenue Finance - Mainstream          18,000 

345 JOINT Tracing Services On-line tracing service for absconding debtors Revenue Finance - Debtors            6,000 

847 JOINT Procurement / Purchasing / Credit 
Cards 

Requirement of payment cards that can be assigned to 
Individuals and departments to ensure payment can be 
made.

Revenue Finance - Mainstream            1,000 

855 JOINT Insolvency and Charging Orders 
Recovery

Pilot scheme currently underway Revenue Finance - Mainstream  TBC

Ref Auth Contract Title Brief contract description Capital / 
Revenue

Service Area Total est. 
value of  

contract £

260 JOINT Fleet Provision (funded by the 
Councils, maintained by AES)

Fleet Provision across Alliance Capital / 
Revenue 

(subject to 
options 

appraisal)

Operational Services 
- Fleet

    6,247,000 

640 JOINT Supply of Liquid Fuels for Depots 
HP/SM (subject to phase 3 transfer 
to AES)

Automotive Fuels - Ultra Low Sulphur Diesel and 
Heating Oils - Gas Oil and Kerosene

Revenue Operational Services 
- Fleet

       650,000 

366 JOINT Arboricultural Works Provision of Tree Services works (Framework) Revenue Operational Services 
- Leisure

       210,000 

P
age 175



14

270 JOINT Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) 
(pending transfer to AES)

Provision of PPE and corporate work clothing Revenue Operational Services 
- Waste & Street 

Scene

       165,000 

689 JOINT Seasonal Bedding Plants and Floral 
Displays Supply

Supply of bedding plants, baskets and hanging displays Revenue Operational Services 
- Horticulture

         47,480 

832 JOINT Physical Outreach programmes Supporting physical activity strategy Revenue Operational Services 
- Leisure

         20,000 

272 JOINT Cleaning Materials and Sundries Provision of cleaning materials and sundries Revenue Operational Services 
- DLO

         18,000 

268 JOINT Provision of Skips - Provision of waste skips for High Peak and Staffordshire 
Moorlands areas 

Revenue Operational Services 
- Waste & Street 

Scene

         11,680 

Ref Auth Contract Title Brief contract description Capital / 
Revenue

Service Area Total est. 
value of  

contract £

823 JOINT Town Centre Investment Strategy Visitor Economy Strategy and Marketing Revenue Regeneration            5,000 

890 JOINT Local Plan Inspection Support 
Services

Consultancy Support Revenue Regeneration  TBC

Ref Auth Contract Title Brief contract description Capital / 
Revenue

Service Area Total est. 
value of  

contract £

257 Joint IT - ICT Support Service (HPBC / 
SMDC)

ICT support function Revenue Organisational 
Development & 

Transformation - ICT

    5,000,000 

P
age 176



15

638 JOINT Risk Based Verification and E-forms - 
Revenues and Benefits 

IT system for self assessment and verification functions 
via website and completion of E-forms for Revenues and 
Benefits.  

Capital Organisational 
Development & 

Transformation - ICT

       886,000 

692 JOINT Digital Customer Portal Customer Self serve portal 
Contract expire 20/21 review required 19/20

Revenue Organisational 
Development & 

Transformation - ICT

      240,000 

189 Joint Telecoms - Mobile phones / devices Mobile devices and phones (rentals and calls) Revenue Organisational 
Development & 

Transformation - ICT

       168,860 

564 Joint HPBC & SMDC Content Managed 
Website

Provision of Content Mgmt System for HPBC / SMDC Capital Organisational 
Development & 

Transformation - ICT

         86,020 

46 Joint Telecoms - line rentals and calls 
(HPBC & SMDC)

Telecom Networks  - Voice Calls & Lines Revenue Organisational 
Development & 

Transformation - ICT

        34,000 

887 JOINT HR consultancy Support HR Consultancy support Revenue Organisational 
Development & 

Transformation - HR

         24,180 

357 Joint Network pen testing Security testing Revenue Organisational 
Development & 

Transformation - ICT

         19,440 

255 Joint E-tendering System Provision of E-tendering solution for HPBC and SMDC Revenue Organisational 
Development & 

Transformation - ICT

         17,800 

104 Joint Employee Stress Counselling Services Service Agreement providing independent Staff Support 
and Counselling Services for employees by means of 
self-referral

Revenue Organisational 
Development & 

Transformation - HR

         16,160 

693 JOINT Occupational Health Services Professional advice Occupational Health Revenue Organisational 
Development & 

Transformation - HR

         11,000 

P
age 177



16

584 JOINT Staff Learning and Development 
Programme For Alliance Employees 

Training to be provided for Employees of the Alliance Revenue Organisational 
Development & 

Transformation - HR

           9,575 

698 JOINT Complaints Module System Complaints Software System Revenue Organisational 
Development & 

Transformation - ICT

           2,800 

10 Joint Provision of Temporary Agency Staff Provision of temporary agency staff as required - 
Business review pending

Revenue Organisational 
Development & 

Transformation - HR

    TBC

Ref Auth Contract Title Brief contract description Capital / 
Revenue

Service Area Total est. 
value of  

contract £

433 JOINT Planning Consultancy Framework Access to professional support  Revenue Regulatory Services - 
Planning & Building 

Control

       150,000 

15 JOINT Disabled adaptations (Private) Delivery of adaptations under the mandatory Disabled 
Facilities Grant programme 

 Capital Regulatory Services - 
Environmental 

Health

       120,000 

114 JOINT Taxi Plates and Brackets Taxi Plates and Brackets Revenue Regulatory Services - 
Licensing

         25,000 

137 JOINT Pest Control Products Provider To purchase all pest control equipment & pesticides Revenue Regulatory Services - 
Environmental 

Health

         24,000 

112 JOINT Provision for kennels for stay dogs to 
be held 

Essential regulatory Requirement. Revenue Regulatory Services - 
Environmental 

Health

         10,000 

710 JOINT Air quality analysis and supply of 
diffusion tubes

Analysis and reporting on diffusion tube data from air 
quality monitoring sites

Revenue Regulatory Services - 
Environmental 

Health

           8,200 

P
age 178



17

129 JOINT Water Analysis Services Analysis and reporting on water samples from the 
private water supply assessment programme

Revenue Regulatory Services - 
Environmental 

Health

           8,000 

605 JOINT Building Control Out of Hours 
Emergency cover 

Out of Hours Emergency cover for dangerous structures 
building control

 Revenue Regulatory Services - 
Planning & Building 

Control

           5,000 

Ref Auth Contract Title Brief contract description Capital / 
Revenue

Service Area Total est. 
value of  

contract £

653 JOINT Stickers and Signs Stickers and signage used across the Alliance Revenue Visitor Services - Car 
Parking

         50,000 

450 JOINT Cashless Parking
(Subject to Approval)

The use of cashless parking machines in the Council 
owned car parks

 Visitor Services - Car 
Parking

         50,000 

121 JOINT Pay and display machine 
maintenance contract

Car park pay and display machine maintenance contract Revenue Visitor Services - Car 
Parking

         30,000 

P
age 179



T
his page is intentionally left blank



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report to Cabinet

12 February 2019

TITLE: Town Centre Regeneration and Investment 
Programme

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor  Ralphs - Council Leader SMDC

CONTACT OFFICER: Sarah Porru – Head of Regeneration 

WARDS INVOLVED:

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Councillors on proposals for the Town 
Centre Regeneration and Investment Programme and seek approval for the 
submission of a funding bid to the Future High Street Fund to support 
improvements to Cheadle Town Centre.

2. Recommendation

2.1 It is recommended that Councillors:

2.1.1 Note the update and actions within the Town Centre Regeneration and 
Investment Programme

2.1.2 Submit an expression of interest to the Future High Street Fund to support 
regeneration and investment in Cheadle.

3. Executive Summary

High Streets have been affected by major changes in the past decades, and the 
speed of this change is increasing. Online shopping in particular has become 
significantly more popular than it was 10 years ago and this is having 
significant impact on retail stores.  As a result, high streets are having to 
evolve and adapt.

3.2 In response to these changes, The Ministry of Housing, Communities and 
Local Government have made provision for a new £675 million Future High 
Streets Fund to support and fund local areas’ plans to make their high streets 
and town centres fit for the future. The fund can also help to restore historic 
high street properties and put historic buildings back into economic use. 

Page 181

Agenda Item 8.4



3.3 Evidence shows that high streets with a wide choice alongside well designed 
and planned residential and office space are more resilient to these changes 
and are adapting more successfully. In contrast, high streets that rely heavily 
on traditional retail without sufficient office space and housing surrounding the 
high street have found it harder to adapt to these changes and tend to be the 
ones that are struggling (Public Health England, British Property Foundation).

3.4 Retail vacancy rates vary across Staffordshire Moorlands towns and there 
appears to be a link to the level of house-building in the area with those towns 
experiencing higher levels of development seeing better performing high 
streets. However, the national average for retail vacancies is 10.1%, and on 
this basis Leek, Cheadle and Biddulph are all performing worse than average. 

Town Total number of 
retail units

Number of 
Vacant retail  
Units

Vacancy Rate 
(%)

Leek 241 26 10.8

Cheadle 105 20 19

Biddulph 88 15 17

TOTAL / AVERAGE 434 61 14.1

3.5 In response to this, a draft Town Centre Regeneration and Investment 
Programme has been prepared for the Moorlands, identifying constraints and 
opportunities and proactively driving growth in the town centres. It also 
considers funding opportunities including the recently announced Future High 
Streets Fund. The programme recognises that each of the Moorlands town’s is 
different and will therefore require a different approach to maximise growth, 
increase footfall and bring forward alternative uses for vacant properties. 

4. Cheadle  

4.1 In recent years Cheadle has shown a rapidly declining retail performance and 
now has more empty shops than any of the other Moorlands towns. Poor 
quality and low value stores in the town centre and large number of part time 
shops (only open 3-4 days a week) give the town a neglected feel & deter 
investors. Historically low housing development has meant stagnant growth 
and an ageing population. This results in a lack of variety in the retail offer and 
high street uses. However, the town has a number of opportunities. St Giles 
Church offers significant heritage interest, the town centre is attractive and 
there is a more than sufficient supply of affordable car parking spaces and 
accessible public facilities. Significant housing growth is planned which will 
help improve footfall in the town centre, whilst the town’s proximity to the A50 
provides opportunities for connectivity improvements. The recently 
commissioned Cheadle Masterplan will consider opportunities to maximise the 
above benefits as well as the development opportunities provided by large 
areas of publicly-owned land in and around the town centre.

Page 182



4.2 The Future High Street fund will support Investment in physical infrastructure, 
including improving public and other transport access as well as Investment in 
land assembly, including support for increase the density of residential and 
workspace around high streets in place of under-used retail units. Having 
studied the criteria of the Future High Street Fund, and considered the 
challenges and opportunities presented by each of the Moorlands towns, 
Cheadle is best placed to be the focus of a submission and would benefit most 
from programme due its declining high street performance and opportunities 
for investment on publicly owned land.  

4.3 The fund will also support the regeneration of heritage high streets (up to £55 
million of the overall fund). This has two elements: helping to restore historic 
high street properties through Historic England, and equipping communities 
with their own resources to put historic buildings back into economic use. St 
Giles Church is currently an under-utilised heritage asset that could act as a 
focal point and increase visitor numbers to the town.   

  
4.4 The Government has stated that they are expecting only one bid from each 

local authority and have made clear that they will not accept bids covering 
town centre areas that are not facing significant challenges. Places are 
expected to partner with the private sector in developing their proposals. The 
deadline for submission to the fund is 22nd March   

5. Leek

5.1 Leek is currently the best performing town in the Moorlands in terms of retail 
vacancy levels and has benefited from recent investment in public realm and 
markets. Recent investment totalling in excess of £2.2m includes 
improvements to the Cattle Market, Butter Market and Market Place as well 
as Leek Sports Village and local play schemes. Leek also has a strong 
catchment area driven by agricultural/rural weekly trade and weekend 
visitors. 

5.2 However engagement in arts and cultural activity across the district is 
comparatively low and a recent review of the Councils Arts grants identifies 
that more could be done to promote arts and culture activity to deliver 
economic, social, and health benefits. One of the key recommendations of 
the review is the creation of a cultural strategy for the district. This would be a 
strategy developed by the sector and supported by the Council rather than a 
‘Council Strategy’. 

5.3 Futhermore, Staffordshire Moorlands has also been identified by the Arts 
Council as ‘an area with comparatively low engagement with arts and cultural 
activity’. As a result the Arts Council has designated Staffordshire Moorlands 
as one of the areas eligible to bid to join the next Creative People and Places 
programme.

5.4 The Creative People and Places Programme covers arts and culture which 
means engagement in museums and heritage (both built and natural) and 
libraries is covered. Activity in the Nicholson Institute and Foxlowe Arts Centre 
could be included and the districts natural assets could play an important part 

Page 183



in a local scheme. Democratic & Community Services will lead on the 
development and submission of a bid for inclusion in the Creative People and 
Places programme.

6. Biddulph   

6.1 Whilst the town suffers from a low overall shopping retention rate which 
impacts on associated shopping expenditure, the town centre supermarket 
free car parking and centrally located services mean the town has the potential 
for strong footfall and investment in public realm has helped create a visually 
attractive town centre. Recent investment totalling in excess of £2.5m includes 
improvements at Biddulph Town Hall, Biddulph Sports village, Biddulph 
Leisure Centre and play areas at Hot Lane and Newpool. 

6.2 One of the aims of the Biddulph Neighbourhood plan is to ‘promote the local 
economy aiming for prosperity for all’. Community feedback has focused this 
element on the quality of the High Street. The plan also seeks to identify all 
local heritage, culture and encourage tourism responsibly. As part of the 
Neighbourhood Plan process, AECOM was commissioned to prepare a 
Masterplan Framework for Biddulph Town Centre and propose land uses for 
the Mill Triangle Sites which would help to revitalise the Town Centre and 
improve the urban environment for locals and visitors. This will be considered 
as part of the emerging Neighbourhood Plan.  

6.3 The Council already has an agreed approach in place to accelerate the 
increase in employment space in the town, to increase the number of jobs and 
start-ups and support the growth of existing businesses. The Council has 
made a significant investment (£283,000) at Victoria Business Park and 
recently approved a comprehensive package of measures to accelerate 
housing delivery in the Staffordshire Moorlands including Wharf Road in 
Biddulph. 

6.4 Masterplans are currently being prepared for Tunstall Road and Wharf Road in 
Biddulph. The masterplans will provide a strategic vision for the development 
of these sites, unlock barriers to delivery and speed up the rate at which land 
can be made available. These developments will help increase housing and 
employment density in the town which in turn will increase footfall in the town 
centre, leading to vibrant and healthy high street.    

7.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

7.1 The Town Centre Regeneration and Investment Programme will have 
implications the following aims of the Corporate Plan: 

• Aim One - Help create a safer and healthier environment for our 
residents to live and work

• Aim Three – To create a strong economy by supporting further 
regeneration of towns and villages

Page 184



8. Alternative Options

8.1 Option 1 (recommended) – that the Council notes the approach in the Town 
Centre Regeneration and Investment Programme and approves the 
submission of a funding bid to the Future High Street Fund to support 
improvements to Cheadle Town Centre. 

8.2 Option 2 (not recommended) – that the Council does not approve the 
submission of a funding bid to the Future High Street Fund to support 
improvements to Cheadle Town Centre. This is not recommended. 

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

6.2 Workforce

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment

There are no implications at this stage. The more detailed set of 
proposals and implementation plan (if the Future High Street Fund  
bid is successful) could provide opportunities to advance equality 
and diversity and will be considered at those stages.

6.4 Financial Considerations

6.5 Legal

6.6 Sustainability

6.7 Consultation

6.8 Risk Assessment

Dai Larner
Executive Director (Place)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

Name of any papers Council building or web hyperlink Sarah Porru

sarah.porru@highpeak.

6.4

Page 185



gov.uk

7. Detail

7.1 The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government have made 
provision for a new £675 million Future High Streets Fund to support and 
fund local areas’ plans to make their high streets and town centres fit for the 
future. It will serve two purposes: it will support local areas to prepare long-
term strategies for their high streets and town centres, including funding a 
new High Streets Taskforce to provide expertise and hands-on support to 
local areas. It will also then co-fund with local areas projects including:

o Investment in physical infrastructure, including improving public and 
other transport access; improving flow and circulation within a town / 
city centre; enabling provision of congestion-relieving infrastructure; 
other investment in physical infrastructure needed to support new 
housing and workspace development and existing local communities;.

o Investment in land assembly, including support for increase the density 
of residential and workspace around high streets in place of under-used 
retail units.

7.2 The fund will also support the regeneration of heritage high streets (up to £55 
million of the overall fund). This has two elements: helping to restore historic 
high street properties through Historic England, and equipping communities 
with their own resources to put historic buildings back into economic use - for 
example as residential buildings, new work spaces or cultural venues, 
supported by the Architectural Heritage Fund.

7.4 Local areas are asked to out how their plans will enable their local high street 
to adapt to changes in consumer demands and then give details of individual 
projects with a clear economic benefit. Funding can not be used to expand 
traditional retail on their high street or for short term enhancements or 
promotions. 

7.5 The Government has stated that they are expecting only one bid from each 
local authority and have made clear that they will not accept bids covering 
town centre areas that are not facing significant challenges. Places are 
expected to partner with the private sector in developing their proposals. The 
deadline for submission to the fund is 22nd March  

7.6 Creative People and Places is an Arts Council funded programme. It 
encourages new approaches to inspire and excite people about the arts. Bids 
to the programme are expected to be for £1 – 2 million and require match 
funding of 25% (which can come from ticket sales, sponsorship, other grants 
-including Heritage Lottery grants, volunteer time). Funding can be used to 
pay for the local programme team, tutors, performers, venues, materials and 
other costs. The deadline for the 1st Stage submission is 21st March 2019

Page 186



Page 187



This page is intentionally left blank



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report to Cabinet

12 February 2019

Attached: Appendix 1: Review of the Councils Arts Grants.

1. Reason for the Report: 

Staffordshire Moorlands has been designated as an area eligible to bid for 
inclusion in the Creative People and Places programme. The report explains 
the background and bid process.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Cabinet supports the development and submission of a bid for 
inclusion in the Creative People and Places programme.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 Staffordshire Moorlands has designated by the Arts Council as one of the 
areas eligible to bid to join the next Creative People and Places programme.

3.2 Creative People and Places is a national action research programme which 
encourages participation in arts and culture, and will provide funds of £1 – £2 
million for participating areas over a four year period.

3.3 Arts and cultural activity produce many benefits: economic, social, and health 
related. While Staffordshire Moorlands benefits from an active arts and cultural 
sector national statics show that engagement is comparatively low and a 
recent review of the Council’s Arts Grants identifies that more could be done.

TITLE: Creative People & Places bid

PORTFOLIO: Leader of the Council – Councillor Ralphs

OFFICER: Mark Forrester (Manager Democratic & 
Community Service)

WARDS: Non specific

Page 189

Agenda Item 8.5



3.4 Building on the recent review of the Council’s Arts Grants (Appendix 1) and 
working as part of a consortium it is proposed to prepare and submit a bid for 
the area to be part of the new round of Creative People and Places.

3.5 Initial consortium partners and bid/programme development agencies will be B 
Arts and Support Staffordshire. B Arts is an arts and educational charity based 
in Stoke-on-Trent, an Arts Council England National Portfolio Organisation 
with a 33 year track record of work in North Staffordshire, in the region and 
internationally.

3.6 It is proposed to provide a grant of £11,000 to support the initial 
bid/programme development process. Funding is available from the 
Community Planning budget.

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The development of a Creative People and Places bid and a successful 
programme will support all four of the Council’s corporate objectives  

5. Options and Analysis

5.1 That a bid is supported. (Recommended) 

5.2 That a bid is not supported. (Not recommended)

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

No implications.

6.2 Workforce

No implications.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment

The Council will ensure that its equality duties are considered 
during the development of the application. The Creative People 
and Places Programme will be an opportunity to:

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share 
a protected characteristic and those who do not.

 Foster good relations between people who share a 
protected characteristic and those who do not.

Page 190



6.4 Financial Considerations

The report identifies the need to invest in the development of the 
bid and to contribute an element of match funding should the bid 
be successful. These contributions can be made from existing 
budgets.

6.5 Legal

No implications – the Council will not be the lead or accountable 
body for the programme.

6.6 Sustainability

No implications.

6.7 Internal and External Consultation

The Arts Grant review engaged with many individuals and groups 
in the local arts sector. The development of the bid will also involve 
engagement with a wide range of organisations and individuals. 
This process will be led by B Arts and Support Staffordshire.

6.8 Risk Assessment

There is a risk that the funding bid will not be successful. It is 
anticipated though that the development process, which includes 
the development of an arts strategy as recommended by the recent 
grants review, will itself be beneficial, acting as a catalyst for future 
partnerships, initiatives and funding bids.

7. Background and Detail

7.1 Staffordshire Moorlands has been identified by the Arts Council as an area 
with comparatively low engagement with arts and cultural activity. As a result 
the Arts Council has designated Staffordshire Moorlands as one of the areas 
eligible to bid to join the next Creative People and Places programme.

7.2 Creative People and Places is an Arts Council funded programme. It 
describes itself as being more people choosing, creating and taking part in 
brilliant art experiences in the places where they live. 

7.3 Creative People and Places takes place currently in 21 areas where evidence 
shows that people are less involved in arts and cultural activities than 
elsewhere in England. As an action research programme, it encourages new 
approaches to inspire and excite people about the arts.

Page 191



7.4 Local people are encouraged to be involved with Creative People and Places 
projects as participants, decision-makers, artists, ambassadors, volunteers 
and as audiences.

7.5 Developed by Arts Council England with an initial investment of £37m from the 
National Lottery, the first phase of the programme ran between 2013 and 
2016. The programme has been extended and where the original programme 
was ‘arts’ focused the new programme has been extended to include ‘culture’.

7.6 Bids to the programme are expected to be for £1 – 2 million and require match 
funding of 25% (which can come from ticket sales, sponsorship, other grants -
including Heritage Lottery grants, volunteer time). Funding can be used to pay 
for the local programme team, tutors, performers, venues, materials and other 
costs.

7.7 Arts Council England’s aims for Creative People and Places:

 More people from places of least engagement experience and are inspired 
by the arts.

 Communities take the lead in shaping local arts provision.
 The aspiration for excellence is central - this covers both excellence of art 

and excellence of the process of engaging communities.
 To learn from past experiences and create an environment where the arts 

and cultural sector can experiment with new approaches to engaging 
communities.

 To learn more about how to establish sustainable arts and cultural 
opportunities and make this learning freely available across the cultural 
sector.

 To encourage partnerships across the subsidised, amateur and 
commercial sectors.

 To demonstrate the power of the arts to enrich the lives of individuals and 
make positive changes in communities.

 That activity is radically different from what has happened before in each 
place.

Staffordshire Moorlands – current activity

7.8 The Council has an annual budget of £34,730 to support local arts activity. 

7.8.1 The Council’s contribution to arts is focused through the three Arts 
Forums (Biddulph, Cheadle, Leek) supported by Support Staffordshire. 
The Forums each distribute £3,000 in Council grant to local arts groups 
and individuals and also each receives a grant of £3,000 to support 
their annual Arts Festivals. 

7.8.2 The Council provides an annual contribution of £3,500 to Live and Local 
– a not-for-profit arts organisation operating across the Midlands. The 
Live and Local Community Performance Scheme helps voluntary 
groups to choose and promote high quality professional performances 
for their local community venue. The scheme particularly focuses on 

Page 192



rural areas and has a strong record of work supporting village halls in 
Staffordshire Moorlands.

7.9 Nicholson Institute – the Council runs the Museum and Gallery.

7.9.1 The Museum displays items from the Council’s collection. The 
collection includes paintings, costume, embroideries, ceramic and 
glassware and a selection of items on perpetual loan from the Royal 
Collection. 

7.9.2 The Gallery aims to provide a program of exhibitions and events. The 
Gallery hosts around eight exhibitions a year which are chosen to 
cater for a range of ages and tastes. Exhibitions generally run for 6 
weeks and most exhibitions are accompanied by supporting events.

7.10 A review of the Council’s Arts grants was completed in 2018. The review was 
undertaken for the Council by Support Staffordshire working with B Arts (a 
North Staffordshire based cultural organisation). 

7.10.1 The review questioned the effectiveness of current funding, sought the 
views of the sector, asked whether there are better way of supporting 
the sector and the possibility of attracting additional funds from other 
sources. 

7.10.2 The final report has been received by the Council (Appendix 1 Review 
of the Council’s Arts Grants). One of the key recommendations of the 
report is the creation of a cultural strategy for the district. This would be 
a strategy developed by the sector and supported by the Council rather 
than a ‘Council Strategy’. 

7.10.3 Having engaged local arts groups and individuals in the review the 
timing of the new Creative People and Places programme is excellent. 
Preparing a bid for the Creative People and Places programme must 
involve a wide set of stakeholders from the arts and cultural sector and 
will be an opportunity to develop such a strategy. 

7.11 The Creative People and Places Programme covers arts and culture which 
means engagement in museums – heritage (both built and natural) and 
libraries – is covered. Activity in the Nicholson Institute could be included and 
the District’s natural assets could play an important part in a local scheme.

Bidding for the Creative People and Places Programme – Process

7.12 Bids have to be made by a consortium – Consortiums are to include around 
five organisations including a local community organisation and an arts 
organisation, with one organisation designated as the lead partner (local 
authorities should not be the lead partner).

7.13 Timetable:

 1st Stage submission by 21st March 2019.

Page 193



 The Arts Council visit to meet and interview the consortium in July 
2019.

 Decision announced in Aug 2019.
 Business development phase (but must also include some cultural 

events) Nov – April 2020.
 Programme end 31st October 2023.

7.14 Working together as a group the consortium applies for the grant, oversees 
development plans and, if successful, delivers the programme.

7.15 Programme value (£’s)

The minimum expected level of bid is £1 million. A minimum of 25% in match 
funding is required – which can come from ticket sales at supported events, 
sponsorship, other grant bids – HLF for example, SMDC’s Arts budget, 
volunteer time or a local culture based lottery.

At this point the initial thinking of B Arts and Support Staffordshire is that a 
local bid could be for just over £1 million with a matched funding target of 
approximately £350,000.

7.16 Bid and programme development

It is proposed to continue to engage Support Staffordshire and B Arts to 
undertake the bid development work.

 The initial estimate of cost to prepare the bid submission is £11,000 (to 
March 2019). The Community Planning budget can cover the cost.

 Further development of the proposal (including the cultural strategy), 
consortium development, interview with the Arts Council and planning - 
£10,000 (to August 2019).

 Should the bid be successful the Arts Council will provide funding for the 
business planning stage September 2019 to March 2020.

Benefits of a bid

7.17 Arts and cultural activity is known to contribute significantly to local 
economies, to individual health and well being, and to the quality of community 
life. A successful programme in the Staffordshire Moorlands will be expected 
to boost these benefits and links closely to the Council’s aspirations to:

 Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents and 
communities to live and work.

 Help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns 
and villages.

 Protect and improve the environment.

7.18 The Council does not currently have a cultural/arts strategy and lacks capacity 
to develop the sector. Significant external investment, the engagement of key 
partners such as B Arts and a successful programme could achieve these 
goals.

Page 194



7.19 The bid process itself will yield benefits as it engages the sector, encourages 
new thinking, identifies opportunities and energises those involved.

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) & Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

Page 195



Page 196



 

 

 

Staffordshire Moorlands Arts Review 

 

 

 

 

 

Report commissioned by Support Staffordshire 
 

 

Prepared by B arts 

November 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 197



	 2	

 

 

Contents 

1 Introduction       Pg. 3 

2 Methodology       Pg. 4 

3 Findings      Pg. 6 

3.1 Baseline         Pg. 7 

3.2 Vision            Pg. 12 

3.3 What Could Happen?     Pg. 15 

3.4 How to do that    Pg. 16 

3.5 What’s out there?   Pg. 17 

4 Conclusions       Pg. 20 

5 Recommendations      Pg. 22 

6 Next Steps      Pg. 31 

Appendices       

(i) Survey Questions and More Detailed Responses   

(ii) Stakeholder Interviews    

(iii) Conversations: Session Plans  

(iv) Additional Material  

  

Page 198



	 3	

   

1 Introduction 

In February 2018 B arts were commissioned by Support Staffordshire to 
undertake a review of arts provision and activity in the Staffordshire Moorlands 
District.  

The review activity started in March and was completed at the end of July 
2018. The report was brought together through discussions between the 
partners and B arts and completed in November 2018.  

1.1 Brief 

The original brief states that the review should:  

• raise aspirations of a more vibrant arts scene in the Staffordshire 
Moorlands District  

• gather information to inform a vision and an arts strategy (including how 
best to support development of the arts and creative industries) 

• provide evidence of need for support for arts and creative industries for 
future funding bids by Support Staffordshire  

“The aspiration is that the vision and associated strategy will encompass all 
forms of benefit that involvement in the arts can bring, including: 

Economic regeneration 

Enriched community life 

Improved personal health and well-being 

Increased skills and levels of participation in the arts 

Increased opportunities and accessible facilities to take part in the arts.”    

(Extract from Staffordshire Moorlands Arts Review Brief, January 2018)  

B arts, in conversation with Support Staffordshire, clarified the focus of the 
review. Given the limited budget (and therefore time) to pursue all the possible 
avenues of enquiry, the agreed priorities were to engage with existing arts 
activity and organisations in the district (e.g. three arts festivals and Arts 
Forums), those supported through the Staffordshire Moorlands Arts Forums, and 
then to gather views from a range of existing stakeholders. An element of desk-
based research should also be done that brought examples of good practice 
elsewhere in comparable local authority areas to the overall review. 

Page 199



	 4	

2 Methodology 

Three key actions were undertaken to provide the bulk of the material for the 
review 

• Survey (see Appendix i for survey questions and responses) 

The survey was made available digitally and in hard copy. It was distributed 
digitally via Support Staffordshire, B arts and their networks. It was also shared 
via social media (Facebook) and print (Leek Post & Times).  

The questions were designed to find out: how artists and arts organisation fund 
their activities, the range of venues they used, their connection/if one existed 
to the Arts Forums, funding obtained through Arts Forums, and views on the 
annual arts celebration. Crucially we also offered the respondents to talk about 
their ambitions for themselves/ organisations, their work and for the District.  

We received 88 responses 

•  1-1 Interview questions and responses: Stakeholders  (see Appendix ii for 
questions & respondents)   

The stakeholders were selected to offer a rounded view of the arts scene in the 
Moorlands. The interview questions covered largely the same content as the 
survey questions, with the format allowing for a more-wide ranging conversation 
and were conducted with individuals geographically located across the District.  

The Live Interviews gave us an opportunity to dig into some specific examples 
of both current activity, partnerships and to look at ambitions and possible 
future activities.   Each session lasted between 1 to 2 hours.   

We interviewed 12 stakeholders 

• Face to Face Conversations (see Appendix iii for session plan, venues and 
attendees) 

The conversations took place towards the end of the review process and were 
intended as safe spaces for stakeholders to have a structured and more in 
depth exploration of some of the issues that had been identified through the 
survey and the interviews.  In addition, we encouraged participants to express 
“what the arts does for me” in order to derive some value statements. The 
conversation format also gave people the opportunity to co-design projects and 
large-scale ideas in small groups. 

The events took place in three venues across the District. 

We held three conversation events, attended by twenty-five participants  Page 200



	 5	

• Additional material 

We had two written submissions (see Appendix iv) that offered a more 
extended set of reflections; one on the history of the Arts Forums and the other 
from the perspective of an individual artist (creative industry). These are 
included in the Appendices. 

  

Page 201



	 6	

 

3 Findings  

The findings have been structured into five sections.  

They reflect opinions and information expressed across the three actions and 
information gathered from desk research.  

They are:  

3.1 Baseline: Where we are now- the findings of the survey- evidence of need 
for support from conversations, survey and interviews- festivals 

3.2 Vision: What the arts sector thinks the arts is for- what could it do for 
everyone- the impacts and benefits- strategic connections 

3.3 What Could Happen: Where we would like to go- ambitious ideas- from   
interviews and conversations 

3.4 How should we do that? Partners- are Art Forums the right vehicle? 

3.5 What else is out there? Inspiration from across the UK 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                      Image by Sue Prince 

  

Page 202



	 7	

 

3.1 Baseline 

We looked at the current provision funded by Staffordshire Moorlands District 
Council is via financial support distributed to;  

• Three Arts Forums (Biddulph, Leek, Cheadle)- each receiving an equal 
sum and disbursing it through their membership to fund arts activities in 
the area 

• A Contract with Support Staffordshire to administrate and support the 
Arts Forums  

• Three Arts Festivals- again organised by town and administered 
voluntarily 

• Membership of Staffordshire Live and Local  
• Marketing and promotional activities (e.g. printing costs for annual Art 

Exhibition organised by Buxton Leek College, Annual Arts Celebration)   

The survey and the one to one interviews also provided key data around the 
baseline. 

Survey Summary of Findings:   

Respondents profile:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 203



	 8	

 

Art-forms represented:  

 

Venues:  

• Need for a large venue - 8 (5 specifying Leek) respondents 

• Improvements required at current venues - 4 respondents 

• Current venues satisfactory commented on by several respondents 

Additional facilities that respondents wanted to see: 

• Arts hub/gallery/exhibition space/workshop space – 16 respondents 

• Large venue/theatre – 14 (Leek 2, Biddulph 1, Cheadle 1) respondents 

 

 

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35

Produce	goods	for	sale

Involved	in	arts	purely	as	a	leisure	activity

Creative	learning	leading	to	formal	qualifications

Creative	informal	learning	for	mental	health/physical	

Other	(1	each)

No.	of	organisations

What	do	you	do?	
(65	responses;	180	'answers')

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35

Music

Dance

Architecture

Painting/Drawing

Poetry/Writing

Printmaking

No.	of	organisaions

Which	Art	Forms	are	you	involved	in?	
(82	responses;	172	'answers')	

Page 204



	 9	

Arts Forums:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 205



	 10	

 

 

Suggestions for how the Arts Forums could be improved: 

• Increase numbers involved – 5 (especially youth -3) 

• Increase level of funding – 3 

• Raised profile/improved publicity about Arts Forums – 3 

 

Funding: 

 

 

 

 

0 5 10 15 20 25 30

Subscriptions
Fund-raising	activities

Writing	funding	applications	to	Trusts	and	Foundations
Donations

Local	Authority	Funding
Sales	of	tickets,	sub-letting,	rental	income

Sales	of	products	or	objects	or	commissions	for	objects
Commissions	for	services

Self-Funded
Other	(1	each)

No.	of	organisations

How	do	you	fund	your	activities?	
(82	responses;	161	'answers')

0 5 10 15 20 25

Networking
Sharing	ideas

Signposting	each	other
Learning	from	each	other	or	from	external	input

Developing	collaborative	activity
Funding

Help	from	Support	Staffordshire
Other	(1	each)

No.	of	Organisations

How	has	the	Arts	Forum	been	useful	for	you?

Page 206



	 11	

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 207



	 12	

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Annual Celebration:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 208



	 13	

 

Marketing and communications:  

 

Ambitions: Organisations identified the following as the most important targets 
over the next five years: 

• Attract more members – 11 (youth – 6) 
• Business/activities expansion -10 
• Become sustainable – 10 
• Reach bigger audiences – 9 
• Raise arts profile 
• Improved venues 
• Offer arts to more people 

 

0 10 20 30 40 50 60

Social	media

Websites

Network	with	other	artists	and	arts	groups	(in	person	…

Print	leaflets,	flyers,	posters

Word	of	mouth

Adverts	in	local	press

Editorial	in	local	media

Other	(1	each)

No.	of	Organisations

How	do	you	tell	people	about	what	you	do?	
(82	reponses;	225	'answers')

0 10 20 30 40 50 60

Help	with	funding
Attracting	audiences

Improving	your	own	skills
Marketing	(e.g.	social	media)

Finding	others	to	collaborate	with
Access	to	better	venues

Organisational	matters	(e.g.	business	planning)
Other	(1	each)

No.	of	Organisations

What	would	help	you	to	achieve	these	ambitions?	
(79	responses;	231	"answers")	

Page 209



	 14	

 

Other comments 

• Profile of current offer re arts and arts in general needs raising in 
Staffordshire Moorlands – (8) 

• Appreciation of current system – (5) 

• Engage an arts officer/coordinator – (2) 

• Improve venues – (2) 

• More funding – (2) 

• Improve collaboration between arts groups – (1) 

Comments about the Forums expressed on various platforms represented a 
range of views including: “I didn’t know they existed”, “It’s the same groups, 
sharing a small amount of money and makes a negligible difference”, “Outdated, 
reticent (sic) to change” and “Ours does a very good job”, “Absolutely 
essential”. 

Evidence of Need  

The survey responses and conversation events provided excellent evidence of 
need in the District. Where respondents expressed dissatisfaction with the Arts 
Forums or other aspects of the use of the arts budget via the survey or in 
interviews, this was coupled with a request for more venues, more support both 
in direct grants in help with fundraising etc. a more accessible/ larger arts 
budget, coupled with a more open and accessible application process.  

Grassroots activity: where funding has been distributed through the Forums 
typically via grants in the region of £300, these have been used to support arts 
and creative activities that have had a direct impact on between 1300 to 3900 
people*1 per year, through participation.  

Accurate data for the numbers of people reached through exhibitions, concerts 
and performances by the groups and organisations funded through the Arts 
Forums is not available but is estimated in the region of between 10,000 and 
20,000 people across the District. 

Festivals             

Leek and Biddulph festivals are large scale mature events each held over 4-6 
weeks in May and June-July respectively, and comprising around 60 shows and 
events. Biddulph is very much a community festival which Leek remains closer 
to its music festival roots and attracts performers of national and international Page 210



	 15	

standing. Each has a turnover of around £20,000 (although in both cases this 
doesn’t include the costs and revenue of the events put on by other 
organisations as part of the festival), and in each case a total audience reach 
estimated to be in the region of 5,000 or more. 

Cheadle’s festival has been running just over 10 years, and is a smaller scale 
event performances by local artists, creators and arts groups. 
  
Each regards the £2,000 grant from SMDC as at least partially crucial to their 
festival’s sustainability. In each case the funding is allocated to core costs of 
putting the festival on, particularly its publicity – advertising in local newspapers 
and flyer and programme production costs – and in Cheadle’s case room hire 
expenses. 
  
Each festival is confident that their programming is versatile and evolving, 
providing new shows and arts experiences each year and attracting new 
audiences. 

 

 

 

 

 

Publicity for Buxton Leek College Annual Contemporary Arts Exhibition  

Page 211



	 16	

 

 

3.2 Vision 

What does the arts do for me? 

This was the introductory exercise in the conversation sessions. Attendees took 
the opportunity to have a wide-ranging and creative discussion that generated 
statements about the impact, value and the place of the arts in their lives.  

The range of benefits that the arts can bring is broad, and impacts sometimes 
defy definition. However, articulating what the arts does for us, both as 
someone who takes part in or practises the arts and as an audience member/ 
reader/ exhibition goer/ consumer, is essential. This gives us a language with 
which to communicate the impact and benefit of the arts to others and to 
advocate for the very real benefits the arts bring. We have grouped attendees’ 
quotes from the conversations under three themes;  

Challenge and achievement 

- a source of inspiration, growth  
- learn a new skill 
- a way to explore concerns in a context  
- a sense of satisfaction and accomplishment, validation 
- working from myself-on myself 
- communicating, and relating to others 
- about making a living 

Well-being 

- using our creative talents builds confidence 
- takes one away from the mundane, relaxation 
- feeling more myself  
- joyful, giving enjoyment 
- good for the brain 
- prevents loneliness, reduces isolation 
- something that holds body and soul together 

Community 

- (building) continuity- a child saying that’s my grandma’s picture             
on the wall 

- crossing boundaries, borders and divisions 
- a definition of civilisation, a necessity, enrichment  

Page 212



	 17	

- socialisation 
- busy-ness, something is happening, something is happening here 
- to bond and bring people together, across the age divides, across the 

area, across social strata 

It was clear that the impact of the arts on our attendees was that they are 
central to living a fulfilled, healthy life as an individual and to creating and 
maintaining strong and inclusive communities.  

Special mention was made for engagement in and access to the arts at both 
ends of life- for young people (aged 0-25) and for the elderly. 

“Less SATS more art”                          Attendee at Biddulph Conversation 

The attendees wanted to be clear that young people should have access to high 
quality arts, throughout their learning lives (in and beyond school/ formal 
education). This contributed to creating fully rounded individuals and had 
positive impacts in other aspects of their education (ability to think and reason, 
to notice and to experiment, broaden horizons, raised aspirations) and in their 
personal development (building empathy, confidence, social skills, bonds and 
friendships in real life).   

For older people the attendees emphasised the importance of engaging in the 
arts to overcome loneliness, isolation, a very real sense of abandonment and 
uselessness. 

In order for older people to maintain their independence and to travel to attend 
classes, clubs and groups, the attendees pointed out that a key barrier, 
especially to people living outside towns, was the lack of transport across the 
District - both the availability of public or voluntary transport (i.e. free to the 
user) or the affordability of private transport (taxis etc.) 

Strategic Connections  

We asked all attendees to the conversation events to identify the top three 
issues and challenges that they believed to be common across the SMDC area. 
These were not to be issues particularly relating to the arts, but that covered all 
aspects of civic life (“anything from potholes to global warming”). They were 
asked to complete the statement Something needs to be done about… 

The group was then asked, through a process of negotiation with other 
members of the group, to arrive at a collectively agreed top three. We then 
used these strategic priorities as a set of factors in structuring our ambitious 
thinking and planning.  

 Page 213



	 18	

Through the process attendees identified the following top three concerns: 

- Inclusion; ensuring that services reach and are suitable for everyone 
- Economy; boosting the economy would be good for everyone 
- Infrastructure; from affordable homes, through venues and facilities, 

transport to communications 

This links our conversations to SMDC’s stated corporate priorities. 

 Achieving Excellence in the delivery of high quality services that meet the 
needs and aspirations of our communities  

This vision is articulated further by four aims:-  

•  Help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live and 
work  

• Meet our financial challenges and provide value for money  

•  Help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns 
and villages  

•  Protect and improve the environment 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council Corporate Plan (2015-2019) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 214



	 19	

3.3 What Could Happen?  

Across all of the research processes we asked people to express their ambitions. 
In the conversation events, we called it; Irresponsible Thinking and encouraged 
people to imagine there was a “Rural District of Culture” award (like a UK City of 
Culture  https://www.absolutelycultured.co.uk/who-we-are/). They had to think 
up the most headline grabbing, inspirational arts project that would be worthy 
of such a programme- it had to have a huge “Wow” factor but also could not 
take place anywhere but the Staffordshire Moorlands. 

Some of the more striking ideas included; 

- Leek’s own Bayeux Tapestry - a new work telling the stories of the town 
(the abbey, the Green Knight, silk, music etc.) led by a professional artist 
(e.g. Grayson Perry 
https://www.theguardian.com/artanddesign/2014/oct/21/grayson-
perry-tapestry-portrait-gallery ), made by people across the town- 
displayed everywhere 

-  Cape Knypersley- a rocket launch site for tourist travel into space, a 
centre for creative engineering education- so that people can go into 
space 

- Pugin Fest: Decorated Town Festival where all the buildings in Cheadle 
were covered/ decorated/ painted/ wrapped and an associated 
programme of activites using town as a backdrop 

- Garden Town: Complete remodelling of Biddulph town centre to take out 
all the existing buildings and replace it with landscaped gardens  

-  A new shared facility that uses sustainable transport (canals, green walk/ 
cycle routes) to access it 

- Parleying In Cheadle; a temporary move of The Houses of Parliament to 
Cheadle  

The seemingly outlandish nature of these ideas seems at first to make this a 
pointless exercise. In fact, it is a very effective way of bringing into focus 
several key elements of a successful forward plan. 

Who we want to say we are. Given this challenge people express the unique 
qualities and properties of their place- so we have for example; a decorated 
town, a debating space for Cheadle, a story of technology- whether in garden 
design and maintenance or in the legacy of mine engineering for Biddulph, and 
story-telling through textiles for Leek.  

How do we make the arts fit strategically? These exercises encourage thinking 
about how the arts tackles the wider strategic priorities e.g. the presence of 
parliament or in fact any “attraction” could be a huge economic benefit to the Page 215



	 20	

area, young people would be inspired by space travel; all ages could be engaged 
in making a giant textile piece and working with a nationally significant artist. 

We found that ambition was not equally spread- in fact our attendees and 
respondents in Biddulph, were in general more confident, outward looking and 
able to think at scale than neighbours in other areas, and the Town Council 
represents a key partner. 

In summary, what this exercise and the subsequent conversations told us were 
that key pieces of work that people wanted to do that were beyond their 
current offer were to create;  

• Large scale, accessible, inclusive (participatory not just performances), 
high quality Festivals and Events that tell the story of the town(s), the 
District and attract external visitors- these could include other themes like 
engineering, gardening as well as the arts in a more traditional sense 

• Programming that physically transforms town centres; makes them more 
people friendly, greener, creates new uses for retail space, pop up 
events/ markets 

• Innovative and exciting projects for young people, led by young people 
• Investment in communication, especially, but not exclusively online via 

social media etc. 
• An increase in participation and audiences overall 

3.4 How to do that 

Partners 

We asked people who they felt should be involved in delivering transformatory 
programming. The lists of partners included the obvious statutory providers; the 
Local Authority (members and officers), Town and Parish Councils, schools, 
churches, the health centres and social care providers, but also extended to; 
both currently well used venues (e.g. Fowxlowe), local pubs, Nicholson Institute 
and some overlooked or under-used venues (e.g. Coton College, Caverswall 
Castle), and new larger partners that people felt had not yet engaged in the 
locality (e.g. The National Trust, Alton Towers). 

Arts Forums  

“The Arts Forums were part of the provision for the Arts in The Staffs 
Moorlands. Large projects which required external funding was organised by the 
SMDC Arts Development Team. There was also available grants of £500 for local 
bigger projects as well as Individual Grants, which were distributed centrally 
from SMDC. This extra arts input eventually came to an end. Because the 
individual grants were not taken up an SMDC, it was decided to administer these Page 216



	 21	

at a local Arts Forum level so we have managed to incorporate personal 
development into our framework by administering the grants at this level. 

The Arts Forums were aimed at grassroots level Arts provision in the three 
towns. SMDC also funded the Moorlands three annual Arts Festivals”  

ex- Chair Biddulph Arts Forum 

It is the wrong question to ask whether the Arts Forums are needed or not.  

Grassroots, self-directed arts activity is an essential part of a thriving arts 
scene.  

It is user led, generates excellent outcomes at a strategic level, particularly 
around community cohesion, combatting loneliness, improving wellbeing and 
giving people an opportunity to actively contribute through volunteering to civil 
society. Grassroots activity - everything led and run by volunteers is not a route 
to creating a healthy arts ecology either. There is a need for a balance between 
professional and voluntary activity and both are needed. 

Arts Forums distribute small amounts of money for grassroots, voluntary 
groups, which in the majority of cases make a real and significant difference.  

However, they are seen by some as exclusive rather than inclusive. The Forums 
themselves are developed through natural networks, and word of mouth. The 
Chairs do not have the capacities or resources to actively engage with potential 
members. 

Support Staffordshire, who have the experience and capacity in these, 
essentially community development driven, activities, have not been given 
sufficient resource or scope within their contract to deliver this ambition either. 

This leaves the Arts Forums exposed to criticism and ultimately not a defensible 
model for the distribution of public funds. 

 

  

Page 217



	 22	

3.5 What’s out there to inspire us? 

These examples, gathered from face to face and desk-based research, are of 
comparable settlements/ conurbations in rural or focused urban settings, with 
relatively similar audiences/ constituents. They are a brief snapshot of cultural 
activities undertaken in those areas and are intended as context and inspiration.  

The Barnaby Festival (https://barnabyfestival.org.uk): There has been a Barnaby 
Fair in Macclesfield since the 13th Century. The local tradition had all but died 
out when in 2004 Macclesfield Borough was dubbed the ‘least cultured 
place’ in Britain for its lack of amenities. In 2009 things began to change when 
a group who had a vision for a festival of arts, culture and fun, based in the 
town centre and rooted in Macclesfield’s heritage and talents got together. In 
2010 Barnaby was reborn as a weekend festival. 

Canterbury Festival (https://www.canterburyfestival.co.uk): Canterbury Festival 
is Kent's International Arts Festival, the largest festival of arts and culture in the 
region, and one of the most important cultural events in the South East. With 
over two hundred events in two weeks there is something to suit everyone from 
classical music to contemporary dance, and from comedy to world music with 
theatre, walks, talks, visual arts and much more. 

Festival Stoke (http://www.festivalstoke.co.uk): Festival Stoke is a collaborative 
of creative people who have chosen to work together to make arts activities 
and events happen in the city of Stoke-on-Trent. The Festival aims to ‘bring 
great art into everyday places’ through commissioning artists and performers 
to create works of arts which are easily available and accessible to people in 
ordinary and everyday places.   

 
Kenilworth Arts Festival (https://www.kenilworthartsfestival.co.uk): Kenilworth 
Arts is an annual, multi-genre festival which takes place over 10 days in 
September, with events, workshops and exhibitions held in various venues. It 
celebrates high quality, original work within the contemporary arts and brings 
together award-winning, internationally-acclaimed writers, musicians and visual 
artists from around the country (and beyond) for one-off, intimate events.  

Kidderminster Arts Festival (http://www.kidderminsterartsfestival.org.uk): 
Kidderminster Arts Festival (KAF) offers a diverse cultural experience to all ages 
and interests, and includes a programme of performance workshops, shows, 
street art and exhibitions. The annual event is held in the last two weeks of 
August in and around Kidderminster town centre in local venues and out and 

Page 218



	 23	

about on the streets. 

Live Art UK (http://www.liveartuk.org): Live Art UK is a network of 30 venues, 
promoters and facilitators who collectively represent a range of practices and 
are concerned with all aspects of the development and promotion of the Live 
Art sector. The network aims to be a representative voice for Live Art practices 
and initiatives in the UK. 

Make More Art (https://makemore.art) MAKEMORE is a London based maker 
festival celebrating all forms of making and doing. It gives people hands-on 
creative experiences to enable them to discover what kind of maker they are. 

AMA Culturehive (http://www.culturehive.co.uk): is a free online resource 
library for culture professionals that brings the collective intelligence of 
the sector together in one place. It is run by the Arts Marketing 
Association (AMA) and shares expertise through training, networking 
events, members working together to influence the sector. 

 
 

  

Page 219



	 24	

 

4 Conclusions  

In this review we aimed; to capture and represent aspirations for a more vibrant 
arts scene in the Staffordshire Moorlands District; to gather input to inform a 
vision and an arts strategy (including how best to support development of the 
arts and creative industries); to provide evidence of need for support for arts 
and creative industries for future funding bids by Support Staffordshire  

To achieve change, things need to be done differently. The world is different, so 
we must be too. 

4.1 Context 

In 2018 the social, political and economic climate is a challenging one. However, 
there are opportunities and changes in thinking that are relevant to the aims of 
this review, particularly in the arts sector nationally. These include;  

• a renewed emphasis on partnership working, particularly across the 
statutory, private and voluntary sectors 
(https://www.thirdsector.co.uk/civil-society-strategy-will-help-charities-
need-says-minister/policy-and-politics/article/1490022)  

• a shift in focus in national arts funding from organisations in London and 
the South East, including  a requirement for organisations based in the 
South East to be working with partners in other regions 
(https://www.theguardian.com/culture/2017/aug/04/arts-funding-
700m-needed-bridge-north-south-divide-study-finds) 

• The funding of heritage and the arts has been brought more closely 
together and libraries and museums funding is also now administered by 
Arts Council England (https://www.artscouncil.org.uk/what-we-
do/supporting-arts-museums-and-libraries) 

Our recommendations encourage innovative thinking and actions that make the 
most of the national context.  

4.2 Aspirations & Potential 

There are aspirations to create a more vibrant arts scene in the Staffordshire 
Moorlands. There are organisations and individuals who, given the right support 
and resources can make the step changes necessary to transform the arts 
offer in the District. These include Support Staffordshire  

The arts can address the top three issues that affect communities across the 
District; the economy, opportunities for young people, and individual and 

Page 220



	 25	

community well-being, and can spin the stories of the Staffordshire 
Moorlands, of who we are and the unique characteristics of this place, out 
across the UK and beyond.   

4.3 Resource 

Finance: The current allocation to the arts in SMDC’s annual budget plan 
represents a small but significant commitment. This finance would be an 
important part of any funding package, but is not sufficient alone to deliver 
“a more vibrant arts scene”. 

SMDC’s Corporate Plan (2015-2019) Executive Summary document makes 
no reference to arts or culture. Instead it talks about “leisure” and 
“entertainment”.  

In order to effect any transformation in the delivery of arts and culture in the 
Staffordshire Moorlands funds need to be raised. For any funding bid to be 
successful it must have the strategic rationale for the programme of activity. 

4.4 Strategy 

A Culture Strategy is an ideal tool for this. The development and writing of a 
Strategy would be the clear next step from this review. A Culture Strategy  
would provide a set of agreed objectives for professionals and grassroots 
organisations working across the District to work to and to. The Strategy 
should be owned by the sector and supported by a range of partners 
including SMDC, Town Councils, funders, venues and organisations.   

Funding opportunities should be actively sought that would then finance 
programmes of work that deliver against the objectives laid out in the 
strategy. 

 

It is on the basis of these conclusions that we make the 
following recommendations 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 221



	 26	

 

 

5 Recommendations 

 

A useful Arts and Culture Strategy should also provide a vision for the cultural 
life of the District as well as demonstrating how the arts and culture will 
contribute to wider Corporate Aims of economic growth, opportunities and well-
being throughout the District.  

The Staffordshire Moorlands has a unique landscape and cultural heritage. The 
vision for the future would be that arts and practices of making beautiful things 
interwoven with a beautiful natural landscape should become the story of the 
District.  

This is a contemporary story of art in a place that inspires and nurtures writers, 
story-tellers, musicians, makers, designers, visual artists and craftspeople both 
in the past and now. The District should become known as a landscape and a 
place that inspires and feeds creativity now, where from cradle to the grave the 
arts is part of our lives.  

5.1.1 The Programme Plan 

The Arts and Cultural Strategy would be underpinned by a programme plan that 
has three priority areas for investment.  

The purpose of separating them out is to be clear what the purpose of the 
activity is. In this way we can see what is the most appropriate programming to 
develop within that priority area. Then we can measure its success in delivering 
against those aims; for example we don’t end up judging the economic impact 
of programming when its purpose was to build better individual well-being.  

 

  

 

Recommendation 1 

Create an outward facing, dynamic, and cross cutting Arts and Culture Strategy  

	

Page 222



	 27	

5.1.2 Priority Areas 

Economy 

This includes initiatives that increase trading, ticket sales (festivals drawing, 
charged for events, markets), product development and marketing (creative 
industries), tourism and the promotion of the “Story of the Moorlands” as a 
cultural destination- an arts and crafts district, audience development – 
especially audiences from outside the District, which in turn provides a market 
for increased overnight accommodation and a richer night-time offer.  

Key actions: 

• Create a network (and co-ordinator) for and with the existing festivals and 
events across the District to; provide training and access to increased 
funds, network regionally and nationally to increase communications and 
audience figures, be a first port of call for new and potential festival 
organisers where they can access good practice, tools and resources 

• Develop two new festivals with the potential to bring in large audiences 
(20,000 plus) to the District that deliver direct economic benefits (e.g. 
Ludlow Food Festivals http://www.foodfestival.co.uk/about/history) 

• Develop exhibition and marketing opportunities for visual artists and 
crafts people including using non-traditional venues such as town centre 
shops and empty properties (see Cheadle Art trail), and local makers 
presence in tourism venues /destinations, working with Creative Industries 
partners to develop new services and products (e.g. arts and crafts 
themed learning holidays and landscape trails etc.)   

• Explore ways to open more town centre/ high street studio spaces to 
promote “live” making and increase the visibility of arts and craft practice 
in the towns.     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 223



	 28	

Arts Infrastructure  

This includes people resource as well and physical and virtual resource, so is as 
much about increasing the number, skills and capacities of the available 
professional/ para-professional organisations working in SMDC area as it is about 
venues, platforms, networks etc.  

The professional arts sector is very under-developed. There is a good network 
of promoters and event organisers but a lack of artists/ cultural leaders with the 
necessary combination of vision and experience to move the sector forward. 

It is also about making the most of what exists, so partnerships with key 
organisations in the district who are not currently engaged, or who could be 
more engaged (Leek High School, the National Trust etc.)  

This should include the training and development of young and early career 
artists- where do they go, who do they ask for advice and mentoring. Where do 
people who want to “get something going” go for help. 

Key Actions: 

• Make new partnerships with external agencies who can build the 
professional sector by engaging with the Arts Council England National 
Portfolio Organisations in Staffordshire, and West Derbyshire and with key 
relevant partners in London and the South East (e.g. Victoria and Albert 
Museum) 

• Find artists in the District- see findings in the survey- venues, support 
with marketing etc. and plan how to respond to those expressed needs 

• Audit the existing external partners what more can they do e.g. Live and 
Local, Buxton Leek College, Staffordshire Libraries- they all report a 
willingness to provide more services (Live and Local), be a host venue for 
events and festivals (BLC), and have opportunities for outreach work 
(Staffordshire Libraries) and a desire to maximise the use of venues in 
new and interesting ways (The Nicholson Institute)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 224



	 29	

Social Impact 

Work under this priority area is to engage with both existing and new to the 
area organisations in new collaborations and partnerships to design and deliver 
some key activities that address; youth inclusion, isolation and the elderly, 
mental well-being. It also ensures that local people are participating as co-
creators of the work and are contributing to the civil life of their community.  

Key Actions 

• Work with Support Staffordshire to identify both community and 
grassroots partners and potential non-arts sector partners (health and 
social care/ social prescribing etc.) 

•  Research how can youth development activity be separately activated/ 
funded- Support Staffordshire could work with an external agency for 
example the YMCA North Staffs in Stoke-on-Trent 

 

 

5.2.1 Purpose of the Service 

The purpose of this service would be to stimulate new projects, long-term 
programmes and innovative and transformational partnerships. The role would 
encompass also signposting to training and opportunities for partnership 
working or collaboration and would support the organisational development of 
smaller or less developed organisations and individuals.   

It would be key for the post holder to have extensive knowledge of the regional 
and national contemporary arts sector, creative businesses and be able to build 
or have good networks across the sub-region both in the arts and beyond. 

Ideally this role would be located in Support Staffordshire rather than the LA, as 
this would allow them more flexibility and opportunities in terms of fund raising. 

 

 

Recommendation 2 

Create an Arts Development Service that actively delivers across the programme 
plan against the strategy as outlined above. 

Strategy  

Page 225



	 30	

5.2.2 Resources 

A Big Arts Fund needs to be established to put the actions and 
recommendations of this review into practice, so fund-raising skills (including; 
trusts, charities and accessing corporate or private sponsorship/ personal 
giving/ donations) would be essential. 

Key Actions 

• Research funding opportunities including strategic conversations with Arts 
Council England 

• Work with the three towns and key local organisations to locate and 
broker new and ambitious partnerships (Support Staffordshire). 

 

The Arts Forums are seen as a valuable piece of local arts infrastructure. There 
is value in not dismantling existing structures in order to retain engagement and 
the commitment of grassroots activists.  

It would be better to ask what else could be achieved through the Forums 
activities. So what could they be for other than to distribute funds? What do 
those who attend get from the networking opportunity? What difference do 
they make? People reported almost as significant as the access to funding was 
the connectivity with others, that they offer and receive peer support and 
generally have a sense of being part of a “scene”.  

It is essential to re-contextualise the activities of the Arts Forums. An agreed 
purpose embedded in an agreed District wide Culture Strategy that is monitored 
and evaluated will provide a strong foundation for actions with impact.  

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation 3 

Conduct an Options Appraisal for Arts Forums and networking activity  

(including the Annual Celebration) 

 

Page 226



	 31	

Key Actions 

In order to move forward from a solid base, we recommend the following actions  

1) Decide what is the intended impact of the funding distributed through the 
Arts Forums- via the writing of the Culture Strategy without this aim in place no 
other decision can be made.  

2) Undertake an Options Appraisal  

A range of future scenarios should be proposed, rated and ranked against the 
Aim. We suggest these Options include; 

• Status Quo: Arts Forums continue as they are 
• No Arts Forums: Arts Forums are deleted  
• Maintain Arts Forums explicitly as a network place for grassroots groups, 

defined as those run by local volunteers offering regular (e.g. weekly 
activity) activity, that provides lifelong learning/ active leisure (like a 
sports club) / has a membership  

• Create new/ additional network(s) to support professional/ para-
professional groups - defined as those that involve paying professional 
artists, crafts people. This might include groups that act like a 
professional group (i.e. receives fees for its activities or is training young 
people as a step towards professional activity). So this would include 
youth groups (orchestra, youth theatre), large choirs (Biddulph Male 
Voice) and festivals or programmes of professionally delivered arts 
activity, crafts people and artists for whom the activity is a business 

• Arts Forums become Arts Networks - they meet twice a year at mini 
conference style events- (providing reasons to attend- speakers, 
information, extending networks, promoting healthy competition etc.) 
They should not be focused around three towns but should be rotated 
through interesting venues (Biddulph Grange, Leek High School, 
Caverswall Castle) and the structure of the events should encourage 
cross-fertilisation of practice, up-skilling and raising ambition. They should 
involve all voluntary and professional sectors with opportunities for like-
minded/similarly structured groups to spend time together to gain 
support. 

• Create a regular programme of networking activity for Arts Forums leads 
(as existed in the past) in order to co-ordinate activity across the District 
and refer to progress against the Culture Strategy 

• Invest in the Arts Forums members’ activities against a clear set of 
objectives (see Culture Strategy recommendation 1) through Big Arts 

Page 227



	 32	

Fund, administered by a panel drawn (in part) from Forum members 
across the District  

• Restore an emphasis on the monitoring and evaluation of the funding 
support. Achievements should be measured against a set of agreed 
objectives as described in the Culture Strategy  

• Explore and maximise Support Staffordshire’s role; to promote 
membership, provide generic training, organise conference/ networking 
event, raise funds, host the Arts Development role, administer small 
grants programme.   

Invest in a suite of tools, and budget line to measure benefits of activities and 
to understand what it is that we are doing and achieving against which 
objectives. This ensures that we can understand if the Culture Strategy is 
working.  

Always temper quantitative data with qualitative measurement- evaluation and 
capturing of all activity is really important and should be built in. Support 
Staffordshire would be ideally placed to research this. 

Next Steps:  

• Make contact internally and through local networks (Support Staffordshire 
etc) with people/ organisations who are already doing this sort of impact 
study e.g. Helen Pakpahan (SMDC) has tools for measuring economic 
impact of festivals and events, Staffordshire University (Nic Gratton) has 
models of how to work with citizens to create citizen evaluators  
 

  

Recommendation 4 

Invest in evaluation 

	

Page 228



	 33	

In Summary 

It is important to create bespoke solutions for the District rather than a one size 
fits all approach - not all areas are equal, however an equity of distribution of 
finance where possible should be achieved. Also, a consideration of how the 
rural areas are accommodated is important (e.g. the work and reach of Live and 
Local, who would cover more rural areas were there more funds) 

There is passion and enthusiasm for the arts in the Staffordshire Moorlands. We 
were left in no doubt as to the commitment of the individuals and organisations 
who have delivered the arts in the District, some for generations.  They have 
weathered storms and droughts and have used their “let’s just do it anyway” 
attitude to see them through. 

They are to be celebrated.  

The survey responses, interviews and conversations taken together revealed a 
richer arts scene than this might suggest exists in the District. The work that is 
being done is therefore either self- funded, funded through voluntary work, time 
and services donation, sales (tickets, objects/ products, services) or other 
means. 

However, if a “vibrant arts scene” is to be achieved in these challenging times 
then a strong and public commitment to the arts has to be made by SMDC at a 
corporate level. A Culture Strategy for the Moorlands can be owned by the 
cultural and grassroots arts and creative sector. However the challenge will be 
that to make the Strategy effective and deliverable will be to gather the 
support of all local authority partners, funders, supporters, investors and 
stakeholders of all kinds.    

From this support can flow; new and innovative partnerships, festivals and 
events that could transform the fortunes and feel of our town centres, projects 
and programming that could have real and positive impacts throughout the lives 
of our citizens wherever they are in the District.   

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 229



	 34	

 

6 NEXT STEPS   

SMDC have already committed to work with Support Staffordshire to 
lead and facilitate the writing of a culture strategy to be completed 
in spring 2019. 

• Work with members and officers of SMDC and High Peak to locate the 
cross cutting strategy in the SMDC Corporate Plan to 2022 

• Work with Support Staffordshire to facilitate a focus group from across 
the District to test recommendations, shape the vision, map 
infrastructure needs and opportunities and identify inclusion priorities 

• Commission, publish and circulate a pdf with the key findings of the 
survey to all participants- make it widely available  

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Image by Jenny Harper of Green Man by Artist Chris Thompson 

 

Footnotes 

*1 Of estimated figures: 26 respondents said their organisation reached over 50 people. So the 
range was defined between: 26 x 50 = 1300, and 3 times this figure.  However we know that at 
least one respondent represented an Arts Festival, where participation could have been far 
higher, e.g. 5,000-10,000 or more. 

Page 230



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report to Cabinet

12 February 2019

TITLE: Support for Keep Britain Tidy campaign

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Forrester- Portfolio Holder for the 
Environment 

CONTACT OFFICER: Nicola Kemp – Operations Manager (Contract 
Management)

WARDS INVOLVED: (All Wards);

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To inform Cabinet of the plans of this Council, to promote the Keep Britain 
Tidy (KBT) Great British Spring Clean 2019.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That Cabinet supports the enhanced promotional activities which will be 
undertaken to support and encourage more residents and local groups to get 
involved in the campaign.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Council has been advised that the Keep Britain Tidy “Great British Spring 
Clean” will run from 22 March to 23 April 2019.  

3.2 The Council has historically supported annual events such as this through the 
provision of litter picking sticks and refuse bags for community groups wishing 
to take part in litter picking campaigns.

3.3 This year we plan to increase our involvement through increased promotion of 
the campaign, which we hope will encourage new residents and groups to 
take part in the event, ensuring that we provide support to more community 
groups than we have before.

3.4 Officers from SMDC and AES will work with the Council’s Communications 
Team to develop a focussed media campaign using Facebook, Twitter, our 
website and local media. The campaign will promote the national spring clean 
event and seek to encourage more residents or groups to take part in the 

Page 231

Agenda Item 9.1



scheme, thus supporting our Corporate Plan aim to create a safer and 
healthier environment for our residents to live and work in. 

3.6 The cost of this more concentrated campaign has been calculated at 
approximately £1200.

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 Supporting the Great British Spring Clean links to the following Corporate 
Priorities;  

 To help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to 
live and work in, and 

 To protect and improve the environment.

5. Alternative Options

5.1 Cabinet has two options:
1. To support the proposal of increased communication to encourage 

more residents and groups to take part in the Great British Spring 
Clean (Recommended)

2. To not support for the proposal of increased communication to 
encourage more community groups to take part in the Great British 
Spring Clean (Not recommended)

Andrew Stokes
Executive Director (Transformation) and Chief Finance Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

https://www.keepbritaintid
y.org/get-
involved/support-our-
campaigns/great-british-
spring-clean

Nicola Kemp
Operations Manager 
(Contract Management)
nkemp@highpeak.gov.uk

Page 232

https://www.keepbritaintidy.org/get-involved/support-our-campaigns/great-british-spring-clean
https://www.keepbritaintidy.org/get-involved/support-our-campaigns/great-british-spring-clean
https://www.keepbritaintidy.org/get-involved/support-our-campaigns/great-british-spring-clean
https://www.keepbritaintidy.org/get-involved/support-our-campaigns/great-british-spring-clean
https://www.keepbritaintidy.org/get-involved/support-our-campaigns/great-british-spring-clean


6. Detail

6.1 SMDC regularly supports community groups, town and parish councils wishing 
to undertake community litter picks at various times of the year. The provided 
support normally takes the form of provision of litter picking sticks, provision of 
refuse sacks and the collection of collected waste after the event from an 
agreed location. Often the groups keep the resources provided to enable them 
to take part in future events.

6.2 The Council where possible links up with national litter picking events, these 
are generally developed by Keep Britain Tidy (KBT), a national charity 
focusing on litter in the UK.

6.3 KBT has over the years promoted various litter related campaigns 
concentrating on different types of litter and other unwanted deposits left as a 
result of human activities. Campaigns include “There’s no such thing as the 
dog poo fairy” which focussed on dog fouling, “Don’t be a Tosser” focussing on 
litter thrown from vehicles, and “Clean for the Queen” in 2016 as part of the 
Queen’s 90th Birthday celebrations.

6.4 In recent years the focus of KBT’s annual litter picking event has shifted to a 
“Great British Spring Clean”, which this year it has been announced will run 
from 22 March to 23 April 2019. 

6.5 The most popular campaign supported by SMDC to date was “Clean for the 
Queen” in 2016 when we supported 8 different groups and loaned out 102 
litter sticks. This was despite heavy snow on the day when several events had 
to be abandoned and rescheduled for a week or two later.  A number of the 
groups kept their equipment and have gone on hold regular events. 

6.6 To our knowledge around 60 community litter picks are undertaken each year 
in the Moorlands. The vast majority of these are where one or more individuals 
undertake litter picking activities regularly. The groups we are aware of are:

 Biddulph Moor – a pair of volunteers twice monthly, 
 Rudyard - single volunteer monthly, 
 Wetley Rocks - single volunteer weekly, 
 Swythamley - team of 4-6 cleaning the whole area over 3 weekends in 

March
 Cllr Forrester (Alton area) - 6 – 10 volunteers over 3 weekends spaced 

out over the spring an summer, 
 Longnor – litter pick group once a year

7. 2019 Great British Spring Clean

7.1 For 2019, KBT is calling for us all to help improve the environment on our 
doorstep. The aim is to inspire around half a million people to join forces in 
partnership with community organisations, businesses and the government  to 
collect and safely dispose of single-use plastic from our streets, parks and 
beaches, recycling as much as possible. 

Page 233



7.2 This year we are keen to support KBT by encouraging as many groups as 
possible to register their litter picking events on the KBT website 
(https://www.keepbritaintidy.org/get-involved/support-our-campaigns/great-
british-spring-clean) and hold them, not just during the allotted Spring Clean 
timescale, but throughout the year.

7.3 Staffordshire Moorlands District Council has already been registered as a 
supporter of the campaign.

7.4 Officers from SMDC and AES will work with the Council’s Communications 
Team to develop a focussed media campaign using Facebook, Twitter, our 
website and local media. The campaign will promote the national spring clean 
event and seek to encourage more residents or groups to take part in the 
scheme, thus supporting our Corporate Plan aim to create a safer and 
healthier environment for our residents to live and work in.

7.5 Officers will contact all known litter picking groups, town and parish councils 
and will seek to develop new links with organisations such as Parkwood, who 
deliver Walking for Heath on our behalf in the Moorlands, U3A walking groups, 
‘Friends of’ local parks, and other known community groups.

7.6 Due to the Council having elections in May 2019, purdah starts on 20th March, 
Officers will take this into account in regards to any publicity undertaken during 
the Great British Spring Clean period.

7.7 The anticipated cost of this more concentrated campaign can be absorbed 
within existing budgets and is approximately £1,200, broken down as follows:

 Provision of litter picking sticks (£850 per 100)  
 Provision of refuse sacks for the collected litter ( £120 per 1,000)
 Paid for Facebook advertising (£200)

Page 234

https://www.keepbritaintidy.org/get-involved/support-our-campaigns/great-british-spring-clean
https://www.keepbritaintidy.org/get-involved/support-our-campaigns/great-british-spring-clean


STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report to Cabinet

12 February 2019

1.        Reason for the Report:

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Councillors on progress on the 
preparation of an Investment and Acquisition Strategy.

2. Recommendation

2.1 It is recommended that Councillors note the update on progress. 

3. Executive Summary

3.1 CBRE has been commissioned to undertake a high-level Acquisition and 
Investment Strategy to assess the potential interventions that could be 
undertaken by the Council both to stimulate development and generate future 
revenue.

3.2 The Strategy will draw on SMDC’s experience in respect of acquisition and 
investment, such as the Ascent Housing Delivery Scheme, strategic site 
masterplanning and managing its commercial property portfolio. The strategy 
seeks to assess a range of strategic sites across the District to understand 
whether there is an economic case for intervention and investment as well as 
identifying a methodology for considering these for investment potential.

3.3 The Strategy will provide:
 A review of the rationale for investment to understand the key drivers which 

might underpin the need for intervention in SMDC;
 A review of the overarching strategic priorities and objectives, analysing the 

national, regional and local strategic policy that underpins the case for growth

TITLE: Investment and Acquisition Strategy

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Edwin Wain, Portfolio Holder for 
Planning Development and Property

CONTACT OFFICER: Sarah Porru – Interim Regeneration Manager

WARDS INVOLVED: All areas 

Page 235

Agenda Item 10.1



 A summary of the key issues and opportunities in the District, drawing on 
strategic policy, the market assessment and the wider evidence base; which 
will inform the assessment of specific sites and opportunities;

 A property market assessment, which provides a high-level summary of the 
key socioeconomic indicators, causes of market failure, a sectoral analysis of 
the market in the District and an identification and the geo-economic 
opportunities in the SMDC;

 A review of a ‘long-list’ development investment pipeline based upon a review 
of key strategic sites within the District along with identified locations for 
growth and identification of a ‘short-list’ of potential sites where investment 
could be considered.

 A high-level acquisition and intervention strategy that sets out a range of 
potential intervention routes for the shortlisted sites and site recommendations 
based on analysis undertaken.

 A ‘Summary Business Case’, which draws together the findings of the 
Strategy, identifying the site priorities for investment, the rationale for 
intervention on each site and the recommended investment approach for each 
site (including the scale of investment).  

3.4 It is proposed to bring a further report to the Service Delivery Overview & 
Scrutiny Panel to present the findings of the study and consider endorsement 
of the strategy and recommended actions. 

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 Development of the Investment and Acquisition Strategy will support the 
following aims of the Corporate Plan: 

 Aim One - To help create a safer and healthier environment for our 
communities to live and work

 Aim Two -  To meet our financial challenges and provide value for 
money

 Aim Three – To help create a strong economy by supporting further 
regeneration of towns and villages

5.         Detail 

5.1 The Staffordshire Moorlands has historically suffered from low levels of 
development, with a number of both housing and mixed-use sites not being 
brought forward despite benefiting from development plan allocations or 
planning permission. For example, in the area, there are currently 189 homes 
with full planning permission, and a further 900 homes have outline approval 
as of March 2018; totalling more than 1,000 homes with planning approval 
that have not been brought forward for development. Similarly, there has been 
difficulty in bringing forward the regional strategic employment site of Blythe 
Vale and mixed-use development at Wharf Road, Biddulph.

5.2 There are a range of complex and often inter-linked reasons why sites are not 
being developed in the District, such as:

 Macro-economic conditions, including the impact of the last recession;

Page 236



 Low returns (sale values/rental incomes)- which effect financial viability 
of development

 Market failures, including the willingness of developers to speculatively 
invest in the area and the lack of evidence to demonstrate demand;

 Issues with land ownerships and land assembly; and
 Site specific technical issues which are impacting on deliverability and 

site viability, such as infrastructure, land contamination, flood risk and 
other environmental mitigation/obligations.

5.3 At the same time, Councils across the UK have faced a significant reduction 
in central government funding and are seeing a shift towards retention of 
locally collected business rates as well as an increasing reliance on council 
tax and income from investments or commercial services.

5.4 It is within this context that there may be a case for intervention by SMDC to 
stimulate development in the District, whilst also providing an opportunity to 
stimulate financial receipts for the Council. 

Dai Larner
Executive Director - Place

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

Sarah Porru 
0345 129 7777 ext 3523
sarah.porru@staffsmoorlands.g
ov.uk

Page 237



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 239

Agenda Item 12.1
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 247

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 249

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 251

Agenda Item 13.1
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting (previously circulated)
	8.1 Forward Plan
	8.2 Third Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance Review 2018/19
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C

	8.3 2019/20 Budget & Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D

	8.4 Town Centre Regeneration and Investment Programme
	8.5 Creative People and Places Bid
	8.5a 181122 Staffordshire Moorlands Arts Review - Final

	9.1 Staffordshire Moorlands DC support for Keep Britain Tidy’s Spring Clean Campaign
	10.1 Investment and Acquisition Strategy
	12.1 Cornhill Development Options
	Appendix A 1 for Cornhill Development Options
	Appendix A 2 for Cornhill Development Options

	13.1 Review of Public Realm CCTV Surveillance System

